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June 3, 1996

Ms. Blanca Bayo, Director BY HAND DELIVERY

Division of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
Room 110, Easley Building

2540 Shumard Cak Blvd.
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed for filing on behalf of American Communication
Services of Jacksonville, Inc. are an original and six copies of
the Application for Authority to Provide Local Telecommunications
Service Statewide together with attachments thereto, and a check 1in
the amount of $250.00 for the filing fee.

please indicate receipt of this document by stamping the
enclosed two extra copies of this letter.

Your attention to this filing is appreciated.
Sincerely,
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Norman H. Horton,

NHH/alb
Enclosures
cc: Charles Kallenbach, Esqg.
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Before the
STATE OF FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Application of AMERICAN COMMUNICATION )

SERVICES OF JACKSONVILLE, INC. for )

Authority to Provide Local ) Docket No.
)

Telecommunications Service Statewide

APPLICATION

Floyd R. Self, Esq.

Norman H. Horton, Jr.

MESSER, CAPARELLO, MADSEN, GOLDMAN & METZ
215 South Monroe Street

Suite 701

Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1876

James C. Falvey, Esq.

Charles H. N. Kallenbach, Esq.

AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
131 National Business Parkway

Suite 100

Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701

Their Attorneys
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Before the
STATE OF FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Application of AMERICAN COMMUNICATION )
SERVICES OF JACKSONVILLE, INC. for )
Authority to Provide Local )
Telecommunications Service Statewide )

APPLICATION

American Communication Services of Jacksonville, Inc. ("ACSI Jacksonville®), by its
attorneys, respectfully requests that the Florida Public Service Commission ("Commission”) grant it
authority to provide local switched and dedicated telecommunications services to the public
statewide. Specifically, ACSI Jacksonville requests that the Commission allow it to provide private
line, special access and competitive local switched services throughout the State of Florida.

ACSI Jacksonville urges the Commission to continue to move toward full-fledged
competition in the market for local telecommunications services in Florida. As the Commission has
recognized, competition promotes the public interest by reducing costs, increasing efficiency,
stimulating innovation and expanding the variety of products and services offered to consumers.

In support of its Application, ACSI Jacksonville provides the following information:

I The Applicant

ACSI Jacksonville is incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland. ACSI

Jacksonville maintains its headquarters at 131 National Business Parkway, Annapolis Junction,
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Maryland 20701 and is qualified to do business in Florida as a foreign corporation. ACSI
Jacksonville is a wholly-owned subsidiary of American Communications Services, Inc. ("ACSI"), a
publicly-held Delaware corporation headquartered at 131 National Business Parkway, Suite 100,
Annapolis Junction, MD 20701. Copies of the Applicant's Articles of Incorporation and Certificate

of Qualification are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B respectively.

1I. Designated Contacts

All correspondence, notices and inquiries regarding this Application should be addressed to:

Floyd R. Self, Esq.
MESSER, CAPARELLO, MADSEN, GOLDMAN & METZ

215 South Monroe Street
Suite 701
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1876

(904) 222-0720

Copies of all correspondence should also be sent to:

Riley M. Murphy, Esq.
James C. Falvey, Esq.
AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC

131 National Business Parkway

Suite 100
Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701

I1I.  Request for Authority to Provide Private Line and Special Access Services

ACSI Jacksonville respectfully requests that the Commission grant it authority to provide
private line and special access services within Florida, ACSI Jacksonville proposes to provide point

1o point high capacity non-switched interconnections, including interconnection between: (1) points-
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of-presence ("POPs") of the same interexchange carrier ("IXC"); (2) POPs of different IXCs; (3;
large business and government end-users and their selected 1XCs; (4) a POP and a local exchange
carrier {"LEC") central office or two LEC central offices; and (5) different locations of business or
government customers.

Specifically, ACSI Jacksonville proposes to offer the following dedicated services:

® Special Access Services that provide a link between an end-user location and the POP of its
IXC, or links between IXC POPs.

o] Switched Transport Services that are offered to IXCs that have large volumes of long
distance traffic aggregated by a LEC switch at a central office where the CAP has
collocated its network. ACSI Jacksonville will provide dedicated facilities for
transporting these aggregated volumes of long distance traffic from the LEC central
office 1o its POP or between LEC central offices.

o] Private Line Services that provide dedicated facilities between two end-user locations

in the same metropolitan area (e.g., a central banking facility and a branch office or a
manufacturing facility and its remote data processing center).

IV.  Request for Authority to Provide Switched Intral ATA Intrastate Telecommunications
Services

In addition, Applicant also secks authority to provide switched intraLATA intrastate
telecommunications services to the public on a statewide basis both through the use of their own
facilities and by reselling local services obtained from other LECs. ACSI Jacksonville intends to
operale as a competitive local exchange carrier ("CLEC") offering a variety of dedicated and
switched services.

The Applicant seeks authority to provide local switched services such as:
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® "Plain Old Telephone Service” -- originating and terminating local calls;

* Switched Access Service -- originating and terminating traffic between a customer
premise and an IXC POP via shared local trunks using a local switch;

. PBX Trunking - carrying switched traffic between the Applicant's switch and the

customer's PBX.

V. Description and Fitness of the Applicant

ACSI Jacksonville is well-qualified 1o provide the services for which authority is requesied in
this Application. ACSI, through its operating subsidiaries, already has constructed and is
successfully operating digital fiber optic networks and offering dedicated services in several states.
ACSI currently has eleven operational networks' and an additional nine networks are under
construction.’

ACSI and the Applicant arc managed by a team of weil qualified officers and directors who
have extensive experience in the telecommunications industry with companies such as Metropolitan
Fiber Systems (the predecessor of MFS Communications Company, Inc.), MCI, Cable and

Wireless, Inc., WorldCom, Inc. (formerly LDDS Communications, Inc.) and TRT

' ACSI's operational networks are located in: Columbia, South Carolina; Fort
Worth, Texas: Greenvi''e, South Carolina; Little Rock, Arkansas; Louisville, Kentucky;
El Paso, Texas; Albuguerque, New Mexico; Mobile, Alabama; Montgomery, Alabama;
Lexington, Kentucky; and Tucson, Arizona.

*  ACSI expects the following networks to be operational by mid-1996: Charleston,
South Carolina; Spartanburg, South Carolina; Irving, Texas; Columbus, Georgia;
Jackson, Mississippi; Birmingham, Alabama; Baton Rouge, Louisiana; and Amarillo,

Texas.

8 DOUZOCHMIZIA 41




Communications,. The names, titles and backgrounds of the officers and directors of the ACSI
companies are listed in Exhibit C hereto.

As a start-up company, the Applicant has no significant financial history. However, the
Applicant, though the strength of its parent corporation, ACSI, has access to ample capital to finish
developing its network and to establish itself as a going concern financially capable of providing the
services for which authority is requested herein. Copies of ACSI's most recent financial statements,

and annual report are attached hereto as Exhibits.

VI.  Network Description

ACSI Jacksonville will operate as a facilities-based and non-facilities-based carrier of local
telecommunications services. The Applicant will construct its network using self-healing fiber optic
ring topology. High capacity backbone routes will be built connecting the interexchange carriers
and high volume telecommunications users in Florida. The network will then extend distribution
rings from the backbone to reach end-user buildings not on the initial ring. The fiber network will
also be connected to the local telephone company to facilitate interconnection with its networks.

The Applicant's system will provide state-of-the-art fiber optic clazity, speed, diversity of
access, and virtually complete reliability of service, with automatic stand-by and rerouting in the
event of a system failure. The network will be designed to provide at least two completely diverse
routes, offering customers access to telecommunications services in the event of a fiber cable cut. If

a system failure occurs, service is restored automatically within less than 50 milliseconds, usually
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without any detectable service interruption to the end-user. The network will also provide backup
for customers in the event of a failure or disaster in the local telephone company’s system.

The Applicant's network will utilize single mode fiber optic cable. State-of-the-art DDM
2000 SONET ring multiplexers will be deployed at IXC, Bell and end-user customer locations, Hub
sites will be built on the network as well. The system will be constantly monitored by sophisticated

network management equipment for transmission errors or deterioration in service.

VIl. Proposed Tariffs

The Applicant intends to provide service in Florida pursuant to the terms and conditions

outlined in its proposed illustrative tariffs, which are attached hereto as Exhibits.

VIII. Public Interest

A decision by the Commission granting ACSI Jacksonville authority to provide the local
telecommunications services described herein is in the public interest. Permitting the Applicant to
provide the services described in this Application will expand service options and increase
competition in Florida without any adverse impact on the Commission’s goals of universal service
and affordable local cervice for individual customers. Approval will lead directly to substantial
additional private investment in Florida's telecommunications infrastructure and promote consumer
choice by expanding the availability of innovative, high quality, reliable and competitively-priced

telecommunications services. Approval also is likely to cause other local telecommunications
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providers to improve their existing services, become more efficient and intre-tuce service
innovations of their own.

WHEREFORE, ACSI Jacksonville respectfully requests that the Commission grant it
authority to transact the business of a provider of switched and dedicated local telecommunications
services within the State of Florida.

Respectfully submitted,

AMERICAN COMMUNICATION SERVICES OF
JACKSONVILLE

By:

Floyd R. Self, Esq. (
Norman H. Horton, Jr.
MESSER, CAPARELLO, MADSEN, GOLDMAN & MET7Z
215 South Monroe Street

Suite 701

Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1876

(904) 222-0720

James C. Falvey, Esq.

Charles H. N. Kallenbach, Esq.

AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
131 National Business Parkway

Suite 100

Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701

Their Attorneys

DATED: June 3, 1996
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June 3, 1996 -

Ms. Blanca Bayo, Director
Division of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
Room 110, Easley Building C
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. T 69 STV
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed for filing on behalf of American Communication
Services of Jacksonville, Inc. are an original and six copies of
the Application for Authority to Provide Local Telecommunications
Service Statewide together with attachments thereto, and a check in

the amount of $250.00 for the filing fee. =

Please indicate receipt of this document by stampihgithe
r

enclosed two extra copies of this letter. -
©

Your attention to this filing is appreciated. 2
o,

81 4 Hy

Sincerely,

Voo EM%

Norman H. Horton, Jr.

NHH/alb
Enclosures
cc: Charles Kallenbach, Esq.




offict

Title:

Addres

AFFIDAYIT

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to
the accuracy of the information contained in this application and
attached documents and that the applicant has the technical
expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide
alternative local exchange service in the State of Florida. I have
read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my knowledge and
belief, the information is true and correct. 1 attest that I have
the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply,
now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and
orders.

Further, 1 am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida
Statutes, "Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with
the intent to wislead a public servant in the performance of his
official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree,

punishable as provided 1"[ . 775.082 and s. 775.083",
al: .\ t&t::%ﬁ-/(_.% March 29, 1996

~ Signature - Date
Executive Vice President 301-617-4215
Telephone Mumber
Legal & Regulatory Affairs
$1 131 National Business Parkway

Suite 10O

Annapolis Junction, MD 20701

FORM PSC/CHMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.
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ACSI Management Biographies

Anthony J. Pompliano, Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pompliano, who has over 35 years of telecommunications experience, joined the
Company in August 1993. He was a co-founder of Metropolitan Fiber Systems of Chicago,
Inc. (the predecessor of MFS Communications Company, Inc. and the largest public CAP in
the country). Prior to leaving MFS in May 1991, Mr. Pompliano served as President, CEO
and Vice-Chairman. He joined ACSI after the expiration of his two-year non-compete
agreement with MFS, Before his association with MFS, Mr. Pompliano was Vice President -
Sales for MCI Midwest (MCI Communications Corporation) and V.P. - National Operations
tor Western Union International, Inc.

Richard A. Kozak, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kozak, who has over 20 years telecommunications experience, joined the Company in
November 1993. He was formerly President of the Southern Division of MFS Telecom,
where he was responsible for MFS networks in Atlanta, Baltimore, Dallas, Houston,
Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, and Washington, DC, as well as establishing networks in
additional markets. Previously, he was President of MFS Development, where he was
responsible for the planning, development, and implementation of more than $100 million
of major expansions of MFS networks throughout the country, and Senior Vice President of
Network Services for MFS, Prior to joining MFS in 1990, he was a Vice President and
General Manager for Telenet Communications Corporation (now Sprint International) and
an Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for TRT Communications. Mr.
Kozak holds an engineering degree from Brown University, studied at the University of
Chicago Graduate School of Business, and completed his M.B.A. in Finance at the George
Washington University School of Government and Business Administration.

George M. Tronsrue, [II, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Tronsrue has 18 years of telecommunications industry and management experience and
was appointed COQ in February, 1996. Prior to joining ACSI as Executive Vice President
for Strategic Planning and Business Development in February 1994, he was Regional Vice
President for the Centre' Region of Teleport Communications Group (TCG) and TCG's Vice
President of Emerging Markets, responsible for start-up and profit and loss management of
joint ventures with top cable TV providers in eight major markets. Prior to his
employment at TCG, he was a member of the initial management team of MFS, where he
held  semor  positions in  planning and market development, served as Vice
President/General Manager for the initial start-up of MFS's New York network, and
Executive Vice President for MFS Intelenet. Previously, Mr. Tronsrue was a Director of
Operations for MCI Midwest. He holds a BS. degree in applied sciences and engineering
trom the United States Military Academy at West Point.




ACSI Management Team
Page 2

Riley M. Murphy, Executive Vice President - Legal and Regulatory Affairs

Ms. Murphy has 14 years experience in the private practice of telecommunications law for
interexchange, cellular, paging, and other competitive services, representing some of the
nation's largest carriers. Ms. Murphy joined ACSI full-time in April 1994 and was Senior
Counsel to Locke Purnell Rain Harrell, a Dallas-based law firm, through December 1994
From 1987 to 1992, she was a partner in Wirpel and Murphy, a telecommunications law
firm she co-founded, and from 1992 to 1993 was a sole practitioner. She holds a B.A. degree
from the University of Colorado and a ].D. from the Catholic University of America, and 1s
admitted to practice law in the District of Columbia and Louisiana.

Harry D'Andrea, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. D'Andrea is a senior financial executive with 15 years of experience in the financial
management of companies ranging in size from $1 billion to $17 billion in revenues. Prior
to joining ACSI, Mr. D'Andrea was EVP and CFO of Caterair, the world's largest airline
catering company. Before joining Caterair, he served as Controller for the European In-
flight Services Division of Marriott Corporation from 1987-1989: a post which allowed him
to use his undergraduate degree from Penn State in Foreign Service and International
Politics. He also held two earlier financial management positions at Marriott, Mr. D'Andrea
began his career at Xerox after completing his MBA in Finance at Drexel University.

Douglas R. Hudson, Executive Vice President/GM - Network Services

Mr. Hudson has 12 years sales and marketing experience in the telecommunications
industry. For the seven years prior to joining ACSI in May 1994, he had been with MFS,
starting as director of field sales, then Vice President of Industry Sales and Marketing, and
most recently Vice President and General Manager in charge of MFS' Mid-Atlantic region.
Previous to his employment with MFS, Mr. Hudson was a regional sales manager for
Microtel, a national telecom firm providing long distance and private line services.

Richard Robertson, Executive Vice President - Switched Services

Mr. Robertson, a 16-year veteran of BellSouth, came to ACSI in April having directed
marketing activities ‘or the regional Bell company’s $3.5 billion network interconnection
business since 1991, In that role, he was responsible for negotiating interconnection
agreements with competitive local exchange carriers. He was responsible for development
and implementation of BellSouth’s advanced intelligent network (AIN) services for the
interconnection market and also formulated the company’s plan for and entry into the
customer premise equipment (CPE) market in the mid-1980s, leading that unit to achieve
over 5100 million in sales in its first year of operation. In other assignments during his 28-
year career, Mr. Robertson’s experience included outside plant, manufacturing, finance,
purchasing, strategy development and R&D positions with Western Electric, Bellcore, and
the US Army. Mr. Robertson has a bac’ elor’s degree in electrical engineering from
Virginia Tech and an MBA from the University of Virginia.
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Michael Mansouri, Executive Vice President/General Manager -
Advanced Data Services

Before coming to ACSI, Mr. Mansouri spent nearly ten years at Sprint International, serving
as director of international multimedia services, director of global messaging, director of
global value added systems, and director of business development. Prior to Sprint, Mr
Mansouri was a manager of Applied Communications Systems at Tymshare/Tymnet, Inc
Mr. Mansouri holds a BS. in computer science and statistics from Utah State University and
an M.S, in operations research from The George Washington University.

Robert Ottman, Executive Vice President - Network Systems and
Technology Services

Mr. Gttman, who has over 30 years of telecommunications industry experience, joined the
Company in May 1995. Prior to joining ACSI, Mr. Ottman served in a variety of senior
management and executive positions at MCI International, serving as Director - Operations
and Labor Relations from 1982 - 1988, Vice President - Administration and Quality
Assurance from 1988 - 1992, and Vice President - Operations and Administration from 1992 -
1995. Prior to his tenure at MCI, Mr. Ottman spent 17 years with Western Union
International, starting as a technician in 1965 and rising to Director of Operations, a post he
held from 1979 - 1982.

Dennis J. Ives, Senior Vice President - Network Development

Mr. Ives is responsible for outside plant engineering, network design, procurement and
construction of all of ACSI's networks. Prior to joining ACSI in 1992, Mr. Ives was Vice
President of Operations for Diginet Communications, a CAP serving the Chicago and
Milwaukee markets, where he supervised the design, construction and operation of a 110-
mile network. Previous to his employment at Dizinet, Mr. Ives spent 30 years in various
network-related managerial positions with AT&T Long Lines/Communi~ations Division,
with particular emphasis on provisioning, operations and quality control matters.

Martin F. McDermott, 111, Sr. Vice President - Marketing

Mr. McDermott brings 30 years of experience in the telecommunications field to our
company, He most recently served as chief operating officer for American Wireless
Communications Corp., a company created to provide long distance service to small
companies nationwide. Previously, he held two posts as vice president for Wiltel, first in
Marketing and Customer Service and then in Federal Systems. Mr. McDermott made his
mark in the industry as COO of a long distance coalition for carriers known as the Mational
Telecommunications Network (NTN). He is a graduate of Georgetown University and a
published author of a book about operating an interconnect company, as well as an active
force in industry associations such as ACTA, NATA and Comptel.
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Eli Stearns, Vice President - Real Estate Development

Prior to joining ACSI in February 1995, Mr. Stearns spert seven years overseeing real estate
and building access for MFS Communications nationwide. Previous to his employment at
MEFS, Mr. Stearns spent two years in commercial real estate development, six years as a
project manager for Chicago-based Pepper Construction Company and three years as an
architectural engineer with AM. Kinney, designing commercial office buildings. Mr.
Stearns holds a B.S. degree in architecture from the Univ ersity of Illinois at Champaign.

Mark C. Fuller, Regional Vice President /General Manager - East

Previous to joining ACSI in November 1994, he was Director of Sales at Teleport
Communications Group, managing an 11 member national account team responsible for
sales of access facilities to MCI with annual revenues in excess of $ million. Prior to his
position at TCG, Mr. Fuller held numerous management positions at MCI, including
marketing support manager (where he was responsible for developing relationships with
competitive access providers and for providing custom access solutions); technical support
manager for MCI's eastern region; and manager of baseband management and
provisioning, where he was responsible for managing and provisioning MCl's $1 billion
network infrastructure. After earning a BS. degree in applied sciences and engineering
from the U S. Military Academy at West Point in 1979, Mr. Fuller served in the US. Army in
various command and staff positions until December 1988.

Richard S. Kingston, Regional Vice President /General Manager - West

Mr. Kingston has 11 years of sales and marketing experience in the telecommunications
industry. Prior to joining ACSI in March 1994, he had been at Teleport Communications
Group as Director of the MCI account for TCG's eight-state midwest region. From 1991 to
1993, he was founder and president of King Communications, a telecommunications
marketing firm. Mr. Kingston has also held various high level sales positions with MFS,
Telesphere and Sprint. He holds a bachelor's degree from Western Michigan University.

Terry Kokinda, R *gional Vice President /General Manager - Central

Mr. Kokinda's 18 years of experience in telecommunications began at South Central Bell
where he served as an account executive. After holding two separate positions at Attis, he
became District Sales Manager in the state of Kentucky for AT&T Business Network
Services. Mr. Kokinda earmed a bachelors degree in Education from Western Kentucky
University and has extensive training in Sales excellence.
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James P. Martino, Vice President - Strategic Ventures

Mr. Martino joined ACSI from Teleport Communications Group (TCG), where he was most
recently director of national operations, managing the field operations of the company's 25
major markets nationwide. He was previously TCG's manager of corporate ventures,
responsible for the planning of TCG's corporate expansion from five cities to 25 markets.
Mr. Martino graduated summa cum laude with a BS. in finance from the University at Albany
(S.U.N.Y.) and he holds an M.B.A. with honors in international finance from St John's
University.

Deborah W. Sellers, Vice President - Carrier Sales

Ms. Sellers is responsible for managing interexchange carrier sales for all accounts except
AT&T and MCI. Prior to joining ACSI in October 1994, she was senior account manager for
ADC Communications, responsible for strategic selling of transmission and broadband
connectivity products to Ameritech; regional account manager for NEC America,
Transmission Division, Chicago, where she was responsible for strategic sales and
marketing of SONET transmission products to US West and GTE; a senior account manager
for MFS of Chicago (where she was the top account executive for MFS nationwide from
January, 1990 through June of 1991); and an account manager for Cable & Wireless
Communications (where she was a consistent top 20 sales performer). She earned a BA
degree from the University of Wisconsin - Madison.

Steven T. Hudson, Vice President - Strategic Marketing and
Business Development (Advanced Data Services)

Mr. Hudson has an extensive background in business, public and government affairs. Prior
to joining ACSI as Vice President - Business Development in September 1994, he had been a
staff member of the State of Texas Office of State-Federal Relations in Washington, DC; a
non-attorney member of the Austin-based government affairs practice of the law firm of
Johnson & Gibbs; and Vice President of Government Relations for the Texas Association ot
Builders. He also has experience as an investment banker with Carlyle Capital Markets,
Inc, structuring the financing of major telecommunications systems and other capital
projucts for governmental entities nationwide. Mr. Hudson has a bachelor's degree from
Yale University and an M.B.A. from the University of Texas at Austin.
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Richard LaPerch, Vice President/General Manager,
Enhanced Voice Messaging

Mr. LaPerch joined ACSI in November 1995 after seven years with Octel, where he
managed the government sales and marketing organization. Prior to his position at Octel,
Mr. LaPerch was a national account manager and senior sales engineer with Rolm/IBM. A
former officer in the US. Army, he earned a BS. in engineering from the United States
Military Academy at West Point and is a candidate for an M.B.A. at George Mason
University in Fairfax, Virginia.

Richard Zbylut, Vice President - Strategic Marketing & Business Development
(Switched Services)

Mr. Zbylut has had a varied carreer in telecommunications, information services and
finance. Prior to joining ACSI, he was Vice President - Business and Market Development
for Info Enterprises, Inc., a Motorola company, developing industry-specific opportunities
for clectronic information services. Previously, he was Vice President/Director - Business
and Market Development for US West Enhanced Services, Inc., responsible for the
development and introduction of voice messaging services within and outside US West's
region; national marketing director for Ciber, Incorporated, an information services
provider; and product manager/account manager for Telic Services Corporation/ Telcor (a
US West joint venture). Mr. Zbylut holds a BS. in accountancy from the University of
lllinois at Urbana, an MS. in educational administration from the National Coliege ot
Education in Evanston, [llinois, and an M.B.A. magna cum laude in management information
systems and finance from the University of Denver.

Joseph Isaksen, Vice President and Controller

Mr. Isaksen, a CPA and University of Maryland graduate, spent most of his 14 year carcer at
MCI Telecommunications in the Corporate Financial Reporting area. His background also
includes experience as an accounting instructor and audit supervisor. He came to ACSI from
Concert Communications in London, where he served as director of Financial Services for
that company’s subsidiaries in 11 European and Asian countries.

Charles Kallenbach , Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, Western Region

Mr. Kallenbach, an attorney, was most recently with the Washington, DC law firm of
Swidler & Berlin, where he represented international and domestic common carriers and
cable operators, specialized carriers, and information service providers. Freviously, Mr.
Kallenbach was an associate in the DC office of Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue. He is a cum
laude graduate of the University of Pennsylvania and received his law degree from the NYU
School of Law.
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James Falvey , Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, Eastern Region

Mr. Falvey, an attorney, joined ACSI from the Washington, DC law firm of Swidler &
Berlin, where he represented competitive local exchange providers, competitive access
providers, cable operators, and other common carriers in state and federal proceedings
Prior to his employment at Swidler & Berlin, Mr. Falvey was an associate in the
Washington, DC office of Johnson & Gibbs where he practiced antitrust litigation. He is a
cum laude graduate of Cornell University, received his law degree from the University of
Virginia School of Law, and is admitted to practice law in the District of Columbia.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C. 20549

i FORM 10 - QSB

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended: March 31, 1996
Commission File number 00 - 25314

i AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
| (EXACT NAME OF SMALL BUSINESS ISSUER AS SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE £2-1947746
| (State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
| incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

(formerly 05-0440761)

131 National Business Parkway
Annapolis Junction, MD 20701
‘ (Address of Principle Exccutive Offices)

(301) 617-4200
{Issuer's telephone number)

Check whether the issuer (1) has filed all reports required to be filed
by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months
{or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the last 90 days.
YES X NO_

Indicate the Number of shares of the tssuer’s classes of common stock
outstanding as of the latest practicable date.

!.\I'ft' -[- :- ke il sl I 1 I“"II I 1] !qqt:
Common Stock, Par Value $0.01 £h,555,455

[ransitional Small Business Disclosure Format (check one):

YES NO X




AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
FORM 10 - QSB

Index
Part 1. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial (Unaudited)

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets - June 30, 1995
and March 31. 1996

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations - Three
months and nine months ended March 31, 1995 and 1996

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Three
months and nine months ended March 31, 1995 and 1996

Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

[tem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Part [1 Other Information

l[tem 2. Changes in Securities

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
[tem 6. Exhibits and reports on Form 8-K

Signatures

Page 2



Part |
Financial Information
Item | - Financial Statements

American Communications Services, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

June 30, 1995  March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Short Term Investments $ 20,350,791 $154,454,550
Restricted cash 752,000 1,452,000
Accounts receivable, net 350,436 598,799
Other current assets 92,325 729,719
Total current assets 2 552 157,235,068
Networks, furniture and equipment, net 15,567,290 42,737,680
Deferred financing fees and other assets 24123 __8.005.863
Total assets § 37,626,965 $207.978.611
Liabilities, Redeemable Stock, Options and
Warrants, Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,843,167 § 1,749,314
Accrued liabilities 3,648,248 1,801,145
Notes payable 146,083 103,169
Total current liabilities __1.637.498 _3,653.628
Long Term Liabilities
Notes payable 3,652,085 14,054,484
Senior Discount Notes (due 2005) - 64,571,366
Senior Discount Notes (due 20006) - 100,452,832
Other Long Term Liabilities - 670,633
Dividends payable _1.070,985 _J.918.6581
Total liabilities } 12.3 £187,321.624

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed interim financial statement
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American Communications Services, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

June 30, 1995

Liabilities, Redeemable Stock, Options
and Warrants, Minority Interest and
Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Redeemable stock, options and warrants 2.930,778

Minority Interest —194.402

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 186,664
shares designated as 9% Series A-1
Convertible Preferred Stock, authorized
issued and outstanding 186,604
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 277,500
shares authorized and designated as 9%
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock,
227,500 and 277,500 shares, respectively

issued and outstanding 227,500
Common Stock, $0.01 par value,
75,000,000 shares authorized, 5,744,782
and 6,555,455 shares, respectively issued
and outstanding 56,827
Additional paid-in-capital 42,411,448
Accumulated deficit _(20.741,222)
Total stockholders’ equity 22141217
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Stock,
Options and Warrants, Minority Interest
and Stockholders' Equity $ 37,026,965

March 31, 1996
(UNAUDITED)

186,664

277,500

64,934
56,213,198
(38.927,161)
_17.815.135

52079

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed interim financial statement
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American Communications Services, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

(UNAUDITED)
For the three months ended
March 31  March 31,
1993 1996

Revenues $ B7.385 $816,639
Operating Expenses

Network, development

and operations 585,431 1,954,514

Selling, general and

administrative 1,373,368 2,650.263

Non-cash compensation

expense 4,257,464 1,985,765
Depreciation and amortization 118,093 630,004
Total Operating Expenses 6,334,350 7,220,546
Non-operating expenses/(income)

Interest and other income (93 .664) (661.313)

Interest and other expense 85897 3,500,624

Debt conversion expense 5,000 0
Net loss before minonty iaterest 6,244,204 9,243,218
Minority interest (1.495) (102,074
Net loss 6,239,709 9,041,144
Preferred stock dividends/aceretion 618,644 Q55489
set loss to common stockholders  $6,868.353  § 10,096,633
Net loss per common/common ($1.31) (S1.5:4)
cquivalent share
Average number ol common/common
equivalent shares outstanding S.2:45,104 0.336,712

For the nine months ended
March 31, March 31,

1995 1996

595631 $1.895.812

1,220,125 4,796,067
2615921 5,929,996

4,866,095 3,190,184
140,172 1413.86]

8,842,313 15,330,108
(189.474) (1 438,817)
214900 374,884
384,983 0

9,357,093 18,370,363

(16,155) (190.668)
9340938, 8,179,695

028,644 2847696

£0.069_582 21.027.39]

($2.17)  (53.48)

4,390,182 6,046,136

See accompanying notes to unaudited coadensed interim tinancial statements
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American Communications Services, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Nows Irom operaling activites

Net loss -

Adjustments (o reconcile net loss to nel
cash provided Dy (used i) oparating actrvites
Depreciation and amortization
Naoncash debl CONVersion expansg
Noncash intarast expanss
Provision for doubtful accounts
Loss atinbutable to minonty interest
Honcash compensation
Changes i operating assets and Labilities
Restncted cash related lo operaling aclivilies
Trade accounts receivable
Other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Other accrued labidibes
Mol cash provided by (used in) operating activibes

Cash flows ‘rom investiing activities
Putchase of net assets of Pwedamont Telepornt
Investrment i office egquipmant
Investment n network, equipment and software
Investment n Markelable Securbes - avadable for sale
Hestncted cash related to network activibies

Net cash used in nvesiment actnilies

Casn flows from financing activities
Issuance of preferred stock. net of offenng costs and
convers.an of bndge financing
Deterred financing fees
Issuance of Senor discount Noles and warmanta
lssuance of notes payable
Warrant or stock oplion eaercises
Proceeds lrom sale of mungity interest n subsdianes
Isswance of slockholder ncles payable
Payment of notes payable
Payments of capdal lease obligation
Het cash fliow from financing actvities

Mt increase/(decrease ) n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash Equwalents - begmning of perod
Cash and cash equivalents - end of pe..od

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow nformation
Interes! p.l-ﬂ on all ndebledness

Supplemental disciosure of noncash mveshing
ang financing act abes

Excludes hurmilure acquuaed under capdal leases
Dresdends accrued i connecton with preferred slock
increaso (deciogse) in iedeemable slock opbon
and wairanis cosls
Brdge fmancing converted (0 equidy n connechon with
prrvate placemeni

Sere accompanywy noles 10 unawdded condensed consoldated mlenm financial statements

(UNAUDITED)

I"age &

For tha three For the thiee Fot the nine For the nine
mont' panod manih petod month e PRGN pe e
ended endad ended ended
March 31,1992 Oarch 31 1996 _March 31,1995 Mach 1. 19
16,228 709) § T 147 144) 5 (9,340 528) $ (18,179 69y,
118,083 630 004 140,172 1413851
5.000 584 985
3500 A24 8374 BB
30691 59 657
(4 49%) (102,074) (16.155) (190 BE8,
4257 404 1,985 165 4 866,095 3 190 184
104 063
(76.003) (T2.820) (82.459) 1308.060)
(184 526) (637,304
(55,129} (238,893
530415 (3.296 545) 1,389 375 (2,093,853
11.059,970) (8.176.474) (2.170.807)  (12.218.147)
{20.000)
(14.812) (282.320) {73,402) (1.710.364)
(4,047 586) (10,297 .369) (10,059,373 (26.526,520)
—(4QE2oR) _ (1057968%) (10627 B4%) (28 938 BA4)
1131 902 4725 1A
(2,588 305) (7,839 1109
65 565429 166 084,179
752,501 2997 an 1,640,784 11,176,201
41,761 B0 674 348,326 raan
109475 A7TB 474
250,000
11,633,973) {145,083}
(3817} r (17 448) |
TOOGA7 . 6035609 12067078 175238790
(4332121} AT 2749 448 (731,596) 134 103.750
- GB70922 107175104 21001 0330791
U - M- ) I - ¥ |- X -\t —- X R R R
b S, -
A 0205 5 950403 - 28,544 L
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements
{1)Basis of Presentation and Related Matters

Buasiy of Presentation

As of the end of and for the three and nine month periods ended March 31, 1996,
the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements
include the accounts of American Communications Services, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, all of which, excluding the Louisville, Kentucky, Fort Worth and E|
Paso, Texas, and Columbia and Greenville, South Carolina subsidiaries, are
wholly owned (the Louisville, Kentucky subsidiary was also not wholly owned
for the three month period ending March 31, 1995). The Company has a

92.75 percent ownership interest in these subsidiaries. Such statements, including
comparative information for the three and nine month periods ended March 31,
1995, where applicable, have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for intenm financial information and with the instructions to
Form 10-QSB and item 310({b) of Regulation S-B. The unaudited condensed
consolidated statements should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company's annual report on
Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) on October |3, 1995, as amended. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals)
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All matenal
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Results for the interim penods are not indicative of the results to be expected for
the full year.

RBusiness

American Communications Services, Inc. ("ACSI” or the "Company”™) is a
competitive local exchanpe carmer ("CLEC") that constructs and vperates digital
fiber optic networks and ofters local telecommumnications services to long distance
companies (interexchange carmiers or "1XCs") and business and governiment end
users in the southern US.

I'he Company currently provides non-switched dedicated services including
special access, switched trarsport and private line services. These services
venerally are offered by the Company in competition with incumbent local
exchange telephone companies ("ILEC's") and are delivered with a high level of
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC,
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation and Related Matters (CONTINUED)

Finmanc

network reliability. The Company also offers high speed data services including
ATM, high speed Local Area Network (“LAN) to LAN applications and multiple
intemne! services. In addition to the data and non-switched dedicated services, the
Company has begun offering on a limited basis enhanced voice messaging
services (o small and mid -size business and government end users. Successtul
marketing of these enhanced voice messaging and high-speed data services will
not only provide the Company with increased revenues, but also with an expanded
end user customer base and relevant marketing expenience that can be leveraged
into the offering of local switched services.

As of March 31, 1996, ACSI had eleven operational networks and an additional
nine networks under construction, most of which are expected to be operational
by mid - 1996. As of March 31, 1996, ACSI had applied for authority to provide
switched local exchange telecommunications services in Alabama, Arizona,
Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, Nevada and New Mexico. Since March 31, 1996,
the Company has filed for switched services authority in Texas. Asof March 31,
1996, ACSI had received authority to provide intrastate dedicated services in
Alabama, Arkansas, Georgia, Kentucky, New Mexico, Nevada, South Carolina
and Texas and had an application pending in Mississippi. Since March 31, 1996,
the Company has filed for intrastate dedicated services in Louisiana. In
Tennessee, ACSI has received authority to provide intrastate telecommunications
services including both switched local exchange ¢nd dedicated
telecommunications services. The Company intends to have 30 networks in
service or under construction during the third calendar quarter of 1996, with all 30
networks operational by mid - 1997. To date, management believes that it has
been able to deploy its capital most efficiently by constructing, rather than
acquiring, fiber optic networks. By constructing all of its networks, ACSI believes
it has realized significant cost savings, created considerable networking
etficiencies and ensured quality. reliability and high operating standards.

iy Activities
(On March 26, 1996 the Company completed the private placement of

S 120,000,000 of 12-3/4% Senior Discount Notes due 2006 (the 2006 Notes™)
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation and Related Matters (CONTINUED)

under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”). The
Company received net proceeds of approximately $61,800,000 from the sale of
the 2006 Notes. The Company has commenced an exchange offer pursuant to a
registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company with the SEC pursuant
to which the holders of the original 2006 Notes are entitled to exchange such 2006
Naotes for newly-issued notes which are identical to the original 2006 Notes and
which, with cenain exceptions, are freely transferable under the Act. The
exchange offer expires June 25, 1996. The 2006 Notes will accrete at a rate of 12-
3/4% compounded semi-annually, to an aggregate principal amount of
£120,000,000 by April 1, 2001. Thereafter, interest on the 2006 Notes will accrue
at the annual rate of 12-3/4% and will be payable in cash semi-annually on April |
and October 1, commencing on October 1, 2001. The Notes will mature on April
1, 2006.

On November 14, 1995, the Company completed a private offering of 190,000
Units (the “Units™) consisting of $190,000,000 principal amount of 13% Senior
Discount Notes due 2005 (the “2005 Notes”) and warrants to purchase 2,432,000
shares of the Company's common stock at a price of $7.15 per share (the
“Warrants™). On March 27, 1996, the Company completed an exchange offer of
newly-issued 2005 Notes for all of the original 2005 Notes pursuant to a
registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC. The new 2005 Notes are
identical to the original 2005 Notes and, with certain exceptions, are freely
transterable under the Act. Resale of the Warrants, and the issuance of common
stock upon exercise of the Warrants, have been registered on a registration
statement on Form 5-3 filed with the SEC. The 2005 Notes will accrete to an
agpregate principal amount of $190,000,000 by November 1, 2000, after which
cash interest will be due on a semi-annual basis. The Company received net
proceeds of approximately $96.826,000 from the sale of the Units. At the time of
the closing of the Units, the Company also received net proceeds ol
approximately $4,725,000 from the private sale to ING Equity Partners, L.P. [,
(“ING™) ot 50,000 shares of its 9% Series B-4 Convertible Preferred Stock (the
“Series B-4 Preferred Stock) and the exercise by ING of warrants to purchase
214,286 shares of common stock pursuant to the June 1995 Sernies B Convertible
Ireterred Stock private placement. The Company will continue 1o use the
proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Notes and Warrants and the Series B4
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC,
Notes 1o Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation and Related Matters (CONTINUED)

Preferred Stock and the proceeds of the 2006 Notes to complete its 30 city
business plan, as discussed below , and to fund negpative operating cash flow until
break-cven.

Other Information

In February, 1996, the President signed into law comprehensive
telecommunications reform legislation, The Telecommunications Act ot 1996
{1996 Act”). The new law requires all ILECs to unbundle their local network
clements. Morcover, the 1996 Act requires all local exchange carriers (“LECs™)
to interconnect their facilities and equipment. Such provisions enable the
Company to obtain critical connections to ILEC facilities. In addition, LECs are
obligated to provide local telephone number portability and dialing parity upon
request and make their local services available for resale by competitors. Under
the legislation, LECs also have to allow competitors nondiscriminatory access to
pole attachments, conduit space and other nghts-of-way. Morcover, states are
prohibited from disallowing local competition, although they ure allowed to
regulate such competition,

The Company believes that each of these requirements is likely to enhance
competition in the local telecommunications marketplace, and simplity the
process of switching from [LEC services to those otfered by CLECs. However,
the legislation also offers important benefits to the ILECs. The ILECs are granted
substantial new pricing flexibility and Regional Bell Operating Companies
(“RBOCs" ) regain the ability to provide long distance services and obtain new
rights to provide certain cable TV services, These changes enhance the
compeutive position of the ILECs,

(2) Subsequent Events

On April 11, 1996, AT& T announced agreements with ACSI and four other
compantes allowing business customers in 70 cities to connect with AT&T's
network for some services as an alternative to access provided by [LECs. Terms
of the agreements were not disclosed | including the assignment of cities for
service to the companies. ACSI expects to have networks in 22 of the 70 cities
covered by the AT&T announe *ment.
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Item 2 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Duning 1995, ACSI undertook an aggressive plan to build networks in mid-size markets
across the Southern and Southwestern United States. As of March 31, 1996, the
Company had eleven operational networks and an additional nine networks under
construction, most of which are expected to be operational by mud - 1990, The Company
intends to have a total of 30 networks in service or under construction during the third
calendar quarter of 1996, with all 30 networks operational by mid 1997, The preceding
statements are forward looking in nature and the Company s ability to construct and
operate its networks within such time frames may be affected by circumstances which the
Company may not control, such as an inability to secure or maintain necessary franchises
or rights of way, or an inability to attract a customer base sufficient to justify constructing:
or operating in a market.

ACSI Networks

Currently

Operational Under Construgtion
Albuquergue, NM Amanllo, TX
Columbia, SC Baton Rouge, LA
El Paso, TX Birmingham, AL
Fort Worth, TX Charleston, SC
Greenville, 5C Columbus, GA
Lexington, KY Irving, TX

Little Rock, AR Jackson, M5
Louisville, KY Las Vegas, NV
Mobile, AL Spartanburg, SC

Montgomery, AL
Tuecson, AZ

The costs associated with the initial construction and operation of a network may vary
greatly, in large part because of market vanations in geographic and demographic
characteristics. To date, management believes that it has been able to deploy its capital
most etficiently by constructing, rather than acquiring, fiber optic networks. By
constructing all of its networks, ACSI believes it has realized significant cost savings,
created considerable networking efficiencies and ensured quality, reliabality and high
aperatng standards. In addition to capital expenditure requirements, the Company incurs
sales and marketing expenses (including sales commissions ), operating and right-ot-way
costs and property taxes and. in certain markets, franchise fees. Certain of these direct
pre-operating costs, to the extent they are related to the construction of networks, are
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capitahized until the networks are substantially complete, at which ime they are then
expensed as incurred thereafter. These costs vary depending on the size of the market, the
length of time required to build out the network and the rate of growth of the custonier
hase.

[he Company is introducing enhanced voice messaging and high-speed dma services and
plans to roll out local switched services in its target markets during the fourth calendar
quarter of 1996, The preceding sentence is forward looking in nature and the
introduction of locai switched services in the Company's markets may be affected by,
among other things, the time required to conclude reasonable econvmically -ctTicient
imerconnection agreements with incumbent [LEC”s that operate in the Company's
markets and to obtain state public utility commission (“"PUC™) approvals.

As of March 31, 1996, ACSI had applied for authonty to provide switched local
exchange telecommunications services in seven states, and had been granted authority i
one. The Company plans to complete filings for switched services authonty dunng the
calendar quarter ended June 30, 1996 in all states in which it has networks in operation v
under construction.

Ihe Company began its interconnection negotiations in March, 1996 with [LECs in state
in which it then had networks in operation or under construction, The 1996 Act requires
that interconnection between incumbent [LECs and new entrants like the Company
initially be resolved through private negotiation. If agreement is reached, it must be
submitted to the state PUC for approval and the PUC has 90 days to act. If negotatiens
are not successful, the parties have a statutory right to seek arbitration by PUCs of
outstanding disputes during the 135-160 days following the imual request for
interconnection and the PUC must resolve all disputes within nine months of the imitial
interconnection requests, and then approve the arbitrated agreement within 30 days

Thus, the Company may begin seeking arbitration of interconnection disputes in the July-
August time frame. In this regard, FCC rules interpreting the interconnection obligations
ol the 1996 Act are expected by August 8, 1996, which will establish national gurdelines.
PUC resolution of outstanding disputes involving the Company s initial interconnection
requests should be completed by the end ot January 1997

In rolling out its new services, the Company will incur additional capital expenditures
and operating costs. The amount of these costs will vary based on the number off
customers served and the actual services provided to the customers. The Company has
reorganized into three business units (Network Services, Advanced Data Services and
Switched Services) in order to provide specific focus to cach service and maximize cross-
marketing opportunities. Although the Company has generated revenues from eleven of
its fiber optic networks, on a consolidated basis it is still incurring negative opeiating and
mvesting cash flows due, in large part, to the funding requirements for its networks
vurrently under construction and to imitiate operations for 1ts enhanced voice, data
services and other operations,

Page 12




Results of Operations
."?(' Ve

Duning the three months ended March 31, 1996 (third quarter fiscal 1996) and the nine months ended
March 31, 1996 (the “first three quarters of fiscal 1996") . the Company recorded revenues and had
operational networks compared to the three months ended March 31, 1995 (third quarter fiscal 19935)
and the nine months ended March 31, 1995 (the “first three quarters of fiscal 1995™) and to other prior
periods as follows:

Revenues Operational

Networks
Three months ended March, 1995 $ 87385 4
Three months ended March, 1996 £ 816,639 11
Nine months ended March, 1995 $ 95631 4
Nine months ended March, 1996 £1.895.812 1

hese revenues were substantially derived from the Company’s provision of dedicated
special access services. The recurring monthly run-rate revenue at the end of March
1996 was $408,959,

Other network information 1s as follows:

Network Network Buildings Voice

Route Fiber on the Grade Full Time

Miles Miles Network Eﬂ“i!"]]l'ﬂ!ﬁ Emﬂ.lﬂ}.ﬁl‘}:
As of the period ended:
March 31, 1995 11 1,031 24 16,512 59
March 31, 1996 200 G 466 133 125,208 {43

The terms “Voice Grade Equivalents (*VGEs')” or “Voice Grade Equivalent Circuits™ are
commonly used measures of telephone service equivalent to one telephone line (64 kilobits
of bandwidth) actually billed to a customer.

Fotal Operaninge Expenses

Network development and operations expenses for the first three quarters of fiscal 1996
increased to $4,796,667 from $1,220,125 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995,
retlecting the Company's significant increases in personnel, network development and
r.on-payroll operating expenses. These increased costs were associated with developing
and establishing centralized engineenng, circuit provisiomng and network management
functions, constructing and initially operating the Company's competitive access
networks, and the performance of market feasibility, engineering, nghts-ot-way and
revulatory evaluations in additional target cities, Related personnel costs
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mncreased 1o $1,501,959 in the first three quanters of fiscal 1996 from approximately
$791,900 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995, when the Company was operating
primartly as a development stage company. For the third quarter of fiscal 1996, network
development and operations expenses increased to $1,954,514 from $ 585,431 in the
third quarter of fiscal 1995 related personnel costs increased to $597,842 from
approximately $352,900 and other operating costs increased to $1,186,581 from
approximately $232,500 for the corresponding periods, as the Company expanded its
programs for nghts-of-way and indefeasible rights-of use ("IRUS™) with significant
partners.

In the first three quarters of fiscal 1996, selling, general and administrative expenses
increased to $5,929,996 from $2,615,921 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995, Related
personnel costs increased to $3,622,229 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1996 from
$1,909,800 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995, and corresponding operating costs
increased to $2,307,767 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1996 from $483,300 the first
three quarters of fiscal 1995, This increase reflected costs associated with the Company's
efforts in expanding its national and local city sales, marketing and adiministrative statfs,
as well as increased legal and other consulting expenses associated with 1ts aggressive
programs for obtaining regulatory approvals and certifications and providing quality
network services. Reflecting these increased activities, third quarter fiscal 1996 selling,
general and administrative expenses increased to $2,650,263 from $1,373,368 in the third
quarter fiscal 1995. Related personnel costs increased to $1,463,682 in the third quarter
fiscal 1996 from $1,079.100 in the third quarter fiscal 1995, and corresponding operating
costs increased to $1,186,581 in the third quanter fiscal 1996 from $249.800 in the third
quarter fiscal 1995.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $1.413.861 in the first three quarters
of fiscal 1996 from $140,172 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995 and to $630,004 in
the third quarter fiscal 1996 from $118,093 in the third quarter fiscal 1995. Duning the
third quarter of fiscal 1996 the Company increased its capital assets by approximately
$42.737.680, representing an increase of such assews of more than 293 % over the end of
the 1irst three quarters of fiscal 1995. Non-cash stock compensation expense decreased to
$3.190,184 for the first three quarters of fiscal 1996 from $4,866,095 for the first three
quarters of fisc.! 1995 and to $1,985,765 for the third quarter fiscal 1996 from
$4.257.464 for the third quarter fiscal 1995 This expense retlects the Company's accrual
ol non-cash costs for options and warrants granted to key executives, employees and
others arising from the difference between the exercise price and the valuation prices used
by the Company to record such costs and from the vesting of those options and warrants
Certain of these options had put rights and other factors that required variable plan
accounting in fiscal 1994 and fiscal 1995 but, at the end of fiscal 1995, the Company
reneg siated contracts with certain ol 1its otficers., csmbiishing a himit of $2,300,000 on
the Company's put right obligations with respect to those contracts. Duning the quarter
ended September 30, 1995, this limitatic 1 was reduced further to $2,000,000.

Page 14




Interest and other income increased to § 1,438,817 for the tirst three quanters of fiscal
1996 from $ 189,474 in the first three quarters in fiscal 1995 and to $661,313 for the third
liscal quarter of 1996 from $ 93,664 in the third fiscal quarter of 1995, Interest expense
and other costs increased to $6,374,884 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1996 from
$214.900 in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995 and increased to $3,500,624 in the
third quarter fiscal 1996 from $85,897 in the third quarter fiscal 1995. These increases in
interest income and expenscs reflected the significant increase in available funds tfrom the
Company's sale of its 9% Series B Preferred Stock in June and November 1995 and its
13% Senior Discount Notes (the “2005 Notes”) in November, 1995, The increase in
interest and other expenses reflected the accrual of interest related to the 2005 Notes and
the Company's increased borrowings under its secured financing facility with AT&T
Credit Corporation (the “AT&T Credit Facility™). Payments of principal and interest on
the AT&T Credit Facility will begin in calendar 1997, payments of interest on the 2005
Notes do not begin until November, 2000 and payments of interest of the Company's

12 3/4% Senior Discount Notes due 2006 (the 2006 Notes™) do not begin until October
2001.

Debt conversion expense in the first three quarters of fiscal 1995 totaled $5,000,
reflecting expenses incurred in connection with the conversion of certain of the
Company’s debt to equity in September 1994, AT&T Credit Corporation's minority
interest in the Company's operating subsidiaries for which it provided funding, reduced
uperating losses by approximately $190,668 and $102,074 for the first three quarters and
third quarter of fiscal 1996, respectively, and by $16.155 and $4,495 for the first three
quarters and third quarter fiscal 1995, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company has been dependent upon external financing to fund its operations. The
primary sources of funds used to finance the building of existing networks and the
completion of new targeted networks have been the Company’s two Preferred Stock
private placements completed in October 1994 and June and November 1995, the AT&T
Credit Facility, the private offering in November 1995 of 190,000 Units (the “Units™)
consisting of $190,000,000 principal amount of 2005 Notes and warrants to purchase
2,432,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at a price of $7.15 per share (the
“Warrants™) and a private offering in March 1996 of $120,000,000 of 2006 Notes. The
Company obtained approximately (i) $77,000,000 in financing and financing
commitments from the Preferred Stock private placements and the AT&T Credit Facility.
(i) $96.826,000 from the private offering of the 2005 Notes and (iii) $61,800,000 from
the private otfering of the 2006 Notes. The 2005 Notes will accrete at a rate of 13% to an
apgrepate principal amount of $190,000,000 by November 1, 2000 after which cash
interest will be due on a semi-annual basis, The 2006 Notes will accrete at a rate of 12-
347 compounded semi-annually, to an aggregate principal amount ot $120 million by
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Apnl 1, 2001, Thereafter. interest on the 2006 Notes will accrue at the annual rate ol 12-
3/4% and will be payable in cash semi-annually on Apni | and October 1, commencing
on October 1, 2001, The Notes will mature on April 1, 2006, Payments of principal and
interest on the AT&T Credit Facility will begin in calendar 1997,

The Company intends to continue to use these funds towards the completion of the
Company's 30-city business plan including the development and constrction of a total of
thirty fiber optic networks, the further development and introduction of new services
including enhanced voice messaging, high-speed data and local switched services, for
expansion of the Company's existing networks and to fund negative operating cash flow
until break-even. The Company estimates the total capital requirements for
implementation of its 30-city business plan will aggregate between $250 and $275
million through fiscal 2000. ACSI will consider the sale of debt or equity securities or
increases in existing credit facilities to fund the completion of its plan. Any acquisiuuns
that the Company might consider are likely to require additional equity or debt financing,
which the Company will seek to obtain as required. Certain covenants in the Indentures
for the 2005 Notes and the 2006 Notes may restrict the Company 's ablity 1o incur
additional indebtedness.
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PART 11 OTHER INFORMATION

ltem 2.

(i)

Cl in Securiti

In response to voting rights issues raised by the Nasdaq Stock Market statl
concerning the Company's governance structure, the Company amended s
Certificate of Incorporation, which amendments were approved by the
stockholders of the Company at the annual meeting held on January 26, 1996 (the
“Annual Meeting"), such that the Board generally will be composed of seven
members, four of whom will be elected by the holders of the Company's Common
Stock and three of whom will be elected by the holders of the Company's
Preferred Stock, Pursuant to the Governance Agreement dated November 8, 1995
between the Company and certain holders of its Preferred Stock (the "Governance
Agreement”), until June 26, 1996, the Board was to consist of eleven members,
four of whom were elected by holders of the Common Stock and seven of whom
were elected by holders of the Preferred Stock. On February 26, 1996, the
Company and the other parties to the Governance Azreement signed the
Supplemental Governance Agreement pursuant to which the Board was reduced
to seven members, four of whom were elected by holders of the Common Stock
and three of whom were elected by holders of the Preferred Stock. When the
Board was reduced 1o seven members on February 26, 1996, Richard A. Kozak,
Steven G. Chrust, Frederick Galland and Cathy Markey, all of whom had been
elected by the holders of the Company's Preferred Stock, resigned.

At the Annual Meeting, a number of resolutions were approved which amended
the Company's Certificate of Incorporation. First, the stockholders approved a
proposal to amend the Certificate of Incorporation to allow the board of Directors
to amend the Company’'s by-laws, in addition to the stockholders, as provided
under Delaware law. Second, the stockholders approved a proposal to amend the
Company’'s Centificate of Incorporation to clanty that the prohibition on
cumulative voting did not apply to holders of the Company's Preferred Stock.
Third. the stockholders approved a proposal to change the definition of
“triggening events” which cause the dividend rate to increase and the size of the
Board of Directors to increase upon the occurrence of certain events. Fourth, the
stockholders approved a proposal to amend the Certificate of Incorporation to
provide for voting by the holders of the Preferred Stock as a separate class to
approve certain matters, such as the authorization or creation of a new class or
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i(b)

additional classes ol stock on a par with or senior to the Preferred Stock, the
amendment of the Company's Certificate of Incorporation or by-laws, a merper,
consolidation or combination with another business involving the Company, and
the sale of substantially all the assets of the Company. Finally, the stockholders
approved an amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation 1o permit
the Company to reissue Preferred Stock acquired by the Company through the
conversion of Preferred Stock or by other means,

Pursuant to the Indentures for the 2005 Notes and 2006 Notes, the Company may
not make certain Restnicted Payments (as defined in the Indentures) unless certain
financial covenants are satisfied. Accordingly, under this restriction, the
Company may not pay dividends on the Company's Stock unless certain
financial ratios are satisfied. A copy of the Indenture for the 2005 Notes was filed
as an exhibit to a registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on
December 12, 1995 (file No.33-80305), and a copy of the Indenture for the 2006
Notes was filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Repont on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on Apnil 11, 1996
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Item 4.

{a1)

th)

(c)

1)

(ii)

(1)

(iv)

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
An Annual Mecting of stockholders was held on January 26, 1996

I'he directors elected by the holders of the Company's Common Stock were
Anthony J. Pompliano, Benjamin R. Giess, Peter C. Bentz, and George M.
Middlemas. The directors clected by the holders of the Company's Preferred
Stock were Christopher L. Rafferty, Olivier L. Trouveroy, Edwin M. Banks,
Steven G, Chrust, Richard A. Kozak, Frederick Galland and Cathy Markey.

The matters voted upon at the annual ineeting and the results of the voung are set
forth below. All of the proposals discussed below were approved by the
stockholders at the annual meeting. Brokers’ non-votes were not applicable.

The stockholders voted 4,099,222 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares
of Preferred Stock in favor, 215 shares of Commoa Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to the Company's Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from
30,000,000 to 75,000,000,

The stockholders voted 4,007,050 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 79,887 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's
Centificate of Incorporation to confer the power to adopt, amend or repeal the by-
laws on the board of directors in addition to the stockholders:

The stockholders voted 4,085,702 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in tavor, 1035 shares of Common Stock and U shares of Preterred
Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's Certificate of
Incorporation to clarify that the prohibition on cumulative voting applies zolely to
the Company's C ymmon Stock:

I'he stockholders voted 4,085,702 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 13,735 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Praterred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's Certificate
of Incorporation to further limit personal liability of directors and to provide
indemnification for the Company’s officers, directors. employees and agents;
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(vi)

{vi1)

(Vi)

(i)

F'he stockholders voted 4,081,544 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares ot
'referred Stock in favor, 17,893 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's Certificate
of Incorporation to alter the size and voting of the Board;

The stockholders voted 4,085,702 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares ol
Preferred Stock in favor, 1235 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's Certificate
of Incorporation to alter the structure of the committees of the Boards of Directors
of the Company's subsidiaries and to amend the provision for payment of certain
expenses of Directors;

The stockholders voted 4,086,722 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares ol
Preferred Stock in favor, 215 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company’s Centificate
of Incorporation to alter the definition of tnggering events which cause the
dividend rate of the Preferred Stock and the size of the Board to increase;

The stockholders voted 4,082,555 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 16,882 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company’s Ceruificate
of Incorporation to alter the class voting rights of the Preferred Stock;

The stockholders voted 4,081,735 shares of Common Steck and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 17,702 <hares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's Certificate
of Incorporation to eliminate the provision prohibiting the Company from
reissuing Preferred Stock acquired by the Company:

The stockholders voted 4.086.937 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect te the proposal to amend the Company’s by-laws to
conform the by-laws to the Ceruficate of Incorporation with respect to the calling
of special meetings of the stockholders;
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{X)

(xi1)

(x11)

[XIv)

IXV)

(Xvi)

The stockholders voted 4,099,216 shares of Common stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 221 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and (0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's by-laws 1o
conform the by-laws to the Certificate of Incorporation with respect to voting with
respect to the Company's Preferred Stock and Directors;

The stockholders voted 4,099,216 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 221 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstuining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company s by-laws to
conform the by-laws to the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, with respect
to the size and voting of the Board,

The stockholders voted 4,099,437 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's by-laws to
conform the by-laws to the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, with respect
to class voling in connection with board elections and to provide for the removal
and replacement of Directors in accordance therewith;

The stockholders voted 4,099,216 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 215 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock against and 6 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's by-laws to
conform the by-laws 1o the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, with respect
to the membership criteria of the Compensation and Audit Committees of the
Board;

The stockholders voted 4,070,064 shares of Commuon Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preterred Stock in tavor, 29,373 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's by-laws to
expand indemnific. 1on of the officers, directors, employees and agents of the
Company;

The stockholders voted 4,008,055 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preterred Stock in favor, 91.367 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares Preferred
Stock against and 13 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred Stock
abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company’s by-laws to
contorm the by-laws to the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, with respect
to conferring the power to adopt, amend or repeal the by-laws on the Board in
addition to the stockholders;
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(xvir)

{(xviil)

1X1%)

(XX)

I'he stockholders voted 4,073,217 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 13,720 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares Preferred
Stock against and 12,500 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to amend the Company's 1994 Stock
Option Plan to increase the number of shares of Common stock reserved tor
issuance upon exercise of options granted under the 1994 Plan from 710,000 to
1,910,000 to permit discretionary grants of options to independent directors to
eliminate the provision which provides that formula grants of options to
independent directors become exercisable one year from the date of grant;

The stockholders voted 4,081,550 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 17,887 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the proposal to ratify the Indemnity Agreements
with current officers and directors of the Company: and

The stockholders voted 4,082,770 shares of Common Stock and 447,606 shares of
Preferred Stock in favor, 16,667 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares-_ ¢
Preferred Stock against and 0 shares of Common Stock and 0 shares of Preferred
Stock abstaining with respect to the ratification of the selection of KPMG Peat
Marwick LLP, Independent Certified Public Accountants, to audit the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the fiscal year ending June
30, 1996,

I'he stockholders voted for the nominees to the Board of Directors of the
Company as follows:

A) Anthony J. Pompliano, 4,080,260 shares of Common Stock in favor,
19,177 shares withheld.

(Y] Benjamin P. Giess, 4,080,260 shares of Common Stock in favor, 19,177
shares withheld,

) Peter C. Bentz, 4,080,260 shares of Common stock in favor, 19,177 shares
withheld.
1 George M. Middlemas, 4,080,260 shares of Common Stock in favor,

19,177 shares withheld.

1) Christopher L. Rafferty, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0
shares withheld.
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F)

)

H)

§]

1)

K)

Olivier L. Trouveroy, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0
shares withheld.

Ldwin M, Bunks, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0 shares
withheld.

Steven G. Chrust, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in tavor, and 0 shares
withheld.

Richard A. Kozak, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0
shares withheld,

Fredenck Galland, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0
shares withheld.

Cathy Markey, 447,606 shares of Preferred Stock in favor, and 0 shares
withheld.
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[tem 6. Exhibits and reports on Form 8-K

(1)  Exhibits (numbered in accordance with [tem 601 of Regulation S-K)

Exhibit Page
1.1 Computation of Primary Net Income

Per Share E-1
27.0 Financial Data Schedule E-3

(b)  Reports on Form 8-K

On March 11, 1996, the Company filed with the Commission a Current
Report on Form 8-K dated February 29, 1996, to announce the possible
underwritten public offering of S million shares of the Company's Common
Stock, the proceeds of which would be used to fund the Company’s 30-city
network plan and implementation of its local and switched services
husiness.

On April 11, 1996, the Company filed with the Commission a Current
Report on Form 8-K dated March 26, 1996, to announce the completion of
the private placement of $120,000,000 of the Company’s 12 3/4 % Senior
Discount Notes due 2006.
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Signatures

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

icari C stk Servicne |

{Registrant)

Mayv 14, 1996 [s/ Richard A, Kozak
(Richard A. Kozak, President and CEO)

May 14, 1994 '/ Harry J. D" Andrea
{Harry J. D'Andrea, Chief Financial Officer)
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Appendix A to ltem 601(c) of Regulation S-K
Commercial and industnal Companies
Article 5 of regulation S-X

Period type Nine months

Fiscal year end June 30, 1996
- PPerniod end March 31, 1990
5-02(1) Cash and cash items $ 155,906,550
5-02(2) Marketable securities
5-02(3)a)l) Notes and accounts receivable - trade 688,209
5-02(4) Allowance for doubtful accounts (89.410)
5-02(6) Inventory 729,719
5-02(9) Total current assels 157,235,068
5-02(13) Property, plant and equipment 52,403,469
5-02(14) Accumulated depreciation (1,719,926)
5-02(18) Total Assets 207,978,611
5-02(21) Total current liabilities 3,653,628
5-02(22) Bonds, mortgages and similar debt 183,667,996
5-02(28) Preferred stock - mandatory redemption 186,664
5-02(29) Preferred stock - no mandatory redemption 277,500
5-02(3) (ommon stock 64,934
5-02(31) Other stockholders” equity 20,127,889
5-02(32) Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 207,978,611
-03(b)1{a) Net sales of tangible products
5-03(b)1 Total revenues 1.895.812
5-03(b)2(a) Cost of tangible goods sold 4,736,370
5-03(b)2 Total costs and expenses applicable to sales 5,929,996

and revenues

5-053(b)3 Other costs and expenses 3,165,228
5-03(b)5 Provision for doubtful accounts and notes 59,697
5-03(b)(8) Interest and amortization of debt discount 6,374,884
5-03(b)(10) LLoss before taxes and other items (18,370,363)
5-03(by(11) Income tax expense 0
5-03(bjt 1) lLoss continuing operations 0
3-03tby13) Discontinued operations 0
5-03(b)17) Extraordinary items 0
5-03(b) 18) Cumulative effect - changes in accounting principles 0
3-03(b) 19} Net loss (18,370.363)
S5-03(h N 20y [Larmings per share - primary (3.97)

[

D3 (b} 20y [armings per share - fully diluted N/A
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ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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| #100, Annapolis Junction, Marvland 20701

(Address of principal executive offices) (£ip Code)

Issuer's telephone number: (301) 617-4200

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(h) of the Exchange Act None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act
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(Tile of Class)
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The aggregate market value of the Common Stock, par value $ 01 per share, held by
non aftiliates based upon the average of the bid and asked prices as reported on the NASDAQ
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Item 1. BUSINESS

Overview

American Communications Services, Inc. (the "Company”™ or "ACSI™) 15 a rapidly growing
competitive access provider ("CAP") that constructs and operates digutal fiber optic networks and
offers local telecommunications services to interexchange carners ("IXCs™) and business and
government end users in the southern U.S. The Company provides non-swilched dedicated services
generally at a discount to those of the local exchange carriers ("LECs™), and delivers such services
with a high level of network reliatmlity. In addition to dedicated services, the Company is testing
and . subject to its receipt of necessary additional financing, plans to offer a wide range of enhanced
voice messaging and high-speed data services to business and government end users, Successful
marketing of these enhanced voice messaging and high-speed data services will not only provide the
Company with increased revenues, but also with an expanded end user customer base and relevam
marketing experience that can be leveraged into offering local switched services. ACSI's
management team includes several proneers in the development of the CAP industry with
demonstrated expertise in successfully deploying fiber optic networks and aggressively managing
operations (o generate positive operating cash flow

Currzntly, ACSI has five operational networks and an addinonal seven networks under
construction, most of which are expected to be operational by early 1996 Subject 1o s receipt of
necessary additional financing, the Company intends to have 30 networks in service by lawe 1997
To date, management believes that it has been able to deploy its capital most efficiently by
comstructing, rather than acquiring, Niber optic networks,

ACSI Networks

Targeted
to be
Currently Operational by
Operational Early 1996
Columba Albuquerque
Fort Wonh Charleston
Greenville k1 Paso
Lutle Rock lexington
Lousville Mobile
Montgomen
Tucsan

Industry

The deregulation of the telecommunications industry and technological change have resulted
in an increasingly information intensive business environment. The competitive arena has been
repositioned such that the ability to access information quickly is critical to the success of both
business and government end users. Both voice and data commumcations traffic of large business
and government end users have increased significantly . In addition, deregulation has led to the
increase in competition, most recently in the local exchange markets CAPs such as ACS! have
sought to take advantage of the opportunities presented by increased competiion and the demand o
timely and reliable telecommunications services

Several factors have served to promote counpetition in the local exchanpe market, including
(1) rapidly growing customer demand for an alternative to the LEC monopoly, spurred partly by the




growth in demand for telecommunications services in these regions. During the last four years,
three out of every five new jobs were created in the southern regions. Additionally, between
1989 and 1994, the rate of access line growth in the southern regions of the U.S. exceeded the
national average by approximalely two and one-half times. The Company believes that the first
operational CAP network in a market generally has a competitive advantage in attracting
customers willing to swiich from the LEC. Management believes that the Company will be the
first CAP 1o offer services in nine of its twelve markets that are expected to be operational by
early 1996,

Building on Strong Relationships with IXCs. ACSI has significant customer relationships with
most of the major IXCs serving its markets. Currently, substantially all of the Company s
revenues are generated from IXCs. 1XCs generally choose the access provider of the local
portion of a long distance call and have a strong presence in all of the Company’s target
markets. By demonstrating its ability to provide high quality services in its existing markets, the
Company has the opportunity to obtain commitments for dedicated services from IXCs in new
markets. The Company has signed a five-year agreement with MClmetro in which MCImetro
has agreed to purchase minimum levels of dedicated services from ACSI in six cities.

Aggressive Bottom-Line Approach to Network Deployment. The Company rapidly deploy: s
networks and markelts its services in order to quickly achieve operating breakeven. The
Company’s objective is to commence construction of a network in the central business district of
a market immedately upon receipt of appropriate municipal authority. ACSI targets completion
of its initial network phase and commencement of commercial service in a market within six
months after the start of construction. The Company typically begins premarketing its services al
the start of construction so that once a network becomes operational customer demand already
exists for its dedicated services. The Company then will extend the reach of its network outside
the central business district in response to customer demand. ACSI anticipates that each
operating subsidiary will achieve EBITDA breakeven results, prior to overhead allocations,
within ten to fifteen months after initiation of service In its most mature markets, Lowsville and
Little Rock, the Company achieved such EBITDA breakeven results in mne months after
initiation of service.

Expanding Customer Base Through Enhanced Voice and High-Speed Data Service Offerings
ACSI currently provides dedicated services and intends to provide a wide range of enhanced
voice messaging and high-speed data services beginning in 1996

® Enhanced Voice Messaging Services. The Company is currently testing an enhanced
voice messaging service that it plans to offer small- to mid-sized business and government
end users. The Company's enhanced voice messaging service can function as a virtual
Private Branch Exchange ("PBX"). Management belicves that the market fdr enhanced
voicemail services in 1993, was approxmmately $1.25 billion, that such market s
underserved and that, with the availability of enhanced voice messaging services such as
the Company's, the market has the potential for rapid growth

® [ligh-Speed Data Services. The Company also plans to offer a wide range of high-speed
data services, including frame relay, asynchronous transfer mode ("ATM™) and Internet
access 1o business and government customers in targeted markets. The hubbed
architecture of the Company’s planned networks will allow seamless integration of these
services with its dedicated, voice messaging and local switched services, thereby allowing
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Item 1. BUSINESS

Overview

American Communications Services, Inc. (the "Company” or TACSI™) s o rapadly erowing
competitive access provider ("CAP") that constructs and operates digital fiber optic networks and
offers local telecommunications services to interexchange carriers ("IXCs™) and business and
government end users in the southern U.S. The Company provides non-switched dedicated services
generally at a discount to those of the local exchange carriers ("LECS™), and delivers such services
with a high level of network reliability. In addition to dedicated services, the Company s testing
and, subject to its receipt of necessary additional financing, plans to offer a wide range ol enhunced
voice messaging and high-speed data services to business and government end users Successiul
marketing of these enhanced voice messaging and high-speed data services will not only proside the
Company with increased revenues, but also with an expanded end user customer base and relevant
marketing expericnce that can be leveraged into offering local switched services ACSIs
management team includes several ploneers in the development of the CAP industry with
demonstrated expertise in successfully deploying fiber optic networks and aggressively managinge
operations o generate positive operating cash flow,

Currently, ACSI has five operational networks and an addinonal seven networks under
construction, most of which are expected 1o be operational by early 1996 Subject to s recept o
necessary additional financing, the Company intends to have 30 networks in service by Lae 1997
To date, management believes that it has been able to deploy its capital most efficiently by
constructing, rather than acquiring, fiber optic networks.

ACSI Networks

Targeted
o be
Currently Operational by
Operutional E 116
Columbia Albuquergue
Forn Worth Charleston
Gircenville El Paso
Little Rock Lexvington
Lousville Mobhile
Montgomen
Tucson

Industry

The deregulation of the telecommunications industry and technological change have resulied
in an increasingly information intensive business environment. The competiive arena has been
repositioned such that the ability to access information guickly is critical to the success of hoth
business and government end users. Both voice and data communications traffic of large business
and government end users have increased significantly. In addition, deregulacion has led to the
increase in competition, most recently in the local exchange markets. CAPs such as ACSI have
sought to take advantage of the opportunitics presented by increased competition and the demand tor
tmely and reliable telecommunications services.

Several factors have served to promote competition in the local exchange market, includimg
(1) rapidly growing customer demand for an alternative 1o the LEC monopoly, spurred partly by the




development of competitive activities in the long distance market; (i) advances in the technology for
transmission of data and video, which require greater capacity and reliability levels than copper-
hased LEC networks were able to accommodate; (iii) a monopoly position and rate of return-based
pricing structure that provided little incentive for LECs to upgrade their networks, (iv) the
development of fiber optics and digital electronic technology. which combined the ability 1o build i
network economically wiih the ability to transmit data and video at high-speeds and greatly
increased capacity as compared to the LECs' copper-based networks; and (v) the significant access
charges IXCs were required to pay to LECs to access the LECs™ networks.

Competition in the local exchange services market began in the mid-1980s. In New York
City, Chicago and Washington, D.C., newly formed companies provided dedicated non-switc hed
services by installing fiber optic facilities connecting points of presence ("POPs™) of IXCs within a
metropolitan area and, in some cases, connecting business and government end users with IXCs
CAPs used the substantial capacity and economies of scale inherent in fiber optic cable to offer
customers service that was generally less expensive and of higher quality than could be obtained
from the LECs due, in part, to antiquated copper-based facilities used in many LEC networks In
addition, CAPs offered shorter installation and repair intervals and improved rehability in
comparison to the LECs.

Most of the early CAPs were entrepreneurial enterprises that operated limited networks i
the central business districts of major cities in the U.S. where the highest concentration of voice and
data traffic, including 1XC to IXC traffic, is typically found.

Prior to the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC™) Interconnection Decisions,
CAPs could effectively compete only for special access and private line services (o customers in
buildings dircetly connected to their separate networks. The Interconnection Decisions permit CAPs
to significantly increase the number of customers and markets serviced without physically expanding
their networks. The Interconnection Decisions also enable CAPs to provide interstate switched
access services in competition with LECs, which has encouraged the development of competitive
interstate switched access markel.

Regulatory and competitive trends have stimulated dramatic growth in the CAP industry.
Regulatory initiatives in the telecommunications industry introduced to foster competition in the
local exchange market have stimulated demand for local services. the total market for which was
approximately $93.0 billion in 1994, To the extent that LECs begin to compete with IXCs for long
distance services, IXCs may have a competitive incentive o move access business away from LECs
to CAPs, and CAP market share may increase.

Company Strategy

The Company's objective is to become a leading provider of dedicated, enhanced voice
messaging, high-speed data and local switched services in its targeted markets by implementing the
following strategies:

Farly Entry in Tier 1 and Tier I Markets in the Southern U.S. The Company primarily
targets Tier 11 and Tier 1T markets (200,000 to 2,000,000 in population), as they are gencrally
subject 1o less competition from other CAPs relative to larger, more developed Tier I markets,
thereby enabling the Company to quickly achieve market penetration. ACSI intends 1o focus s
market entry in areas of the southern U.S. because of attractive demographic trends and expected




growth in demand for telecommumnications services in these regions. During the last four years,
three out of every five new jobs were created in the southern regions. Additionally, between
1989 and 1994, the rate of access line growth in the southern regions of the U.S. exceeded the
national average by approximately two and one-half times. The Company believes that the first
operational CAP network in a market generally has a competitive advantage in attracting
customers willing to switch from the LEC. Management believes that the Company will be the
first CAP to offer services in nine of its twelve markelts that arc expected 1o be operational by
carly 1996

Building on Strong Relationships with IXCs.  ACSI has significant customer relationships with
most of the major IXCs serving its markets. Currently, substantially all of the Company’s
revenues are generated from IXCs. IXCs generally choose the access provider of the local
portion of a long distance call and have a strong presence in all of the Company’s target
markets By demonstrating its ability to provide high quality services in its existing markets, the
Company has the opportunity to obtain commitments for dedicated services from IXCs in new
markets. The Company has signed a five-vear agreement with MClmetro in which MClmetro
has agreed to purchase minimum levels of dedicated services from ACSI in six cities

Aggressive Bortom-Line Approach to Network Deployment. The Company rapidly deploys ats
networks and markets its services in order to quickly achieve operating breakeven. The
Company's objective is to commence construction of a network ir: the central business district of
a market immediately upon receipt of appropnate mumicipal authority . ACSI targets completion
of its imitial network phase and commencement of commercial service in a market within six
months after the start of construction. The Company typically begins premarketing its services at
the start of construction so that once a network becomes operational customer demand already
exists for us dedicated services, The Company then will extend the reach of s network outside
the central business district in response to customer demand. ACSI anticipates that each
operating subsidiary will achieve EBITDA breakeven results, prior to overhead allocations,
within ten to fifteen months after initiation of service. In its most mature markets, Louisville and
Little Rock, the Company achieved such EBITDA breakeven results in nine months after
initiation of service.

Fapanding Customer Base Through Enhanced Voice and High-Speed Data Service Offerings
ACSI currently provides dedicated services and intends to provide a wide range of enhanced
voice messaging and high-speed data services beginning in 1996

® Lnhanced Voice Messaging Services. The Company is currently testing an enhanced
voice messaging service that it plans to offer small- to mid-sized business and government
end users. The Compaiy’s enhanced voice messaging service can function as a virtual
Private Branch Exchange ("PBX™). Management believes that the market fdr enhanced
vorcemail services in 1993, was approximately $1.25 billion, that such market 15
underserved and that, with the availability of enhanced voice messaging services such as
the Company's, the market has the potential for rapid growth.

® |high Speed Data Services.  The Company also plans to offer a wide range of high-speed
data services, including frame relay. asynchronous transfer mode ("ATM") and Internet
access 10 business and government customers in targeted markets. The hubbed
archiiecture of the Company’s planned networks will allow seamless integration of these
services with its dedicated, voice messaging a..d local switched services, thereby allowing




the Company 1o offer its high-speed data customers a comprehensive solution to the
communication needs. The Company believes that providing this solution will
differentiate ACSI from its competitors

Cost-Effective Entry into Local Switched Services. The market tor lecal swilched services i
the U.S.. which was approximately $89.0 billion in 1994, represents a significant growth
opportunity for the Company. Upon receipt of regulatory approval and when cost-elfeciinve . the
Company intends to begin offering local switched services by installing 1ts own switches or
obtaining switch capacity from third parties. Given the size and regional concentration of ACSTS
markets, the Company plans to deploy a hubbed switching strategy whereby one switch can
serve multiple markets via remote switching modules. The Company believes that this strateps
justifies the switch investment in Tier Il and Tier 111 markets by reducing capital costs and
operating expenses. The Company’s enhanced voice messaging customers are expected o
provide an expanded customer base to whom switched services can be marketed  The Compans
anticipates that it will begin to offer local switched services by 1997 The Company has recei e
approval in one state and has applications pending in two others for regulatory approval

Network Development

The Company constructs and operates digital fiber optic networks. Signal transmissions
carried over digital fiber optic networks are superior i many respects o older analog transmissions
carried over copper wire and by microwave, which continue to be ured in varying degrees by the
LECs. Digital fiber optic telecommunications networks generally offer faster and more accurate
iransmissions for all data and voice communications than analog telecommunications systems or
digital transmission systems using copper wire, Fiber optic networks also generally require less
maintenance than copper wire or microwave facilities or comparable transmission capacity - therehy
decreasing operating costs. An increase in capacity can be achieved through a change i electromes
Because ACSI 1s employing the latest digital transmission technology in ats networks, its digital tiber
optic networks will have substantial additional capacity  The Company believes it will be abie 1o usw
its CAP networks to provide a wide range of teleccommunications services with only incremental
facilities costs

Management believes that it can currently deploy its capital more efficiently by constructing
fiber optic networks rather than acquiring networks constructed by other CAPs  In addition 1o the
significant premium to book values associated with recent acquisitions within the CAP industry
there are considerable efficiencies associated with utihzing consistent vendors and equipment m the
Company ‘s network, therefore ensuning high quahty, reliability and operating standards

Key elements of the Company's network development plan include (0 thoroughly anals zing
potentially favorable markets for development, (1) seeking authonizations from public and private
ennities for rights o1 way; and (ui) etficiently implementing construction plans in a nmely manner,
thereby allowing the Company o gain a competitive position in the chosen market

Site Selection. Before deciding to enter a market, the Company conducts a detailed
feasinility study to determine the potential size of the market, existing competition within the
market, the Company’s ability to obtain municipal authorizations, including franchises and access w
rights-of-way, and the relative case of market entry from a local and state regulatory standpomt  [he
rights-of-way assessment, done h}' independent telecommunications consultants, determines whether
another CAP network is under construction or ready to construct in the target market, the




availability of economical rights-of-way, the local utihty’s receptiveness to allow use of ats nights ol
way, the topology of the city and concentrations of commercial real estaie, and the local cury
permitting and franchise requirements. The market or end user survey, also done by independent
telecommunications consultants, identifies the significant commercial and government end users in
the target service areas. Individual telephone and/or face-to-face interviews arce then conducted with
potential end users, focusing on those anticipated to have the largest business volume. The
interviews determine the end user’s receptiveness to using a CAP, the telecommunications
requirements of such end user, current pricing by the LEC and other relevant information This
"bottom up” sizing of the target service arcas provides an estimate of the prospective business by
building and by customer

Rights-of-Way. As part of its due diligence on a market during its site selection process, the
Company seeks municipal authorizations (such as franchises, licenses, or permits) to construct and
operate its network within the public rights-of-way . The duration of this approval process can vary
from less than three months to several years, depending on the specific legal, admmstrative, and
political factors existing in that market. See “Regulation.” Concurrent with its secking municipal
authorizations, the Company initiates discussions with electric or gas utilities, cable television
companies ("CATV"), and other private providers of nights-of-way and/or facihties that may be used
by the Company for installation of its network. These discussions are intended to result in
agreements that allow the Company to make use of those parties’ fiber optic cables, the underground
conduits, distribution poles, transmission towers, and building entrances  The Company’s abiliny 1o
enter into such agreements can have a material impact on the Company s capital costs for network
construction and the speed with which the Company can construct its networks. Addinionally,
obtaining such agreements facilitates the Company’s ability to expand efficiently beyond the central
business district to serve addinonal end users in its markets. The Company believes that the
experience of members of its senior management team in negotiating such agreements gives it a
competitive advantage over other CAPs that have less experience in successfully negotiating such
agreements.

Implementation of Network Construction. The Company imtially builds o one- to three mile
.\l..‘”'hl.‘il.lllﬂg fiber |[}nr| i the central business distrnict of a given larpel market. This network
provides the users with lower costs, fiber optic clarity, diversity of access, and fault tolerant
rehiability of service, with automatic stand-by and rerouting in the event of operator, system or
network failure. The Company utihizes outside contractors to construct its networks

Prior to its obtaining required mumcipal authonizations. the Company, through outsude
consultants, prepares preliminary and final engineering studies for the initial poruons of s
networks, The Company's intent 15 to have the necessary route maps, detailed final enginecening
drawings, and other construction documents completed by the time municipal authorizations are
obtained. This process enables the Company to initiate network construction activities innmediately
upon receipt of municipal authonizations. Concurrent with the engineering process, the Company
wennfies commercial space for the location of its administrative and sales offices and node (hub)
site and commences negotiations for the lease of such space. Outside plant construction of a typical
downtown network will take from four 1o six months, depending on various factors. Preparation and
build out of the Company s office and node space and subsequent installation of electronics and
cabling typically proceed during the outside construction activity and are scheduled to be completed
concurrently, Finally, the Company initiates the application processes for collocation with the LECs
downtown central office and interconnection with selected 1XC POPs w comcide with other
construction milestones. The Company believes hat this coordinated construction process reduces




overall network development costs and reduces construction intervals, allowing it to mitite
operations at an earlier date.

Following completion of its initial network and the commencement of network operations.
the Company's local staff, in consultation with personnel at the Company’s headquarters, designs
expansion routes that will enable the Company to reach additional end users and to interconnec: with
additional LEC central offices outside the central business district. Construction of these expansion
routes is typically done under agreements with third party rights-of-way providers as described
above, but in some instances the Company constructs its own new facilities (typically by trenching
or directional boring) where third party facilities (whether acrial or underground) do not exist or are
not available for use by the Company. The Company also from time to time constructs lateral
network facilities from its fiber optic backbone to provide on-network service to its customers In
some instances, the Company will design and construct some or substantially all of 1ts routes outside
the central business district concurrent with the construction of the downtown network, increasing
the speed of overall network construction and. in the Company’s opinion, creating competitive
advantage over other CAPs that may have entered or are secking to enter the market. To the extent
possible, the Company engages the third party right-of-way provider to install ACSI's cable in or on
the third party's facilities, usually at a lower cost and with greater speed than that obtamned by using
outside contractors.

The Company's network management center in Annapolis Junction. Maryland monitors all of
the Company's networks from one central location. Centralized clectronic monitoring and control ot
the Company's networks allows the Company to avoid duplication of this function in cach ¢y This
consolidated operations center also helps to reduce the Company’s per customer monitoring and
customer service costs, such that they are lower than would be available if monitored on a single
city basis.

Products and Services

The Company currently provides, or is actively implementing plans to provide. a wide range
of local telecommunications services including dedicated, enhanced voice messaging, high-speed
data and local switched services. The Company’s networks are designed (o support this wide range
of enhanced communications services, provide increased network reliability and reduce costs for s
customers

Dedicated Services. Duning fiscal 1995, dedicated services for IXCs and other carriers
constituted substantially all of the Company's revenues with the remainder coming from business
and government end users. The Company's dedicated services provide high capacity non-switched
interconnections: (i) between POPs of the same IXC; (i) between POPs of different IXCs. (i)
between large business ard government end users and their selected IXCs, (1v) between a POP and
LEC central office or between two LEC central offices, and (v) between different locations of
husiness or government Customers.

® Special access services. Special access services provide a link between an end user location
and the POP of its IXC, or links between 1IXC POPs, thus bypassing the facilities of the
incumbent LEC . These services, which may be ordered by cither the long distance customer
or directly by its IXC, typically provide the customer better reliability, shorter installation
intervals, and lower costs than similar services offered by the LEC Customer charges are
based on the number of channel termnations, fixed and mileage-sensitive transport charges,




and costs for any services required 0 multiplex (increase or decrease the bandwidth or
transmission speed) circuits (e.g., taking voice grade equivalent circuits ("VGEs") at 64
kilobits per second and stepping them up to a single DS-1 (1.54) megabit circuit, which has
the capacity to carry up to 24 VGE circuits and is priced at a significant discount to multple
VGE circuits over the same route). A CAP may provide special access service on an on-net
basis by connecting an end user directly to its fiber backbone, or on an off-net basis by
reselling a portion of the LEC's network to terminate the circuit at the end user’s location
and passing the cost of the LEC services on through to the customer (who realizes cost
savings and network benefits for the portion of the circuit that is on the CAP’s network)
While resulting in lower margins than on-net service due to the payout to the LEC. oft net
service can be provided to any customer within a local access and transport area ("LATA™),
reducing the CAP’s need 1o build pervasive network infrastructure

® Switched transport services. Switched transport services are offered 1o IXCs that have larpe
volumes of long distance traffic aggregated by a LEC switch at a cemtral office where the
CAP has collocated its network: the CAP provides dedicated facihiies for transporting these
aggregated volumes of long distance traffic from the LEC central office 1o s POP or
between LEC central offices. The flat monthly charge o the [XC is typically lower than the
transport fees charged by the LEC, which is typically lower than special access services that
include a charge for terminating the traffic at the end user’s location and/or the IXC POP in
addition to the transport charges. Switched transport services, however, are also typically
associated with higher volume orders compared to most special access orders, thus providing
potential for large monthly recurring revenues to the CAP

® Private line services. Private line services provide dedicated facilities between two end user
locations in the same metropolitan area (e.g.. a central banking facility and a branch office or
a manufacturing facility and its remote data processing center) and are priced hke special
access services (channel termination charges plus transport and any associated multiplexing
charges).

Enhanced Vowce Messaging Services.  The Company is currently testing an enhanced voice
messaping service that it plans to offer small- to mid-sized business and government end users. The
Company’s enhanced voice messaging service can function as a virtual PBX. Management believes
that the market for enhanced voicemail services in 1993, was approximately $1 25 bilhon, that such
market 15 underserved and that, with the availability of enhanced voice messaging services such as
the Company's, the market has the potential for rapid growth

Specifically, the menu of services for enhanced messaging will include basic voice
messaging, follow-me call routing, virtual calling card services, fax services, F-mail and paging
notification services, and automated attendant services

® Voice messaging -- a basic voicemail solution that allows the subscriber greater flexibility,
including closed-end user group message forwarding and interface capabilities with the office
attendamt

® Follow-me call routing -- the platform can be programmed to find the subscriber by
forwarding calls to designated phone numbers anywhere nationwide at the subscriber’s
discretion and control




® Virual calling card - the platform e¢nables the subscriber to use the service o make
outhbound calls in response to messages received without disconnecting the call.

® [ax services -- the platform enables faxes to be stored and transmitted at the discretion of
the subscriber.

® Notification services -- at the subscriber’s discretion, the arrival of voicemail can trigger
pager or E-mail noufication.

e Automated attendant -- the platform can provide all of the above services, as well as call
screening for the subscriber.

Subject to its receipt of necessary additional financing, the Company plans to offer these
services 1n all of its operational markets in 1996, In addition, the Company may offer these services
in other markets where it does not intend to construct or has not yet constructed a network. The
Company believes that such services will allow it to develop relationships with end uscrs that may
be potential customers for either dedicated services or switched services to be offered in the tuture

High-Speed Data Services. The Company plans to offer a wide range of cnhanced high-
speed data services, including frame relay, ATM and Internet access services. Subject 1o 1S receipt
of necessary additional financing, the Company plans to begin offering these services o business
and government end users in 1996

® Frame relay -- cost-effective data transport solutions for local area network ("LANT)-to-
LLAN connectivity, legacy networks, clientserver and multimedia applications. Frame refay
combines fast packet switching with the high performance and reliability of private hines.

® ATM -- high bandwidth services providing virtual networking for voice, data and video
traffic on a single network

® [nternet access -- services that facilitate connectivity for business, governmental and
institutional end users to the Internet.

The hubbed architecture of the Company's network will allow seamless integration of 1ts
data, dedicated and local switched services, allowing the Company to provide a comprehensive
solution 1o its customers, The Company believes that providing a comprehensive solution for the
customer's data communications needs will differentiate its products from those offered by
competing LECs, 1XCs and other CAPs. [n addition, as part of its marketing eflorts, the Company
intends to bundle its data service offerings with ACSI's dedicated and local switched services

Increasing deployrn 2nt and use of personal computers and the concurrent need for
interconnecting both local and wide arca networks are some of the key factors driving the growth in
the high-speed data services market. There 1s a progressive trend toward migration from dedicated
data services (such as X.25) to high-speed switched data applications such as frame relay and ATM.
with all growth in the market coming from such switched data services. Based on independent
research data, the Company believes that in 1994, the total market for advanced switched and
dedicated data services in its targeted markets was estimated to be $373.0 million (representing
S 5% of the estimated $6.7 billion nationwide market for data services) and is projected to increase
by approximately 9 5% annually through the year 2000 to approximately $650.0 milhon.




Switched Services. As necessary slate regulatory approval is obtained and when cost-
effective, the Company plans to provide local switched services, such as origination and termination
of local calls, Centrex services, PBX trunking and switched access services. The Company
anticipates that it will begin to offer local switched services by 1997. The Company has received
approval in one state and has applications pending in two others for state regulatory approval

® Origination and termination of local calls -- “plain old telephone service” between local
callers’ stations.

® Centrex services -- combine local dial tone service with feature-rich functionality, including
free internal communications, call forwarding, transfer, conference and speed dial. The
Company plans to offer this service to companies that have not invested in a PBX or as a
backup to a customer’s PBX system, allowing companies to obtain state-of-the-an
communications without significant capital expenditures.

® PBX trunking -- carries switched traffic between ACSI's switch and the customer’s PBX and
allows for up to 24 lines which are shared among up to 200 internal users o communicate
with a public network. This product will be offered to customers who have their own PBX
system and manage their own internal communications.

® Switched access -- origination or termination of long distance traffic between a customer
premise and an 1IXC POP via shared local trunks using a local switch.

The Company intends to employ a hubbed switching strategy by using Company-owned or
leased switch capacity in a large, centrally located market to provide services within that market and
o serve several other markets located within the same geographical area via remote switching
modules. The Company believes this strategy will reduce the capital expense associated with
mstalling a switch in each market, which may be too small on its own to justify the investment. By
aggregating switched traffic from multiple Tier II and Tier 111 markets through a central hub switch,
the Company also expects to realize reduced operating expenses associated with switch engincering
and maintenance. The Company believes that providing dedicated, enhanced voice messaging and
highspeed data services will enhance the Company's ability to cross-market local switched services.
Finally, the Company is evaluating opportunities, on a market-by-market basis 1o partner with
certain entities that have local switching requirements, experience, facilities and/or back office
operations that may result in mutually beneficial alliances. Successful negotiation of switching
partnerships may further reduce the Company s capital and operating expenses associated with the
provision of switched services.

The Company’s switched services plan is targeted at small- 1o nud-sized business and
povernment end users. The typical customer 1s expected to have 10 to 100 employees. The
Company will first target users within the buildings of ACSI's existing customers and will connect
these users directly to its network. Subsequently, the Company may offer its services to customers
that are not directly connected to 1ts network through resale of the LEC's network. The Company
believes that it can gradually migrate many of these off-net customers to higher margin on-net
accounts as 1t increases penetration of all s services within a given building, making the capital
investment of connecting the facility to ACSI's network more cost-effective

The Company believes that its local digital fiber optic networks, coupled with the distributed
hub arrangements described above, will provide a robust platform for the provisions of a wide
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variety of voice, data and communications services at a reduced cost. Over time, the Company
believes it can increase its market share of all of its service offerings as a result of the rehiability and
quality of its networks, prompl customer service, compelitive pricing, cross-marketing/bundiiny
synergies and new service offerings over its target 30-city market area.

The domestic market for local switched services (including switched access) was estimated 10
constitute more than 95% of the total local telecommunications market in 1994, or approximately
$89.0 billion.

Sales and Marketing

While a network is under construction, the Company s salespeople n each city begin selling
on-network interstate dedicated services to the major business and government end users in that city,
while the central headquarters’ sales staff concentrates on selling scrvices to IXCs. The Company
expects to initially price its services at a discount to the LEC's tariffs and sells on the basis of cost
savings to the customer, However, based on management’s experience in other cities where CAPS
offer services, end users are expected to be attracted to the Company as a provider of back-up
service for disaster recovery and a 100% fiber optic network that can provide generally higher
quality and more reliable service than can the incumbent LEC's network

The Company’s sales efforts with respect to dedicated services emphasize cooperation
between ACSI's national and local sales staff and the regional and field sales staff of the IXCs
ACSI's national sales staff works closely with senior management of the IXCs to establish technical
and service requirements, pricing, and quality standards on a nationwide basis, then coordinates at
the local level specific orders for service to the IXC and/or its end user customers in a given
market. Because members of the Company's senior management team and its sales stalf have long
standing relationships with principals of the major IXCs, the Company believes it has a competitive
advantage over other CAPs whose sales organizations have less experience and fewer relationships
with the IXCs in offering these dedicated services. The Company is pursuing multiple city sales
arrangements with a number of IXCs, but no assurance can be made that the Company will
ultimately be successful in negotiating such agreements with any of the IXCs

The Company typically has a gencral manager and at least one account executive in cach of
its major markets. In many cases, the general manager oversees the operations and saies efforts ot
additional smaller markets that are operated as satellites of the larger market, thus reducing
operating overhead. In the Company’s experience, the sales process in the southern regions of the
LIS is largely affected by personal relationships, and the Company’s ability to hire sales and
management staff with existing customer relationships enhances its ability to penetrate the market

The Company plans to utilize two separate sales forces to market s enhanced voice
messaging services to business and government customers. While the Company's dedicated services
sales foree will target their on-net customers for such enhanced services, the enhanced vowce sales
staff will focus on potential customers that are not connected 0 ACSI's network. These enhanced
voice salespersons will also be responsible for encouraging existing accounts to subscribe to
Ldditional features and to increase their usage of those features. The Company believes that, once
established. the customer relationships will enhance the Company's ability to market local switched
services to these customers as such services are offered The Company’s enhanced voice sales force
will be augmented by additional sales personnel as local switched services are introduced on a
market by market basis
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The Company’s data services will be marketed by a separate sales group that focuses on
providing total solutions to a customer’s data and networking needs. This m=-".cting will require a
more technically sophisticated staff than for the Company's dedicated, enhanced and switched voice
services. The Company believes that it will be able to bundle and cross-market all of its services
through national and local account team coordination, making ACSI a full-service regional provider
of local telecommunications services.

Competition

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment and has no significant market
share in any market in which it operates. The Company initially plans to provide dedicated services
to large business and government end users, In each of the metropolitan arcas to be served by the
Company’s networks, the Company's dedicated services will compete principally with the dedicated
services offered by the incumbent LEC. The LECs, as the historical monopoly providers of local
access and other services, have long-standing relationships with their customers and have financial
and technical resources substantially greater than those of the Company . The LECs also offer certim
services that the Company cannot currently provide due to current regulalory restrictions. See
"Regulation.”

Competition for dedicated services is based on price, quality, network reliability, customer
service, service features and responsiveness to the customer's needs. The Company believes that s
management expertise, coupled with its highly reliable, state-of-the-art digital networks, which offer
significant transmission capacity at competitive prices, will allow it to competz effectively with the
LECs, which may have not yet fully deployed fiber optic networks in many of the Company’s target
markets. The Company currently prices its services at a modest discount compared to the prices of
the LEC while providing a higher level ol customer service. The Company's fiber optic networks
will provide both diverse access routing and redundant electronics, design features not widely
deployed by the LEC's networks (which were originally designed in tree and branch or star
configurations).

Other potential competitors of the Company include CATV operators, public utilities, IXCs,
wircless elecommunications providers, microwave carriers, satellite carriers, teleports, private
networks built by large end users, and other CAPs, Other CAPs or CATV companies currently are
competitors in various markets that the Company has networks in operation or under construction
Based on management's experience at other CAPs, the intial market entrant with an operational
fiber optic CAP network generally enjoys a compettive advantage over other CAPs that later
attempt 1o enter the market because it has the first opportunity to contact customers who are willing
to switch from the LEC serving the market. The Company expects that there will be other CAPs
operating in most, if not all, of s target markets and that some of these CAPs may have networks
i place and operating before the Company’s network 1s operational, While it 1s generally accepted
within the CAP industry that being the first market entrant to offer services typically enhances that
CAP's compenitive advamage relative to CAPs that enter the market at a later ume, the Company
recopnizes that in some instances it may have other competitive advantages (such as a superior right
of -way arrangement or a large customer commitment) that it believes outweighs another CAP's first
to market advantage, n these instances, the Company may clect to enter a market where an
established CAP already exists,




The following table summarizes the Company's understanding of the status of current CAP
competition within its targeted markets:

CAls

CAPs CAPs Holding or
Operating Huilding Secking

City Networks Networks Franchises
Lounsville(1) Hyperion,(2) 1CG3) none nofie
Lattle Rock( 1) Brooksid) none none
Fort Worthi l) MANIS) none none
Greenville(1) none none none
Columbiall) none none none

El Pasoif) none none Hrewrhs
Lexington{6) none none nane
Mobileity) none none none
Monigomeryi6) none none none

Albuquerquedt) none Hrooks, GST(7) NextLanki¥)

Phoenix
Fiberlinki'h
Charleston, SCit) none none none
Tucsonif) none 551 Brooks

(1) Operational Network.

(2) Hyperion Telecommunications, Inc
(1) IntelCom Group, Inc

i4) Brooks Fiber Properties, Inc

(5) Metro Access Networks

(6) Network Under Construction

{7 GST Telecommunications, Inc

{8) Nexthink, Inc.

{9) Phoenix Fiberlink of New Mexico, Inc

Competition for enhanced voice messaging services primarily consists of basic voicemanl
services offered by LECs and cellular providers in connection with their core offerings and customer
premise-based voicemail plattorms. The voicemail offerings of the LECs typically have hmted
features and flexibility compared 1o the services contemplated by the Company; thus, the Company
believes its enhanced voice messaging services will be able 1o effectively penetrate those segments
of the small- to mid-sized business market that require more features and/or flexibility than services
offered by the LECs. Customer premise-based platform voicemail offerings typicaily require a
relatively large capital investment and recurring mamntenance costs and are generally marketed 1
large companies rather than the small- to mid-sized end users targeted by the Company

The Company's competitors for high-speed data services include the major IXCs, other
CAPs, and various providers of niche services (¢ g., Internet access providers, router management
services and systems integrators). In general, none of these competitors currently otfers a
comprehensive solution for a custoiner's potential data service requirements, 4 core premise of the
Company’s data strategy. The Company mtends to pursue arrangements with other data service
providers to leverage each entity’s strengths in a given market or segment of the service chain by
bundling elements of complete data solutions (i.e., bundle its local access and frame relay services
with an IXC’s longhaul transport services). The interconnectivity of the Company’s markets will
create additional competitive advantages over other data service providers that must obtain local
access from the LEC or another CAP in e h market or that cannot obtain intercity (ransport rates
on as favorable terms as the Company.




In all of the markets where the Company is currently operating or plans to operate, the LEC
currently is a de jure or de facto monopoly provider »f local switched services. The Company
expects that regulatory changes at the state and/or federal level will enable CAPs, CATV operators,
electric utilities, cellular and wireless providers, and others to offer local switched services in
competition with the LECs in the Company’s target markels. The Company believes that is strateg?
to leverage its basic network infrastructure into higher margin service offerings, migraung to local
switched services, will allow it to penetrate a profitable share of the market. The Company s ability
to cross-market services will create opporwunities to increase margins by migrating customers trom
off-network to on-network status. As the number of ¢nd users in a given off-network building
increases for all service offerings, the economics improve to the point where the capital costs of
connecting the building to ACSI's network are more than covered by the increased margins
represented by retaining the portion of customer revenue paid out to the LEC

Regulation
(herview

The Company’s services are subject to federal, state and local regulation. The Federal
Communications Commission {"FCC ") exercises jurisdiction over all facilines and services ot
telecommunications common carriers to the extent those facilities are used to provide. onginate or
terminate interstate or international communications. State regulatory commissions retamn jurisdiction
uver the Company's facilities and services to the extent they are used to onginate or ferminate
imtrastate communications. Local governments may require the Company to obtain licenses or
franchises regulating use of public rights-of-way necessary to install and operate its networks

The allocation of jurisdiction between federal and state regulation of dedicated facilities
carrying both interstate and intrastate traffic raises definitional 1ssues. Although the FCC generally
does not rule as to the jurisdictional nature of a carrier’s traffic, under FCC practice, such services
are considered to be jurisdictionally interstate if at least 105 of the traffic 15 interstate 1n nature
Virtually all dedicated services provided by the Company hetween long distance carrier POPs, and
hetween 1XCs and their end users, sausfy this requirement and are jurisdictionally interstate in the
opinon of the Company

Federal Regulation

In general, the FCC has a policy of encouraging entry ol new competitors, such as the
Company, in the telecommunications industry and preventing anti-competitive practices

The FCC has established different levels of regulation for domimant carriers and nondomimant
carriers For domestic common carrier telecommunications regulanon, large LECs such as GTE and
the Regional Bell Operating Companies ("RBOCs") are currently considered dominant carriers,
while CAPs such as the Company, are considered nondominant carriers. As a nondominant carrier,
the Company may install and operate facilines for the transmission of domestic interstate
communications without prior FCC authorization. Services of nondominant carriers have been
wubject to relatively limited regulation by the FCC, primarily consisting of the filing of anffs and
periodic reports concerning the carrier’s interstate circuits and deployment of network Tacilitics
Moreover, the Company must offer its interstate services on a nondiscrininatory hasis, at just and
reasonable rates, and remains subject to FOC complaint procedures




The FCC has ordered the RBOCs and all but one of the other LECs having in excess of $100
million in gross annual revenue for regulated services to provide expanded interconnection to LEC
central offices to any CAP, IXC or end user seeking such interconnection for the provision of
interstate access services. As a result, the Company is able to reach most business customers in 1ts
metropolitan service areas, and can expand its potential customer base. The FCC has imposed
mandatory virtual collocation obligations on the LECs. Virtual collocation is a service in which the
LEC leases or purchases equipment designated by the interconnector. and exerts complete physical
control over this equipment, including central office installation, mainienance, and repair. In
addition, some LECs have voluntarily filed tariffs making "physical collocation” available, enabling
the interconnector to place its equipment in the LEC's central office space. Certain LECs have
pending requests for judicial review of the FCC mandatory virtual collocation requirement

Pursuant to these FCC requirements, the Company has filed and maintains a tanff for its
interstate services with the FCC. All of the interstate retail "basic” services (as defined by the FCO)
provided by the Company are described therein, "Enhanced” services (as defined by the FCC) need
not be tariffed. The Company has an “enhanced” voice messaging product and an "enhanced” frame
relay product, neither of which is contained in the Company's current FCC taniff. In an order
released on October 18, 1995, the FCC concluded that the underlying frame relay services of
facilities-based common carriers are “basic” services, and thus has required such services to be
tariffed by December 17, 1995.

When ordering interconnection, the FCC granted LECs additional flexibility in pricing their
interstate special and switched access services on a specific central office by central office basis
Under this pricing scheme, LECs may establish pricing zones based on access (ralhe density and
charge different prices for each zone. The Company anticipates that this pricing flexibility will result
in LECs lowering their prices in high traffic density areas, the probable arena of competition with
the Company. The Company also anticipates that the FCC will grant LECs increasing pricing
flexibility as the number of interconnections and competitors increases. In a concurrent proceeding
on transport rate structure and pricing, the FCC enacted interim pricing rules that restructure LEC
switched transport rates in order to facilitate competition for switched access.

In 1991, the FCC replaced traditional rate of return regulation for large LECs with price cap
regulation. Under price caps, LECs can only raise prices for certamn services, including
interconnection services provided 1o CAPs, by a small percentage each year. In addition, there are
constraints on the pricing of LEC services that are competitive with those of CAPs. On Scptember
14, 1995, the FCC proposed to adopt a three-stage plan that would substantially reduce LEC price
cap regulation as local markets become increasingly competitive. The FCC proposed to immediatel
eliminate the lower service band index limit on price reductions within service categories, modify
tariff filing requirements and revise the structure of price cap baskets. The FCC also sought
comment on whether LECs should be permitted 1o expand use of option discount plans such as
volume and term discounts, Under the FCC's proposal, during the second phase certain LEC
services could be removed from price cap regulation and regulated on a strezmlined basis if they
were deemed to be subject to competition. In the third stage, LECs would be granted nondominant
status - Adoption of the FCC's proposal to sigmificantly reduce its regulation of LEC pricing would
sipmificantly enhance the ability of LECs to compete against the Company and could have a mater.al
adverse effect on the Company

The FCC has also ordered access to LEC signaling systems at an end office level, which
allows CAPs to better control therr networks. In addition, the FCC recently issued a Notice of
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Proposed Rulemaking indicating that it intends to promulgate new rules that would enable LEC
customers to retain their telephone numbers when switching to CAP services (1.c., number
portability ).

Proposed Federal Legislation

Both the U.S. Senate (5.652) and the U.S. House of Representatives (H. R, 1555) have
recently approved comprehensive telecommunications reform legislation. The House bill would
reguire all common carriers to allow other providers of telecommunications services o interconnect
with their facilities and equipment. The Senate bill would impose this interconnection requirement
on LECs with market power. Such provisions would enable the Company to obtain critical
connections to LEC facilities. In addition, LECs would be obligated to provide local number
portability and dialing parity upon request. Under the legislation, LECs also would have to allow
competitors nondiscriminatory access to LEC pole atachments, conduit space and other rights-ot-
way. Morcover, states would be forbidden from disallowing local competition, although they would
be allowed to regulate such compenition.

The Company believes that each of these requirements would likely enhance competition in
the local telecommunications marketplace, and simplify the process of switching from LEC services
to those offered by CAPs. However, the legislation also offers important benefits to the LECs The
I ECs would be granted substantial new pricing flexibility. RBOCs would regain the ability 1o
provide long distance services and obtain new rights to provide certain cable TV services. These
changes would tend to enhance the competitive position of the LECs

The Senate and House bills differ in many significant respects. A House-Senate conference
commiltee is attempting to negotiate a compromise version of the legislation, but there 1s no
guarantee that they will succeed. In addition, a presidential veto of the legislation has been
threatened. Thus, the prospects for final passage, as well as the implementation dates if legislation
receives final passage, remain uncertaim.

State Regulation

The Company believes that most, if not all, states in which it proposes to operate will regquare
a certification or other authorization to offer intrastate services. Many of the states in which the
Company operates or intends to operate have not yet addressed issues relating 10 the regulation ol
CAPs Some states that have authorized the competitive provision of dedicated services have not
authorized the provision of competitive local switched services. Some states may require
authorization to provide enhanced services. Moreover, in some states, obtaining regulatory approval
for the provision of local witched services may require changes in legislation or in existing public
service commission ("PSC™) policy

The Company believes that the general trend as to authorize an increasing degree of
competition for local switched services. However, there can be no assurance that any states in which
the Company proposes to operate will allow the Company to provide intrastate dedicated services or
the full range of local switched services

The Company currently has obtained intrastate authority for the provision of dedicated

services in Arkansas, Texas, Kentucky (excluding intraexchange private line services) and, effective
on February 1. 1996, in South Carolina. The C¢ npany has applications pending before the PSCs in
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Employees

As of September 30, 1995, the Company employed a total of 100 individuals full nme  The
Company believes that its future success will depend on its continued ability to attract and retan
highly skilled and qualified employees. The Company belicves that its relations with its employees
are pood.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

For its corporate headgquarters and network management center, the Company leases a 14265
square foot office space in Annapolis Junctuon, Maryland for $16,583 per month The lease expires on
April 30, 2002, but may be renewed for two additional five-year terms. The Company s ficld oftice.
housing its network development and real estate development operations, is located na 2,935 square
foot facility in Oak Brook. Illinois which the Company leases for $3,790 per month This lease expires

on January 31, 1996

The Company's subsidiaries in Louisville, Little Rock, Fort Worth, Greenville, Columbia.,
Lexington, Mobile, Montgomery, El Paso, Albuquergue, and Tucson have leased faciliies for their
offices and network nodes. The aggregate monthly rent on these propertics is approximately 326000
The various leases expire on dates ranging from February 28. 1998, to October 30, 2005 Most have
rencwal options. In addition, the Company’s subsidiaries in Lowsville, Lintle Rock, Fort Worth,
Greenville, Columbia, and El Paso have leased separate facilities in varions tenant buildings tor thewr
electronic equipment. Finally. a subsidiary of the Company leases shared office space in Greenville
Additional office space and equipment rooms will be leased as additional networks are constructed and
the Company's operations are expanded

The Company believes that its insurance coverage on these propertics 15 adequate and
comphiance with the related leases.

Item 3. LEGAL P "EEDINGS

On October 16, 1995, Gerard Klauer Mattison & Co |, LLC ("GKM ) filed a complant aganst
the Company in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (95 Civ. 8792
(SAS)). alleging that the Company had breached a contractual obligation under a March 20, 1995, letier
agreement (the "Agreement”), to designate GKM as the Company’s “exclusive underwrniter or financial
advisor” for all investment banking services through Septzmber 20, 1996, The action secks an order
compelling the Company to employ GKM as the exclusive underwrniter and financial advisor an
connection with any investment banking services contemplated by the Company through September 20,
1996, or, in the alter ative, pay GKM in excess of $5 million. The Company had terminated the
Agreement with GKM due to what it believes to be GKM's failure to comply with its obhgations
thereunder. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the complamt and nends
detend wsell vigorously i this matter

The Company and its subsidiaries are not a party to any other material liigation The Company

and its subsidiaries continue to participate in regulatory proceedings before the FCC and state repulaton
apencies concerning the authorization of services and the adoption ot new regulations
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Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Naone
PART 11
Item 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS. I

The Company's Common Stock is traded under the symbol "ACNS™ in the over the counter
market  The Company's Common Stock has been quoted on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market since
March 3, 1995, Prior to that tme the Common Stock was quoted in the pink sheets, although it was
not consistently quoted therein. On September 15, 1995, the high and low bid prices for the Company ‘s
Common Stock as reported by the NASDAQ SmallCap Market were $6.25 and $6 25, respectively
As of September 15, 1995, there were approximately 550 stockholders of record of the Company '
Common Stock

The Company has received notification from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market that 1t has been
granted 2 temporary exception to permit sutficient tine for the Company to revise its stockholder votng
rights in order to bring them into comphance with the listing requirements of The NASDAQ SmallCap
Market. The Company has been granted this temporary exception until November 24, 1995 Dunng
this period, the Company's symbol in the NASDAQ market will be followed hy the letter "C™ which
designates that it 1s subject to the temporary exception. When the Company completes s proposed
restructuring of its voting rights to the satisfaction of The NASDAQ SmallCap Market, the letter "™
will be removed. The Company is implementing changes in its votng provisions to comply with the
NASDAQ SmallCap Market's requirements by returning the Company to the same provisions which
were in effect prior 1o its private placement in June 1995, These new provisions will not result in any
material change in the manner in which the Company is operated nor i the control of the Company

The following table seis forth the range of high and low bid quotations obtained from the
National Quotations Bureau for the Common Stock for the last three quarters of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1994, the first two quarters of the Tiscal year ended June 30, 1995 and the period from January
1. 1995 through March 2, 1995 (the day prior to the day the Common Stock began being quoted on the
NASDAQ SmallCap Market) The following table also sets forth the high and low bid quotations as
reported by the NASDAQ SmallCap Market for the period from March 3, 1995 through March 31
1995 and for the last quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 No quotations for the Common
Srock were available from the National Quotations Burcau for the first gquarter of fue fiscal year ended
June 30, 1994, which peniod preceded the reverse acquisition of Golf Links, Lad. by the Company. The
quotes as set forth below are believed 1o be representative of inter-dealer quotations. without retal
mark-up. mark-down or commission, and may not necessanly represent actual transactions

(Table appears on next page)
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High Bid Low Bid

Price Price

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

Second Quarter 54 00 $2.50)
Third Quarter 475 $3.00
Fourth Quarter 53.25 S1 75
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

First Quarter %4 50 $1 .50
Second Quarter 54.25 $2.50
Third Quarter (through March 2, 1995) 84 75 $325
Third Quarter (March 3 through March 31, 84 75 %325
1995)

Fourth Quarter 400 $3.12

The Company has paid no dividends on its Common Stock since its inception and does not plan
to pay dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable future. Except as may be utihzed to pay
dividends payable on the Series A-1 Preferred Stock and the Scries B Preferred Stock, any carnings
which the Company may realize will be retained to finance the growth of the Company  The
agreements relating to the Company’s secured debt financing prohibits the Company from paying any
dividends on its capital stock, except the Series A Preferred Stock and Senies B Preferred Stock, and
restrict the ability of the Company s subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Company., unless in cach case
certain financial covenants are met. The Company's certificate of incorporation prohibits the payment
of dividends on the Common Stock unless all dividends due and payable (including acerued dividends)
on the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock have been paid in full

Item 6. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPRATIONS. _

Overview

ACSI provides or plans to provide a vancty of telecommunications services to IXCs and
business and government end users in Tier 1T and Tier I markets located n the southern IS The
Company began construction of its first fiber optic network in Louisville in February 1994 and
began to provide commercial service on that network in November 1994 Since August 1994, the
Company has commenced construction of an additional 11 networks, four of which (Columbua, bon
Worth. Greenville, and Little Rock) are currently in service. The Company expects to provide
commercial service in the remaining seven networks (Albuguergue, Charleston, El Paso, Lexington,
Mobile, Montgomery, and Tucson) by carly 1996 The Company is actively developing the
necessary marketing and engineenng plans and pursuing required municipal authorizations to begin
construction of an additional eight markets resulting in a total of 20 networks) by carly 1996 and.
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subject 1o its receipt of necessary additional financing, plans to have a total of 30 networks in
service by late 1997

The Company provides dedicated services to IXCs and to those business and government end
users whose volumes of voice and data traffic are large enough to warrant paying a fixed monthly
charge for a specific capacity requirement rather than a usage-based vanable charge. These monthly
charges vary according to the capacity of cach circuit, the volume of mdividual circuits ordered by
the customer, the mileage of the circuits, the need for any ancillary services, and the term of the
wervice contract, but are typically less than the rates charged by the LECs for similar SErvices,
volumes and terms. The Company focuses its sales efforts on the largest IXCs, with whom
believes it has good customer relationships based on management’s extensive experience in the
industry  Sales of dedicated services are typically coordinated with the end user’s 1XC account team
and billed by the IXC rather than by the Company, thus providing the end user a single point ol
contact for its entire long distance account and reducing the Company's back-office overhead
requirements. Currently, the Company offers these services in all five of s operational markets and
plans to offer these services in all markets where it constructs and operates netwiorks

I addinon, the Company 1s testing and, subject to ats receipt of necessary additional
financing. plans to offer a wide range of enhanced voice messaging services to small- to mid sized
business and government end users that can generate high-margin revenues with himited capital
imvestment. These customers will be hilled by the Company. The services will be provided from
centralized hub locations rather than equipment at cach customer's site, providing “ransparent,
maintenance-free and flexible access to a vanety of value-added communications features. This
range of services will include a basic voice messaging service for a Nat monthly charge that may be
bundled with one or more additional features (such as automated attendant/call screeming, follow me
calling. remote fax, and paging and E-mail notification, among others) in order to meet the
customer’s specific communications requirements. The additional feawres will be offered for
incremental fixed charges and/or usage based charges Successful marketing of these enhanced vouce
messaging services will build the Company s customer base and provide relevant sales expenience
that can be leveraged into offering local swiched services: The Company may also offer these
enhanced voice messaging services on a retail or wholesale basis in markets where it has no network
tacilities, resulting in increased revenue potential. However, the gross margins associated with such
revenues may be lower resulting from the payvment of LEC access charges in those non-ACSI
markets

Subject to its receipt of necessary additional financing, the Company also plans 1o offer a
wide range of high-speed data services, including frame relay. ATM and Internet access Frame
relay 1s i cost-effective data transport solution for LAN to-LAN connectivaty, legacy networks, and
chient server applications. ATM 1s a high-bandwidth service offering virtual networking for voice.
data and video traffic, allowing a customer to use a single network for all three apphcations
Internet access facilitates the connectivity of corporate, institutional and governmental customers to
the Internet. a collection of data networks that communicate with one another using common
protocols  Customer charges include nonrecurning charges for installation and provisiommg and
erther 1lat rate or usage based recurning charges based on network access speed and the statistically
puaranteed throughput rate ol data for the particular service order. The Company s data services
offerings will utilize the same hubbed architecture employed by its enhanced voice and local
switched services, resulting in operational efficiencies and lower costs while further enhancing
opportunines for cross marketing and bundhing services 1o ACSI's customers
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As necessary regulatory authority 1s obtained on a state-by-state basis, the Company plans o
provide local switched services, such as local dial tone, termination of local calhing, Centrex
services, PBX trunking, and switched access services. It 1s expected that these services will be
offered for appropriate fixed and usage-based charges at rates below those charged by LECs tor
similar services. The Company intends to employ a hubbed switching strategy by using Company
owned or leased switch capacity in a large, centrally located market to provide services within that
market and to serve several other markets located within the same geezraphical arca via remote
switching modules, The Company believes that this strategy will reduce the capital expense
associated with installing a switch in each market, which may be too small on its own to justity the
imvestment. By aggregating switched traffic from multiple Tier 11 and Tier T markets through 4
central hub switch, the Company also expects to realize reduced operating expenses associated with
switch engineering and maintenance. The Company believes that providing dedicated, enhanced
volce messaging and high-speed data services will enhance the Company’s ability to cross-market
local switched services. Finally, the Company is evaluating opportunities, on a market-by-market
hasis, to pariner with certain entities that have local switching requirements, experience, fucihities,
and/or back office operations that may result in mutually beneficial alliances. Successful negotiaion
of switching partnerships may further reduce the Company's capital and operating expenses
assoctated with the provision of switched services,

The Company believes that its local digital fiber optic networks, coupled with the distnibuted
hub arrangements described above, will provide a robust platform for the provision of & wide
variety of voice, data and communications services at a reduced cost While the Company may ofler
its services to customers that are not directly connected to ats network through resale of the LECs
network, the Company believes that it can gradually nugrate many of these off-net customers to
gher margin on-net accounts as 1 mereases penetration of all its services within i given burlding
As a result, the capital investment of connecting the facility to ACSI's network becomes more cost
eltective Over time, the Company believes it can increase its market share of all of ats service
offerings as a result of the reliability and quality of its petworks, prompt customer service,
compenitive pricing, cross marketing/bundhing synergies, and new service offenings over s tarpet
AM-caty market arca

Imuially, the Company expects o experience negative cash How from operations m ciach of
is operating subsidiaries. The Company estimates that because of the reduced operaling costs
associated with its smaller markets and IXC-focused sales force, it can achieve operating breakeven
results (1.¢ , positive EBITDA before overhead allocations) on uts networks within ten to hifteen
months from the start of commercial service Thereafter, the Company anticipates that its margin
will increase as cach network is expanded to directly connect additional customers to its hackbone,
as ofl-net customers migrate 1o on-net status (thus allowing the Company (o retain the portion of
customer charges previously paid out to the LEC for resale of LEC facilities), and as addinional
value-added services such as enhanced voice messaging. high speed data services, and local switched

services are olfered
Caputal Eapenditures, Operating Cash Flow (EBITDA)

Currently, the Company has completed construction and 1s operating five dipnal fiber optic
networks, has imitiated construction on seven additional networks, and intends 1o have 30 operational
networks by late 1997 The costs associated with the imual construction and operation of a network
may vary greatly, in large part because of market variations in geographic and demographic
characteristics Management estimates that construction of the imtial one-to-three mile fiber oplic
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backbone and installation of related network transmission equipment for dedicated services for cach
market will generally cost between $3.5 million and $6.0 million, depending on the size of the
market served. Including planned expansion routes, total capital expenditures per network are
estimated to average $6.0 million. In addition to capial expenditure requirements, the Company
incurs sales and marketing expenses (including sales commissions), operating and property taxes
and. in certain markets, franchise fees Cenain of these direct pre-operating coste, (o the extent they
are related to the construction of networks, are capitalized until the network begins to realize
revenue, after which they are expensed as incurred. Management estimates that these operating
expenses amount to approximately $500,000 to $1,000,000 per network prier to the potential for
achieving breakeven results, These costs vary depending on the size of the market, the length of
time required to build out the network and the rate of growth of the customer base.

At such time as the Company develops, introduces and rolls out its enhanced voice
messaging, high-speed data and local switched services in its target markets, additional capital
expenditures and net operating costs will be incurred. The amount of these costs will vary based on
the number of customers served and the actual services provided to the customers. Per its 30-city
network plan, management estimates that expenditures over the next three years for these services
will amount to approximately $20 to $25 million for enhanced voice messaging and high-speed data
services and $30 to $40 million for local switched services.

Although the Company is now generating revenues from five of its fiber opiic networks, on a
consolidated basis it is still incurring negative cash flows due, in part, to the funding requirements
for its networks currently under construction.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995, Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994
Revenues

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 ("fiscal 19957). the Company recorded $388.887
in revenues compared to no revenues in the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 (“fiscal 19947) The
Company operated as a development stage company throughout fiscal 1994 and through the first halt
of fiscal 1995, These revenues substantially were comprised of revenues from the Company s
provision of interstate dedicated services in its Louwsville, Litle Rock, Greenville and Fort Worth
networks in which it began recording revenues in December 1994, March 1995, May 1995 and June
1995, respectively Three of the five largest IXCs accounted for $329.000, or 85%, of fiscal 1995

revenucs
Total Operating Expenses

Network development and operations expenses tor fiscal 1995 increased to $3,282,200
compared to $1,054,400 in fiscal 1994, reflecting the Company’s significant increases in personnel,
network development and non-payroll operating expenses. These ereased costs were assoctated
with developing and establishing centralized engineening, circun provisiomng and network
management funchions, constructing and imually operating the Company's first five competitive
access provider networks, and with the performance of market feasibility, engineering, rights-of-way
and regulatory evaluations in several additional cities. Related salaries, wages and benefits increased
from $331.500 in fiscal 1994 to $1,341,100 in fiscal 1995 as the number of network development
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and operations employees increased from six at June 30, 1994, 1o 44 at June 30, 1995 The
Company also incurred significant operating expenses related to the development of prospective new
markets. These costs, which include expenses such as contract labor, legal and certain franchise
fees, travel, rent, utilities, and taxes, mercased from $722,900 in fiscal 1994 o $1.941 100 in fiscal
1995.

In fiscal 1995, selling, gencral and administrative expenses increased (o 34,597 600 from
$1.297,500 in fiscal 1994. Related salaries, wages and benefits increased from $382,900 duning
fiscal 1994 to $1,974,200 in fiscal 1995, and corresponding office and other operating costs
increased to $2,210,900 in fiscal 1995 from $134,600 in fiscal 1994 This increase reflected costs
associated with the recruitment of additional executive management, the establishment of a national
sales and marketing organization, and the establishment of administration and sales staft. Selling,
peneral and administrative staff grew from nine at June 30, 1994, 10 30 at June 30, 1995
Consulting and professional fees decreased from $780.000 in fiscal 1994 10 $412.500 0 fiscal 1095,
as the Company’s need for the significant legal and accounting costs that it incurred carly i fiscal
1994 as it restructured its operations and began to finance its growth activities was reduced
Depreciation and amortization expenses increased from $1,967 in fiscal 1994 10 3497 811 i hiseal
1995, as the Company began to depreciate the capitalized costs of its first four networks in
Louisville, Little Rock, Greenville, and Fort Worth

Non-cash stock compensation expense increased from $633,151 1n fiscal 1994 to 56,419,412
in fiscal 1995, primarily reflecting the accrual of costs equal to the difference between the current
fair market value of the shares of Common Stock which vested under options and warrants granted
10 key executives and consultants and the aggregate exercise price with respect (o such shares Such
options have put rights and other factors that required vanable plan accounting in fiscal 1994 and
fiscal 1995 During June 1995, the Company renegotiated contracts with certain of its officers and
established a limit of $2,500,000 on the Company's put right obligations, thereby elimimating the
requirement for the Company to continue to record expenses based on the continually changing fur
market value of the underlying stock in excess of the $2,500,000 hmitation. As a result of
establishing this limitation, the Company reclassified $4,511,000 to addinonal paid-in capital from
redeemable stock options and warrants. Subsequent to the end of fiscal 1995, this himutation was
reduced to $2,000,000.

Interest and other income increased from $5.155 in fiscal 1994 10 $217.525 1n fiscal 1995
The Company placed funds received from its financing efforts in short-term interest investments,
which yielded returns of approximately 6.00% and 5. 75% in fiscal 1994 and 1995, respectively
Due to increased borrowings in connection with the construction and operation of its networks.
interest costs increased from $332.997 an fiscal 1994 10 $706,100 1n fiscal 1995 In fiscal 1995, the
Company capitalized $536.000 of interest 1n connection with its construction of fiber optic networks,
causing interest expense to decrease 1o $170.095.

Debt conversion expense in fiscal 1994 totalled $681,250, reflectng debt conversion
expenses associated with the conversion of debt in September 1993 During fiscal 1995, the
Company incurred costs of $554,900 in connection with (1) the 1ssuance in June 1994 of $4. 300,00
of notes, substantially all of which were retired or converted into Series A Preferred Stock (s
heremnafter defined) in the Company’s October 1994 $16. 800,000 equity financing, and (1) the
amortization of debt issuance costs associated with the Company s initial round of sccured debt
financing under a credit facility with AT&T Credit Corporation (the "AT&T Credit Facihity™).
$323.900 of which was capitalized. In connection with the conversion of the June 1994 notes,

23:-




$231.000 was recorded as debt conversion expense for fiscal 1995, The Company recorded an
addinional debt conversion expense amount of $154,000 due to 4 premium associated with s
conversion of certain secured notes that was paid in conjunction with the Company’s October 1994
cquily financing

AT&T Credit Corporation’s minority interest in the Company s Lowsville and Fon Worth
operating subsidiaries reduced operating losses for fiscal 1995 by 340,000 and $8,000, respectively

Liguidity and Capital Resources

l'o date the Company has been dependent upon external financing to fund its operations The
primary source of funds used to finance the building of existing networks and the completion of the
twelve targeted networks has been provided by two Preferred Stock offerings and the AT&| Credit
FFaciliy.

Beginning with the development and construction of the Company’s first network an carly
1994, the Company estimates the total capital requirements for implementation of s 30-city network
plan will aggregate between $250 and $275 million over a five-year period. To date, the Company
has obtained approximately $77 million in gross proceeds from financings and fmancing
commitments that has been or will be applied towards the development and initial construction of the
Company s first twelve networks and to support its general corporate development. network services
and natomal sales functions. ACSI will consider the sale of debt or equity sccurilics or 1NCreases i
existing credit facthities 1o fund the completion of the 30-city network plan. Any acquisitions that the
Company might consider are likely to require additional equity or debt financing, which the
Company will seek to obtain as required

Proferred Stock

In October 1994, the Company completed the private placement of 186,664 shares of 1t 9%
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $1 .00 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock™),
with accompany g warrants o purchase an aggregate of 2,674,506 shares of Commaon Stock for an
agprepate consideration of $16,800,000, including the conversion ot $4,300,000 of outstanding debi
(the “October 1994 Private Placement™). In connection with the June 1995 Private Placement (as
hercinatter defined), the Series A Preferred Stock was exchanged for an dentical number of shares
ol Seres A1 Preferred Stock and subsequendy retired. The Series A1 Preferred Stock s
convertible into an aggregate of 7,466,560 shares of Common Stock  The Huft Alternatve Income
Fund. L P ("Huff") acquired 138,889 shares of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock and associated
warrants. and. in connection with such acquisition, received warrams to purchase 1,491,222 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock. all of which were exercised in November 1994 Currently, Hult
ownis 74 4% of the outstanding Senes A-1 Preferred Stock

In June 1995, the Company completed a private placement of 100,000 shares of ity Senes i
I Preterred Stock, 102,500 shares of its Series B 2 Preferred Stock and 25,000 shares ol ats Series
B Preterred Steck (the Series B Preterred Stock, Series B-2 Preferred Stock and Series B-3
Preterred Stock are collectively referred to herein as the “Series B Preferred Stock”), with
accompanying warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,584,303 shares of Common Stack, for an
agpregate consideration of $22,750,000 (the “June 1995 Private Placement™) The Series B Preterred
Stock 1s convertible into an aggregate of 8,125,003 shares of Common Stock  In addition, 50,000
Giares of Seres B4 Preferred Stock, together with accompanying warrants which are convertible
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it an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of Common Stock, will be sold for an apgrepate of
$5.000,000 10 ING Equuty Partners, L.P 1 ("ING™) upon the Company’s compliance wath. or 150
waiver of. certain conditions. The Company currently plans to achieve such milestones by the cnd of
the second quarter of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1996 Hull and certain of ats albilites i NG
currently own an aggregate of 200,975 shares of the Company’s Series B Preferred Stock
representing 88 3% of such class of stock outstanding

Under the terms of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock and Sertes B Preferred Stk the
Company is required 1o accrue quarterly dividends at an annual interest ratc of 9% of the face vl
of the Series A-1 and Series B Preferred Stock outstanding. Such accrued dividends will be pad
cumulatively beginming January 1, 1998, or eatlier upon conversion mto Common Stock Such
conversion may occur (i) any time at the holder’s option or (1) automatically upon the
consummation of a Qualifying Offering {as defined in the Company's Certihicate of Incorporation
The Company is also required to accrue quarterly dividends at an annual interest rate o 185 om0
Preferred Stock from and after January 1, 2000, if a conversion has not occurred prior fo such dat
and at any time after the oceurrence and hefore the cure of the atorementioned triggenng cvents A
of June 30, 1995, no such conversions have occurred and accrued dividends on the Preferred Stoech
totalled approximately $1,070,985.

AT&T Credit Faciliry.

In October 1994, the Company entered into the AT&T Crednt Facilny pursuant 1o wluch
AT&T Credit Corporation has agreed 1o provide up to $31,250.000 in financing for the developimen
and construction of fiber optic networks by the Company 's subsidiaries. Pursuant 1o the A LA |
Credit Facility, during fiscal 1995 the Company’s subsidiaries in Lousville, Fort Worth, Greenvill
and Columbia entered into loan agreements with AT&T Credit Corporation providing tor up to
$19,800,000 in loans sccured by the assets of such subsidiaries. As of June 30, 1995, an apprepan
of $3,650,000 had been borrowed under these agreements. Subsequent to June 30, 1995 the
Company’s subsidiary in El Paso entered into a separate loan agreement with AT&T Credu
Corporation pursuant to the AT&T Credut Facility providing for up to an aggregate of SS.500 0060 1
loans secured by its assets. In connection with cach loan, AT&T Credit Corporation purchises
7.25% of the capital stock of the funded subsidiary. The Company i1s presently considening a
proposal by AT&T Credit Corporation to increase the amount of the AT&T Credir Faciliny . but L
not reached any decision regarding that proposal

The Company's current sources of hguidity are s current cash reserves, addinonal
borrowings under the AT&T Credit Faciluy, tuture borrowings under a proposal o nerease the
AT&T Credit Facility and operating revenues  The Company believes that ats current sources o
liquidity will be sufficient 10 complete construction of the seven networks currently under
construction and fund currently anticipated operating expenses of ts exasting five networks and such
seven additional networks through the fiscal yvear ending June 30, 1996 In order o constrst
additional networks or fund operating expenses subsequent to June 30, 1996, the Company wall
require significant additionz] financing — Although the Company s i the process of secking such
addinonal tunding. there can be no assurance 1t will be successful in obtaining such financing
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Bem 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,.

The response B thes Deme s subnautied as a separate socion of s repor conmmenomng on
Page -0

Hem 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE,

Nut Applicable
PART I

Intormation: provided  pursuant to thee Purt HE s contamed an e Form HEKSH ae
atnended. on e with the Secur=es BExchange Commission A description of the Compans '
clthiers and directors, taken intis entieety rom Part B b e Company s Forme 10 KSH s
amended. sancluded below

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE OF DIRECTORS

‘athony ). Pompliano. Clorman of the Board of Direciors amld current Chaet
Facoutive Otticer, has 30 years of expenence i the telecommumications imdustry - He was oo
tounder and President of Metropolitan Fiber Systems, the predecessor orgamzation o MES
Commumcations Company, Inc. (MES) o pubhicly raded CAP Mo Pompliane served s
President. CEO and Vice Chairman of MES trim Apnl 19858 anul March 191 He jomned ACSI
i Angust 1993 alter the expiration of s non-compention agrecment with MES - Betore b
avsowtatton with MES and its predecessor, he was Vice President - Operations and Sales tor M
Feleconpumications International from 19R1 1o 1987, and prior thereto, was Vice Presudent
National Operations tor Western Unton Internastional, Ine trome 1960t 1981 On Novewber |
oas, St Pomplano will rebmguesh bes role as Claet Execoative Oicer of the Company and will
rennan s Cluarman of the Board of Directors Onosuch date Bchard A kozak, carrently the
Company's President and Clael Operatimg Otficer sl assume the role of Cliet BExecutive
e

Gearpe Mo Middlemas soa pencral panner of APEX Managememt Pannenstope @ P
whiteh s the General Partoer of the venture capital funds, Apes Investiment Fund 1L L1 and
Ay lvestmient Fund Linted. Pantnesstop See “Secunty. Ownerstup ol Certin Benetn il
Crwners and Management ™ From March 1900 December 19900 Mo Muddlemias adied as an
icdependent consultant providing tusd sosig and other advisory sersiees Frome 1985 vnnl
Sarch e A Middiemas was o Semor Vice Presadent and Princgpal of Ineo Ventuare Capanal
Maeement. o ventare capital firme He also serves on the Bodrd of Prrectors o PureChyole
Corperation. Secunty Dymamies Technologres, i aned several privately held companies
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Steven G. Chrust 1s the President and founder of SGC Advisory Services, Inc . an
investiment  advisory  and  money  management  services  firm concentrating on
telecommunications and technology that renders consulting services to the Company  See
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions ™ From 1990 to 1992, Mr Chrust was the
Chairman and CEQ of AMNEX, Inc , from 1985 to 1989, an Exccunve Vice President of
corporate planning at Executone Information Systems, Inc and from 1970 1o 1985, the dirccun
of technology research at Sanford C. Bernstein & Co Mr Chrust is also the Vice Chairman of
Winstar Communications, Inc , a publicly traded telecommumcations and information services
company

Edwin M. Banks has been employed by W R, Huff Asset Management Co 11 ¢
since 1988 and currently serves as a portfolio manager concentrating in the healthcare
communications, food and food services industries  From 1985 uniil he jomed W R 1un
Assel Management Co ., L L.C . Mr Banks was employed by Merrill Lynch & Company
Mr. Banks received his Bachelor of Ans degree from Rutgers College and s Masters o
Business Administration degree from Rutgers University  Mr Banks also serves as & director
of Charter Medical Corporation. Del Monte Foods Company and ABCO Food Service

Christopher L. Rafferty is employed by WRH Partners, L.L.C . the general partner
of Huff. From January 1993 1o February 1994, Mr. Rafferty was the Vice Presulen
Acquisitions for Windsor Pet Care, Inc., a venture capital-backed firm focusing on
consolidating the pet care services industry, From October, 1990 1o January, 1993 Mg
Rafferty was a consultant specializing in merchant bankirg, leveraged acquisiions and venture
capital transactions.  From June, 1987 to the time he started his consulting busimess, A
Rafferty was a Managing Director of Chase Manhattan Capital Corporation, the mercham
banking and private equity investment affiliate of Chase Manhattan Corporation Mr Ratferts
also serves as a director of Del Monte Foods Company  Mr Rafferty recenved his
undergraduate degree from Stanford Universay and s law degree from Georgetown
Ulniversity

Benjamin P, Giess has been employved by ING and s predecessors and atniltes sifice
1992 and curremly serves as o Vice Preswdent responsible for onginating, structuning and
managing equity and debt anvestments  From 1991 to 1992, Mr. Giess worked m the
Corporate Finance Group of ING Capual.  From 1990 10 1991, Mr Giess was employed by
the Corporate Finance Group of General Electric Capital Corporation where he worked in the
media and entertainment group. Prior to attending business school, from 1986 10 198K, Mr
Giess was the Crodit Departimemt Manager of the Boston Branch of ABN Amro North Amernica,
Inc. From 1984 1o 1986, Mr. Giess was employed at the Shawmut Bank of Boston Mr Giess
also serves as a director of Matthews Studio Equipment Group and CMI Holding Corp - Mi
Giess received his undergraduate degree from Dartmouth College and his Masters of Busiiess
Admimstration degree from the Wharton School of the Umiversiy of PennsyIvania

Olivier L. Trouveroy has been employed by ING and ats predecessors amd atfilures
since 1992 and currently serves as a Managing Director responsible for onginating, strucining
and managing equity and debt anvestments.  From 1990 o 1992, Mr Trouveroy was a
Managing Director an the Corporate Finance Group ("CFG™) of General Elecine Capual
Corporation in charge of CFG's office in Paris, France. From 1984 o 1990, Mr. Trouveroy
held vanious positions in the Mergers and Acquisitons department of Drexel Burnham Lambert
in New York, most recently as a First Vice President Mr Trouveroy also serves as a director
of Accessline Technologies, Inc and Cost Plus, Inc. Mr Trouveroy holds Bachelor of




Science and Masters degrees in Economics from the University of Louvain in Belgum, as well
as 2 Masters of Business Adnunistration degree from the University of Chicago

Peter C. Bentz has been employed by W. R Hufl Asset Management Co , L L.C as
a rescarch analyst specializing in telecommunications. media and healthcare since 1992 Mir
Hentz received his Bachelor of Science degree from Boston College i 1987 and his Masters of
Husiness Administranon degree from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvani i
lljl}:

Cathy Markey has served as General Counsel for W, R, Huff Asset Management Co
[ 1 ¢ since 1988  From 1981 through 1984, Ms Markey was an Assistant Portfolio
Manager with Eberstadt Asset Management Co., speciahzing in small cap and emerging
technology stocks.  She received her Masters of Business Admimistration degree from Rutgers
University and her law degree from Rutgers Umversity Law Schiool. Ms. Markey received her
Bachelor of Ans degree in economucs from Barnard College

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following s a description of the background of the executive officers of the
Company who are not directors:

Richard A. Kozak, 49, President and current Chiefl Operating Officer, jomned the Company i
November, 1993 On November 1, 1995, Mr Kozak will become President and Chiet
Exccutive Officer of the Company. Mr Kozak served as Chief Fimancial Officer of the
Company from September 30, 1994, until November 30, 1994 Mr Kozak served on the
Board from November 15, 1994, until June 1995, when he resigned voluntarily o allow the
imvestors i the Company's June 1995 private placement to elect representatives to the Board
without unduly increasing the size of the Board. Mr Kozak has more than 20 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry  He was President of the Southern Division of
MES from October 1992 until June 1993, where he was responsible for networks in Atlanta,
Haltunore, Dallas. Houston, Philadelphia, Pitsburgh and Washington, DC, as well as for
establishimy networks i additonal markets in the southern United States Previously. he was
President of MES Development from July 1991 until October 1992, where he was responsible
for the planming, development and implementation of more than STOO million: ol major
expansions of networks throughout the United States, and Sentor Vice President ol Network
Services for MES Prior to joming MFS in 1990, he was a Vice-President and General
Manager tor Telenet Communications Corporation (now Sprint International) from 1956
through 1989 and an Executive Vice-President and Chief Fimancial  Officer tor TR
Commumcations from 1982 until 1986 Mr Kozak holds an engmeening degree from Brown
Umiversity, studied at the Unmiversity of Chicago Graduate School of Business, and completed
s MBA i Finance at the George Washington Unmiversity School of Government and Husiness
Adiumstration

George M. Tronsrue, I, 39, Executive Vice President  Strategic Planming and Husiness
Development, has 17 years of telecommunications industry and management experience From
P99 antl he pomed ACSE in February, 1994, Mr Tronsrue was the Regional Vice President
for the Central Region for Teleport Commumcanons Group and the Vice President of
Fmerging Markets responsible for start-up and profit and loss management of joint ventures
with major cable television providers o eight major makets. From 1987 unul 1992, he was a




member of the initial management team at MFS, where he held sentor positions in planmug and
market development, served as Vice President of Sales and the Vice President/Generil
Manager for the initial start-up of MFS’ New York operations, and served as the Executie
Vice President for MFS-Intelenet.  Prior to joining MFS, he was a Director of Operations 1o
MCI1 Telecommunications International. Mr. Tronsrue has a B.S degree in applied sciences
and engineerig from the United States Military Academy at West Point

Riley M. Murphy. 39, Exccutive Vice President - Legal and Regulatory Affairs, and Sceretars
has 12 years of experience in the private practice ol telecommunications regulatory Low 1o
inter-exchange, cellular, paging and other competitive telecommunication services prier o
joining the Company Since February 1995, she has served as an officer and director ot T
Association for Local Telecommunications Services. Ms. Murphy joined ACSL on a tull e
basis in April, 1994, and was senior counsel to Locke Purnell Rain Harrell, a Dallas based Taow
firm through December, 1994 From 1987 1o 1992, Ms Murphy was a partner of Warpel and
Murphy, a telecommunications law firm she co-founded. and from 1992 10 1993 she was g sole
practitioner  She holds a B A degree from the University of Colorado and a 1 I from 1h
Catholic University of Amenica, and is admitted to practice Law i the Dastoer of Columibia anid
Louisiana.

Douglas R. Hudson, 34, Executive Vice President - Sales and Markeung, has 10 years of sale.
and marketing experience within the telecommunications industry. For seven vears prior 1o
Joinimg ACSI in May, 1994, Mr. Hudson had been with MFS, having served as a director o
feld sales from September [987 10 September 1989, Vice Presidemt of Industry Sales and
Marketing from September 1989 1o July 1992 and as Vice Presidemt and General Manager m
charge of MFS's Mid-Atlantic region from July 1992 unnl May 1994 Prior to jomng MES
Mr Hudson was a regional sales manager for Microtel Internanonal, Inc . a nanona
telecommunications company providing competitive long distance and private line services

Ronald W. Kaiser. 41, Cluef Fimancial Otficer, jomed the Company in November, 1994 A
Kaser 15 a Certified Public Accountant with over 15 years of experience in accounting !
tinancial management of both publicly held and private companies.  From Apni. %93
November, 1994, Mr. Kaiser served as Vice Presidemt of Finance, Treasurer and Chicet
Financial Officer at ADAK Communications Corporation, a manufacturer and distributor ol
ielecommumications digital access controllers From 1990 o 1993, Mr Kaiser served as Vi
President - Finance and Treasurer of a subsidiary of George Fischer AG. a Swiss corporation,
and from 1988 1o 1990, he served as Chief Financial Officer of Leeco Thagnostios, I
("Leeco”™), a publicly held manufacturer of medical diagnostic kits - Prior o joming Leeco, M
Kaiser served as the Chiel Financial Officer of a developmental stage medical device
manufacturer and a publicly held equipment manufacturer, and as a member of the tay and
audit staff of a predecessor of Delomte Touche & Tobmatsu, an international public accounting
firm Mr. Kaiser reccived Bachelor of Arts Degrees in accounting and pre-law from Machipgan
State Umiversity

Robert H. Otunan, 56, Exccutive Vice President - Network Services, joned the Company
May, 1995, Mr. Owman has 31 years ol experience in telecommunmications and has heen
involved in network services, operatons, qualuy assurance. human resources and  fabaor
relations within the telecommunicanons industry  Prior to Joinng ACSLL, hie served o various
positans at MO Telecommumcations International from 1988 0 1995 In 1988 he served as
the Vice Preswdent of Admumstranon and subsequently served as the Vice President of
Operations and Quality Assurance for MCI Telecommunications International and was directly
responsible for the New York City, Washington, Atlanta, Boston, M, Chacago, Detront,
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San Francisco, Los Angeles, Puerto Rico, Hawaii and Guam Networks in 1995, While at MCI
Telecommunications International, Mr. Ouman nitiated Quality Programs for the support and
assistance of MCI customers. From 1981 to 1983 Mr. Ouman was Assistant Vice President of
Operations and Labor Relations for Western Union, International, Inc and in 1983 he served
as the Director of Human Resources - Labor Relations
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

' = Board of Directors and Stockholders
Amencan Communications Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying conselidated balance sheet of Amencan Communications Senvices,
Inc. and its subsidianies as of June 30, 1995, and the related consolidated statements of operations, Senes A
preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended These consohidated
hnancial statements are the responsibality of the Company’s management, Our responsibility s to express an
uptnion on these consolidaled financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our sudit in accordance with gencrally accepted auditing standards Thosc standards
tequire that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financisl
stalements are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes examiming. on a test basis, evidence
wnporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting prnciples used and significant est.mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable bass for our opimon

In out opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present tarly, an all matenal
tespects, the hnancial position of American Communications Semvices, Inc. and its subsidharies as of June 30,
1994, and the results of their operanons and their cash flows for the year then ended 10 conforminy with
pencrally accepted accounting pnnciples

KPMG Pear Magwion LLP
KPMG Peat Marwick LILP

Woashingron, 1 (
August 25, 99N




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Amencan Communication Services, Inc

We have audited the accompanying consohidated balance sheet of Amencan Commumications Servives
Inc. (a development stage company) as of June 30, 1994 and the related consohidated statements !
operations, Series A preferred stock and stockholders” equity (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibi
ity is lo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
stalements are free of matenal musstatement An audit includes examining. on a lest baus, evidence
supporung the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting pnnciples used and significant esumates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opnon

Our original report on the Company’s fiscal 1994 financial statements, dated August 29, 1994, included
an explanatory paragraph that referenced 1o a foolnote discussing factors indicating substantial doubt as to the
Company's ability to continue as a gowng concern for a reasonable period of ume beyond December 11, 1994
Such note also discussed the Company’s being in the development stage and continuation of the Campans
being dependent upon obtaining and maintaining adequate sources of capital or other financing arrangements
evolving from the development stage and achieving sufficiently profitable operanons Based on evenhs
subsequent to our oniginal report, the reissued fiscal 1994 financial statements accampanving this report do not
contain such lootnote disclosures and an explanatory paragraph discussing such matters » no longer required

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of Amencan Communication Services, Inc as of June 30, 1994 and the results
of 1ts operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting

pnnciples

Coorers & Lyspasp LL P

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P

Chicago, llhnois

August 29, 1994, except for malters discussed
in the third paragraph above, as 1o which the
dite 15 September 15, 1995
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.

Consolidated Halance Sheets
June M), 1995 and 1994

Asscls
Curren! assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 1)
Restncted cash (note 1)
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 38,570
Other current assels

Total current assets
Nerworks, equipment and fumniture, net (note 2)
Dieferred financing fees, net of accumulated amortization of §34,956 and $124,021 a1
June 30, 1995 and 1994, respectively
Other assels

Total asscts

Liabilities, Redeemable Stock, Options snd Warranis, Minority Interest and
Stockholders’ Equiry (Deficit)
Current linbilities
Accounts payable
Accrued financing fecs
Accrued employce costs
Other accrued habilinies
¢ wnvertihle bndge notes (note 4)
Secured note — stockholder (note 4)
Sccured convertible notes — related party (nole 41
Noter pavable — stockholders (note 4)

Tota! current hahilities
Lung term habilities
Sutey payable (note 4)
[yiwvidends payable (note 3)

Total hatnlines
Redeemable stock, options and warrants {notes & and 71
Minonts interest (note 4)
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) (note &)

thac 194
§ 20,150,791 § 3270w
752,000 200 (W)
150,438 -
92,325 =
21,545,552 1ATR 87
15,567,290 L2291
02,113 &) KTY
122010 10,485

§ 176265968
e

§ 4.605 6t

Preferred stock, no par value, non-voling, cumulative, 2,000 shiares authonzed, 1,700

shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 1994, Lhguidaton value i equal to face
value (note 12)

Preferred stock, §1.00 par value, 186,664 shares dr-ltﬂalcd o Y% Sency Al
Convertible Preferred Stock authonzed, saued and outstanding at June M, 1992
inotes 1 .“1[’ 4}

Preferred stock, §1 00 par value, 277,500 shares authonzed and designated as 9%
Senes B Convertible Preferred Stock. 227,500 shares issued and outstanding at
June 30, 1995 {notes 3 and %)

Common stock, no par value, 20,000,000 sharcs authonzed, 2. 755,005 sharcs nsued
and outstanding at June 0. 1994

Common stock, §01 par value, 30,000,000 shares authonred, 5744, TE2 sharcs
wsued and outstanding at June 30, 1995 (notes 5, 6, and 12, and 13}

Additional paid-in capital

“ote recevable from sale of common stock

Accumulated defieit

Total stockholders” equity (deficn)
L omumiments and contngencies (noes |, 6, 7, 8, and )
Tastal latlines, redeemable stock, options and warrants, minonty interest and
stochholders” equity (deficit)

$ 1ribe? T 492
542,248 179.9%)
K3 509 17178
I. 269 484 §55.547
—s 4,300,720
- T
— ol el
ELRFLE a7 717
1,617 4wk # T84 | 3
1652088
1070985
12,360,568 BT8540
290,778 LIES.2Te
194,402
Y SRE] ]
| Kb bid
227,500
% K27
42411 448 1080, 568
— {2,780

120,741,222}

12,141,217

(61 570

(265747

§ 3T.06l6965
-

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended June 30, 1995 and 1994

Revenues

Operaling expenses:
Network development and operations
Selling, general and admimstrative
Naoncash stock compensation {note &)
Depreciation and amortization

Toral operating expenses .

Non-operaling income (expenses)
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense
Debt conversion expense (note 4)

Loss before minenty interest
Minonty interest

MNet loss :
Preferred stock dividends and accretion (note 1)

™et loss 1o common stockholders
Net loss per common share

Average number of common shares outstanding

1w 1994
§ JRB.ERT -

328183 1,084,358
4,597,615 1,297,499
6419412 633,151

497,811 1,967

14,797,021 1.986.v73

217,525 3,153
(170,095) (332,997}
(IBS,000)  (681,2500

(14,745,704 ) (3,996,067
48 D85 =

(14.697.649) (1.996,067)
(1,070,985) i48,670)
SO15,768,634) (4,044,737
$ (3.30) (1771
4771,689  2.283,695

See sccompanying notes to consohidated financial statements
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AMERICAS COMMIESICATIONS SERMVICES, [N

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SERIES A PREFFRRED STOCR AND STOCKHOL DERS FOQUITY(DEFICET)
Years ended June M), 1995 and 1994
LT | SR .1u_.|.___-l..._

“umiirn
Serried LY 4 Ml Twtsl )
Preferred ot Preferred Siech Preterred Siws H:lﬁfdﬂ.,.,-...m.. Commes nimch  Mpiitt Y i ..lﬁl._l..-"-:
Shares  Amorst Shases & e 80 Sharvs  Amessi  Sharms  Amemsi Shares  Amewsd rwpind ek gLy ] | b )
Halances at June M), 1993 L2808 960,001 § § 5 - WM A1 (2750 1A000 (2047508 (1 AMNDT)
Senen A Prelerred Stock dividends
acurued - 43 470 ~ - - — (45.670) — - (48870
Eichange of Scner A Preferred Stock
and common stock for debl (100} [REET 3] - . — {1 - (26,797) - V5.000) (%1,
{ ommon stock eachanged for trade
payables (pote 3) - = = - [RIRLL - [RAA - - (RS
Eachange of motes recenable fot Seno
A Prefomed Stk and common siock
(ot 4) 450 50 000 - - 628 ATT b, 0 . - - 450,004
sSenct A Prelerred sachanged foe
Pretermed Stock {1, 700) (1 45%34%) 1,700 | TOOGO - (214647 = AN 18]
Common stock Biuance in revene
aCum Bon — - - - - Syl WD = =
Common stock moed w0 Bndge | oan
creditoun (note §) — S R ] (R = = 101 250
luuance of common slock 1o an
emplnyee 000 . 4178 - . 4174
luuance of common stock (nolte V) - - - L LR 149 ) - & 00
Isuance of put nght obligabon
|mote Th = - - — == (487 500 - — - (457, M00)
MNet loxs - — = - - - - - (L 06Ty () 99.007)
Halamces at June 3O 1994 (L C R XL — 2 T 008 — 1080 566 (2740 - e AVATE) (P hle JTAT)
Prefermed Swoch eachange (noic |1 5 (130 0 TD0, 00y - b UL B (Rt Xy il
Set par value for common stock (| fele
5) : - - LAT AR RS : -
Acquimibon of Predmont Teleport. [rc
(more 13} - . - 52000 - —
Wntc-off of nole recewvable for common
ok - - - - E - (2.7%0) 170
Senes A Preferred prvate placemest,
net of related costs (mote 1) - - - LTS R LR - — 15,009 481 -- 15,196,123
Sencs B Preferred pnvate placemest,
net of related costs (mote 1) - . - - 217800 217500 20,4 34,007 ~ - . 0,640,500
|muance of put nght obligatony ( poica
& oand 9) - — - = — - - — (33,303 - - 153.30%)
Cancellaton of pul nght ohlygatos
{note 7) - - - - : - ART D0 - — 457,400
Warrant and stock opbon crercmer and
ok grant (note &) ~ - - - V9190 1), T4 49030 - - 172424
Establiah bimutanon on common ssock
putl nght oblhigation (Rote &) - 4,410,962 - 44009642
Senes A Prefemed Stk dindends
accrued (note 1) - - (1,0T0 98 {1.070.9K5)
Net s =t = - z - LA ET A9 _":.___c.\.?—o.-
Balinces af June W0 994 $ [Shatd $IBE66E JIT500 §I27.0N0 1 T44THY $A6ETT 41411448 PH0T0 30 214

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated Anancial statements




AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended June 30, 1995 and 1994

19%< 194y
“ash flows from rating acuvines
{‘!:in u:s g ¢ S4BT 00 | bdmin e T
Adsiments o reconcile net lows to et cash used in operatng scuvitics
precianon and amorniabon 97411 Wt
Amortization of deferred financing lees AR L] S
Provision for doubtful sccounts A0
Loss aftnbuted to minonty interest (A8 0%}
Noncash compensation, consultann and other cxpenses * J{J::.L B
L] i nh T

Moncash debt conversion cxpenae
Changes in operating assews and Latiliies

Trade accounts receivable 1 )89.007)

Hestncted cash related 1o opersung sctivibes 20u0 a0 MLARLT

Cither current assety 192,323
(Hher aasels (b Sy | AR
Accounts payable 1170 AR iU R |
Accrued fnancing fees P AA2 24
Accrued em € CoMly 719331 R
Diher sccrued babilines 108487} BLD e

Mot cash used in operaung actvities P00 T4 | Nag r.'q'-

Cash floes from invesag actimbies

Purchase of petl assets of Predmont Telepon, Inc 119,104

Proceeds from sale of Wilmington Delaware Nerwork - T Lwe
Purchase of furniture and fistures | V0w 404 e

Hesincted cash related 1o network activibes (742,000

Network development coats Paees MY et D

ael cash used in investing acumvbes (T60TINIE | 485 e

Cash flows from financing activities

Iusuance of notes pay LA
Payment of deflcrmed financing fees RIS Ll
Warrant and stock option guerises [ '
Inuance of commaon stock, net of offenng costa [
lusuances of Senes A Prelerred Siock. net of offening costs and conversion of  bndge hnancing 1100482 (4t
lssuances of Senes B Preferred Siock. cet of offenng conts 20,041 .50
Iusuance of bndge notes 4 Mn
lssuance of secured convertible pote P ped
Issuance of secured note A ma
lsuance of noles payable — stochholden 280 (K pd | paw
Proceeds from sale of munonty interest i subasdiants T4 487
Payments of noles payable — stociholdery (4B 650 [}k L
Paymenus of bndge notes § 1,000 000 )
Payments of secured nole AR LY
Paymerts of secured convertible notes (717,280
Mer cash prowded by financing activities WOASOIN 4 ETh (ee
Net increase 10 cash and cash cquivalents | 7080, 4% J.ahh 414
Cash and cash cquivalenu bepinrung of year 1,370,197 4400
Cash and cash equivalents end of year § 20080791 270 T
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informanon — intereat pasd on ail debt ohliganons 1 11944 Il 4
N s e
Supplemental dinclosure of noncash investing and financing acovities
Senes A Preferred exchanged for hl‘frr:d“\ghxl 3 j.aa3 1
[hvidends declared in connection with Sene. A Preferred Siock § 10705940 48
= ——— - I ———
Bndge hnancing, secured convernble notes. and notes payable — stockholders converted o eguity in
connection with private placemeniv §  4.080.07%
Accrued redeemahle - wTan! cosls § (4N SO0 FURR T
Wrnite off of note receivable from sale of common stk b1 .M
Preferred stk eachange § 1,700,000
. [ —
Purchase of Piedmont Teleport, Inc for common sock and relsted pul nght sbligaten 1 191,00}
“egotiation of nght-of-way agreement for onbon discount § 101,000
Cammon stock eaghanged for trade payabic ¥ UL
| - 1 —— =

Sec accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 1995 and 1994

i1) Hasis of Presentation and Related Matters
Rasis of Preventation

As of July 1, 1993, the Company’s operanons consisted of the actvities of Amencan Lightwave, Inc
{ALI} and its subsidiaries, Alabama Lighiwave, Inc., North Carolina Lightwave, Inc., Chicago Lightwave,
Inc.. Delaware Lightwave, Inc. and Virginia Lightwave, Inc. combined with Amencan Consolidated
Communications. Inc. {ACC) and its subsidianes, Austin Lightwave, Inc., Los Colinas Lightwave, Inc .
Winston Salem Lightwave, Inc, and Phoenin Lightwave, Inc combined with a management company,
Amencan Communication Services, Inc. (an Hlinois Corporation) (ACS) These entiies are collectively
referred to hereafter as "Combined ALW." Common ownership served as the basis for combmation  All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions were eliminated in the combination

On Scptember 14, 1993, a merger agreement and related agreements, among other things, caused the
merger of Combined ALW into Golf Links Ltd. (GLL), a dormant publicly-held company, with GLL as the
surviving corporation, in exchange for newly 1ssued shares of GLL's preferred and commen stock Under the
agreements, cach outstanding common share of ALI was exchanged for 207 84044 shares of GLL common
stock, and each outstanding share of ALl Scnes A Preferred Stock was exchanged for one share of GLL
preferred stock and the shares of ACC and ACS were assigned to GLL. Additionally, notes receivable for
common stock of ACC totaling $50,000 were forgiven in conjunction with the merger. After the merger, GLI
changed 1ts name to Amencan Commumication Services, Inc. (a Colorado Corporation) { hereinafier “the
C ompany™ or “"ACS1"). ACSI became a Delaware corporation in Septermnber 1994

For accounting purposes, und as required by Secunties and Exchange Commusion Stafl Accounting
Bulletin 2A-2, the above transaction was treated as a reverse acquisition Combined ALW 1s deemed to have
acquired GLL. As such, the histoncal financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal basis of
Combined ALW and have been presented as if held by a holding company The transaction 1s presented as of
the Company was capitalized with 1,637,500 shares of common stock and 1,700 shares of preferred stock
issued to its stockholders which was consistent with the actual shares received in this transaction. The
stockholders’ equity (deficit) of the Company retroactvely reflects such capitalization

Addimionally, the transaction has been recorded as if the Company 1ssued commeon stock 10 cach of the
stockholders of GLL in exchange for GLL shares on a one-for-one basis to effect the merger on
Scptember 14, 1993 Since this transaction was considered a reverse acquisition, it has been accounted for
using the purchase method. All matenal intercompany transactions and accounts have been chiminated in
consolidation.

As of and for the year ended June 30, 1995, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Amencan Communications Services, Inc a.d 1ts subsidianes, all o© which, excluding the Louiswille and Fort
Worth subsidiarics, are wholly owned. As discussed tn note 4 1o the consohdated financial statements, the
Company has a 92.75 percent ownership interest in these two subsidianes. All matenal intercompany accounts
and transactions have beca ehiminated in consolidation,

Husiness

1te Company's efforts have besn directed toward becoming a competitive access provider (CAP) of
busifiess telecommunications services in selected mud-sized cities, The Company builds and operates
competilive access fiber optic networks to provide local special access telecommunications services 1o major
husinesses and government customers in selected targe! markets.
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

i1} Basis of Presentation and Related Matters — {Continued)

The Company was considered & Development Stage Company through November 1994 us defined in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 7, “Accounting and Reporting by Development
Stage Enterprises © In December of 1994, the Company recorded its hirst operaling revenues

Dunng 1995, the Company raised capital in two separate pnvate placements of equity, a portion of which
was used to repay debt {sec notes 3 and 4). Alsa, the Company obtained a financing facility from AT&AT
Credit Corporation, with respect to equipment and working capital financing for up to $31 7 mullion, a pornon
of which has been drawn upon as of June 10, 1995 (sec notes 3 and 4).

The Company has utilized its exisung cquity and debt financing 1o enable 1t to establish 1ts iinal hve
networks and support its operations through 995 and believes that it can sustain its general cperaung
expenses through the end of fiscal 1996 through these sources The Company is 1n the process of seeking and
obtaining additional funding, without which 1t will be forced 1o severely curtail its operations and development
sctivities, 10 enable it 10 support its future operating requirements and further develop 1ts next networks

The Company is continuing discussions with a number of equity and debt investors While the success of
these efforts is uncertain, the Company’'s management believes that it wall secure the necessary funding to

carry out its business plans.

Cash Equivalenis

Cash equivalents generally consist of highly liquid debt instruments with an initial matunty date of three
months or Jess. At June 30, 1995, cash equivalent consisting of overmight invesiments arc $20.944.751
including restincted cash of $752,000.

The Company has provided performance bonds and letters of credit in vanous cifics In connection with its
operations, resulting in a restnction of cash amounting o $752.000 and $200.000 at June 30, 1995 and 1994,

respectively

Networks Equipment and Furniture

Networks, equipment and furnituie are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Costs capitalized
duning the network development stage include expenses associated with network engincenng. design and
construction, negotiation of nghts-of-way, obluning legal regulatory authonzations and the net amount of
mnterest costs associated with the network development. In 1995, the Company has capitalized interest of
approxmately $536,000,

Provision for depreciation of networks, equipment and furnitu.c 15 computed using the straghi-hine
mecthod over the estimated useful lives of the assets beginming in the month a network s substantall
complete and avalable for use and equipment and furniture are acquired

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s pnncipal classes of asscts arc as follows

Networks:
Fiber optic cables and installation costs 20 yean
Telecommunications equipiment .7 years
Interconnection and collocation costs 10 years
Leaschold improvements . .. Life of lease
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(1) Basls of Presentation and Related Matters — {Continued )

Deferred Financing Fees

Deferred financing fees include commitment fees and other costs related 1o certain debt hnancing
transachions and arc being amortized using the effective interest method over the imtial term of the related
debt

Revenue Recognition

Revenue 15 recognized as services are provided and 15 recorded net of interconnection payments to local
exchange carners. Billings to customers for services in advance of providing such services are deferred and
recognized as revenue when eamed

Earnings (Loss) Per Commaon Share

The computanon of earmungs (loss) per common share 15 based upon the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. For the per share computanion, accrued dividends on the Senes A Preferred
Stock have been added to the reported net loss. The effect of including common stock options and warrants as
commen stock equivalents would be anu-dilutuve and is excluded from the calculanon of loss per common
share

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for temporary differences between financial statement and income
tix bases of assets and liahilities and loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards for which income tas
benefits are expected 1o be realized in future years. A valuaton allowance s established to reduce deferred tan
assets if it is more likely than not that all, or some portion, of such deferred tax assets will not be realized The
effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the penod that includes the
enactment dale

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made 1o the 1994 financial statements to conform to the 1995
presentation Such reclassificauons had no effect en net loss or tolal stockholders’ equity
(1) Networks, Equipment and Furniture

Metworks, equipment and furniture consists of the following at June 10

1993 1994
Networks and lelecommunications equipment $15,570,450 505,214
Furniture and fixtures . 3127112 20,654
15,897,562 515,872
| exs — accumulated depieciation and amortization 330,272 1,954
Total. net of accumulated depreciation and amortization $15.567,2 522918

(1) Private Placements

In October 1994, the Company completed a pnivate placement of its 9% Senes A Convertible Prelerned
Stock, $1.00 par value (the "Senes A Preferred Stock™). There were | 38,89 shares issued for cash at 3% per
share with proceeds of $10,962.046, net of placement agent commissions and related placement fees and costs
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MUNICATIONS SFRVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS — (Continued)

AMERICAN COM
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

{(3) Private Placements — (Continued )

several other nbligations were retired with proceeds of 1he
tatements Further, as discussed in note 6 to the consolidated

financial stalements, certuin parties oblained walrants 1o purchase shares of the Company’s commun stock Ir
June 1995, the Senes A Prefened Stock was exchanged for an identical number of 9% Series A-| Convertifile

Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value (the Senes A-l Preferred Stock)

In addition, bridge financing was converied and
offering. See note 4 to the consolidated tinancial »

prvate placement of 1ts 9% Senes B-1 Converthic

Preferred Stock (the "Senes H-| Preferred’), ¥% Senes B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock {the "Senes B-.
Preferred™) and 9% Senes H-1 C anvertible P'referred Siock (the "Senes B-J Preferred” ), each having a pa
value of $1.00 per share (the Senes B Preferred, Series B-2 Preferred and Senes B-1 Preferred. hereatte:
collectively referred to as the “Series I Preferred Stock”). There were 227,500 shares 1ssued for cash at S10v
per share with proceeds of 320,661 800, et of placement agents commissions and related placement fees and
costs, An additional 50,000 shares ol 9%, Neries -4 Converuble Preferred Stock (the “Senes H-4 Preferred
Stock™), $1.00 par value, will be psued for $3,000,000 in cash less commissions upon the achicvement o
certain milestones. The Company curfently expecis to mee!l these requirements by the end of the second
quarter of 1996. Additionally, as discussed in note & 10 the consolidated financial staternents, certain partic

obtained warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock

In June 1995, the Company completed a second

The Company's Preferred Stock and common stock vole as & single class (except with respect to the
election of directors and certain transaciions and matters) with the common stock entitled 1o one vite oo

share and the Preferred Stock entitled to one vote for each share of commaon stock mto which it 1s convertibue
At lune 10, 1995, the outstanding Senes Al Preterred Stock was converuible into 7466 360 shares o

common stock and the outstanding Neres I Preferred Stock (all senes) was converiihle into B, 125008 share
of common stock. 1f issued. the Senes -4 Preferred Stock will be convertible into [, TRS, 714 shares of the

Company’s common stock.

ed 1o elect two directon and the holders of the Preferred Stock are
cctors. In addition, certain transactions and matters require the
y of the shares of Senes A=l Preferred Stock volng as a scpatale
Preferred Stock voling as a separate class

The holders of common stoch are entith
entitled to elect an aggregate of seven dif
consent of the holders of at least the majont
class and a majonity of the shates of Series e

In connection with the Company's private placement oflening of i1s Senes A-| Preferred Stoch, the
Company has recorded $1,070,98% ax a reduction in additional paid-in capital, for the payment of anbicipaled
dividends. The associated investment agreement requires the Company 1o accrue dividends, on s quariesis
basis, at an annual rate of 9 percent of the fuce value of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock. The Senes B
Preferred Stock, which was issued on June 26, 1993, will alse wcerue dividends on a quarterly basis, at

annual rate of 9 percent of their fave value

Allhough the Board of Directon ol the Company has not laken any formal action as of June 30, 995 4.
a condition of the aforementioned agreement, the dividends have been deemed declared and properly reflected
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of June 3O, 1995 Pursuant 1o the resolutior
authorizing the Series A-1 and 1) Preferted Stock, dividends acerued shall be paid cumulatively, beginning
December 31, 1997, or carlier upan conversion Upon such canversion priof 1o December 31, 1997, the
Company may, in licu of accrued and unpaid dividends, issue promissory notes 1o the holders of the Preferred
Stock. The Company will issue promissary notes (o the holders on January 1, 1998 for dividends arcrued, Jf
conversion has not occurred Conversion Mmay occur al any ime al the holder's option of automatically up<
certain qualifying issuance of conmmaon siock, liguidation, on occurrence of certmn INggenng evchits As o

June 30, 1995, no conversiony hane weanried




AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

4y  Debt
Long-term debt 2t June 30 consists of the following:
1993 1
Convertible Bridge Notes, interest at 15%, miluriﬂg
December 31, 1994 - = 1 — 4,300,720
Secured note — stockholder, interest at 15'ic mntunng
December 31, 1994 == 74,000
Secured ccrm*cmblz notes — related paﬂy ar 15%, ma:urng
December 31, : — 606,640
Notes gnyablc -— slnckholdm» at 10-15%, maturing b:pl:rnb:r 15, 1995
and September 14 and 15, 1994, respecuvely 146,083 627,775
AT&T Credit Corporation equipment and working capital financing
Facility . orosaisnrn 3,652,085 -
Total long-term debt : 798,168 5,610,135
Less current portion 146,083 5610135
§3.652,08% -
= T

Principal payments for each of the years from 1996 10 2000 and thereafter, are due as follows at June 30.
1S

Yoear lllill! June M), Amouni
1996 . § 146,083
1997 . . 198,715
1998 190,946
19949 . 176,331
2000 o e 546, 1RO
Thereafter 2,119913
3,198,168

Canverithle Bridge Notes

Un June 28, 1994, the Company issued a total of $4,300,720 pnncipal of 11s 15 percent convertible brdge
notes due December 31, 1994, including $1.300,720 1ssued 10 then ensung stockholders. Dunng 1995, the
holders of $3,300,720 of these convertible bndge notes converted the notes plus accrued interest thereon of
$15,784, 10 37,073 shares of Series A Preferred Stock The remaining 31,000,000 pnncipal amount was retired
by cash payment from the proceeds of the Senes A Preferred Stock offenng (see note 3) The Company
recorded noncash debt conversion expense of $231,000 associated with the relat :d unamortized financing fees

Secured Note — Stockholder

On May 25, 1994, the Company issued a Promissory Note in the prncipal amount of $75.000 to 4
stockholder with an interest rate of 15 percent per annum, due December 31, 1994 As addiuonal
consideration, the Company issued 6,923 shares of common stock. In October 1994, the cash proceeds of the
Senes A Preferred Stock private placement offering were used 1o retire the outstanding principal and accrued
interest assoctated with this secured note (see note 1)
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AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{4) Debt — (Continued)
Secured Convertible Notes

At June 30, 1994, the Company had outstanding loans from affiliates wath an aggregate prncipal balance
of $606.640, which were notes secured by certain assets of the Company. These loans bore interest a1 1*
percent per annum and had a scheduled matunty date of December 31, 1994

In October 1994, the holders of $529,359 principal amount of these notes, plus accrued interest thercan of
§29.368, converted the notes for 7,924 shares of Series A Preferred Stock. The remauning pnncipal on the
secured convertible notes of $77.,281 was retired by a cash payment from the proceeds of the Senes A
Preferred Stock private placement offenng (see note 3) The Company recorded noncash debt conversion
expense of $154,000 cqual to the premium to induce conversion

Demand Norte

In August 1994, the Company borrowed $250,000, at a rate of |3 percent per annum from an athhate tha
was payable on demand. In October 1994, this note was converted for 2.778 shares of Senes A Preferred Stock

{see note 3).

Notes Payvable — Stockholders

At June 30, 1994, the Company had a total of $627,775 1n notes payable 1o stockholders Such noes
payable included $300,000 in ACSI Bndge Notes duc September 14, 1994, $252775 in ALL Senioe
Subordinated Notes Payable (Senior Notes) including accrued interest due Septembsr |5, 1994, that were
convertible into ACSI Brndge Notes, and a note payable to a stockholder of §75,000, that was pad by the
Company on July 6, 1994. The ACSI Bndge Notes and the Scnior Notes bote interest at 10 percent per
annum while the note payable to stockholder bore interest at 15 percent per annum. Additionally, at June 1t
1994, the Senior Notes had attached warrants to purchase a total of 12,500 shares of ACSI common stock foe
cvery $50,000 of principal amount exercisable at $.875

The aforementioned ACSI1 Brndge Notes and Senior Notes due Seplember |4, 1994 and Septermnbe:
1994, respecuvely, were all, with the excepuion of $146,083 pnncipal amount, paid i July and August [994
The matunty date for the remaming $146.083 was extended unul Scptember 14, 1995

At June 30, 1993, ALl had : ort-term notes payable duc to stockholders (ALl Notes Pavable) totaling
£569.994. The notes bore interest at vanous rates ranging from 8 1o 10 percent, which was pavable quarter|s
Immediately prior to the reverse acquisition, as descnbed in note |, a stockholder exchanged the remaming
balance on these ALl Notes Payable totaling $550,000 for 550 shares of no par Senes A Preferred Stock and
628,577 shares of common stock. The Company recordid noncash deb! conversion eapense of §350,000
related to the exchange transaction

Immediately prior to the September 14, 1993 reverse acquistion, ALI nsued $600.000 of Senior
Unsecured Prom “sory Notes (ALl Bndge Notes), which bore interest at 10 percent, payable quarterly The
ALl Bndge Notes had attached warrants to purchase 12,500 shares of common stock of ACSI, exercisable 40
$.875 per share, for every $50.000 of pnncipal amount. The ALl Bndge Notes carned an imnal term of o1e
year. In conjunction with the reverse acquisition, the AL] Bndge Notes were converted into ACSI Brdge
Notes (ACSI Bndge Notes). As an inducement 1o convert, the holders of the ALT Bndge Notes recerved. &
no cost, 12,300 shares of ACS] common stock for every $50,000 of pnncipal amount. The Company recorded
4 noncash debt conversion expense of $131,250 in 1994 associated with the debt conversion. Dunng 1994, the
Company made pnncipal payments totaling $150,000 to the holders of such ACS] Bndge Notes The
Company also tssued 400,000 shares of common stock at $2.50 per share for cash totaling $850,000 in
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{4) Debt — (Continued)

satisfaction of $150,000 of such ACSI Bridge Notes. The issuance of the common stock has been recorded
an increase in additional paid-in capital net of offening costs totaling $151,000.

Additionally, in anucipation of the September 14, 1993 reverse acquisiion, certan stockholders
converted 100 shares of AL Series A Preferred Stock, 36,372 shares of ALl commeon stock, and 3,325 shares
of ACC common stock to Senior Notes with principal value of $135,17% The Senior Notes bore interest at 10
percent and matured in one year. Stockholders alto exchanged short-term notes payable totaling $107.083 for

Senior Notes.

AT&T Credir Corporation Equipment and Working Capital Financing Facilin

The Company has an arrangement for an anticpated $31,200,000 secured equipment and working capital
financing facility with AT&T Credut Corporation Each network is treated as a scparate loan facility which has
4 matunty date of nine years after the closing of the facility. Each loan shall bear inlerest at a rate per annum
cqual to a fixed rate of a vanable rate, computed on the basis of a 360 day year compounded monthly The
varishle rate is based upen the average offening rate for three month commereial paper. The fined rate 15 based
upon the “ask yields" of United States seven vear treasury notes

Interest on each loan shall be payabie quarterly in arrears on each payment date providing that no event
f defaw.. has occurred. All of the principal and related interest payments are deferred for twenty-four months
trom the date of closing The Company is responsible for an interest deferral rate ranging from 5 1o 5 7%
pereent

The Company’s subsidiancs, which have built and are currently operating networks 1n Lowswille,
Kentucky, Fort Worth, Texas, and Greenville and Columbra, Scuth Carolina, have recewved loan commit-
ments totaiing approxmately $19.8 million under this arrangement, of which approximately $3,650,000,
including interest of approximately $142,000, which 1s accruing at rales ranging from 11.76 1o 13,59 percent,
has been drawn down at June 30, 1995 The Company also sold a 7.2% percent ownership interest an the
L oumsvilie and Fort Worth subsidiaries 1o AT&T Credit Corporation dunng 1995, Pursuant to this facility,
subsequent to June 30, 1995, the Company also sold a 7.2% percent ownership interest 1n its Greenville and
¢ olumbia, South Carolina subsidiaries 1o ATLAT Credit Corporatnon and received additional loan commut-
ments from AT&T Credit Corporation totaling $5.5 mullion for nts E! Paso, Teaas network on substantially
identical terms.

The AT&T Credit Corporation facility 1s subject to certain conditions with respect to the funding of each
cinv's network. including the execution of definitive loan documents, the completion of due diligence and
submission of business plans satisfactory to the lender for each neiwork 1o be funded

The provisions of the facility restrict the subsidianes’ incurrence of hens and other indebiedness, sale of
asscts, dividend payments, and other activitics not designated in the business plan. Additionally, timels
reporting of financial and other non-financial information is required as well as maintaining the established
mummum cash flow requirements, fixed charge coverage, and debt service reserve. At June 30, 1995, the
Company and 1ts subsidianes were in compliance with the covenants contained in the agreements

Further, pursuant to the facility, the Company s required 10 purchase certain minimum levels of
cquipment from AT&T, an affibate of AT&T Credit Corporation, at prevailing market prices. At June 30,
1995 the Con.pany 18 required to purchase appromimately §2.3 million in AT&T equipment over the next two
vears For the vear ended June 30, 1995, the Company purchased approximately $1,775,000 of telecommuni-
cations equipment from AT&T. which amount 1s recorded as networks, equipment and furmiture within the
dccompanying consolidated financial statements,
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i8) Stockholders' Equity

Commaon Stock

In 1995, the Company cstablished a par value of $.01 for its 1ssued and outstanding common stk

AT

In 1994, prior 1o the September 14, 1993 reverse acquisilion (see note 1), the Company wssued [ 4]
shares of commen stock in settlement of $132,636 in Labilites payable for services rendered GLL waued
212,500 shares of commeon stock 1n payment of $185,938 in services to effect the reverse acquisttion Thi

amount was charged to paid-in-capital

Additionally, ir October 1993, the Company approved the issuance of a total of 5000 shares of the
common stock of the Company to an employee in consideration for services performed. Noncash compensa

tion expense recorded for the transacuon was §4,375,

Preferred Stock

Pursuant to the Senes B Preferred Stock offening, as descnbed in note 3, four classes of Senes H
Preferred Stock have been 1ssued The composition of the Senes B Preferred Stock at June 30, 1994 o 4.

follows

Preferred Stock, §1.00 par value, 100,000 shares designatzd as 9% Senes b-1

Convertible Preferred Stock authonzed, issued and outstanding § 100,000
Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, 102,500 shares designated as 9% Senes B-2

Convertible Preferred Stock authonzed, 1ssued and outstanding - . 102,500
Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, 25,000 shares designated as 9% Senes B-1

Convertible Preferred Stock authorized, 1ssued and outstanding 25,000

Preferred Stock. $1.00 par value, 50,000 shares authunzed and designated as 9%
Senies B-4 Convertible Preferred Stock: none issued and outstanding -

Total §227,500

(6) Stock Options and Stock Purchase Warrants

The Company has a stock option plan which provides for the granting of options to certan officers
employees. and affiiated members of ine Company to purchase shares of 1t1s common siock within presenbed
periods at a pnce which generally equals the farr market value an the date of grant.

In 1994, the Company entered into employment agreements with five executive otficers In 19935, the
employment agreements were amended As of June 30, 1995, fursuant to the agreements, as amended, such
executive officers have been granted options to purchase 3,999,835 shares of common stock of the Company al
exctoise prices ranging from $.875 to 52.B0 per share. The options vest at vanous dates as specilied in the
employment agreements with 3,919,835 of the oplions vesting on specific dates ranging from Ocrober 31, 1993
to March 31, 1998, s..d 80,000 of such options vesting upon the occurrence of certain specified performance
milestones from August 31, 1995 through September |, 1996. When the employment of these individuals with
the Company terminates, these individuals have the nght to sell certain of their shares to the Company (the
put nght) for a pnee equal to far market value. On June 26, 1995, the employment agreements were amended
to limit the purchase price paid by the Company pursuant to the put nght 10 a maximum of §2,500,000, which
amount 1s subject 10 funther reduction based on the employees’ sales of stock. As of June 30, 1995 and 1994,
2.586,487 and 549,966 of the options are vested and exercisable, respectively Noncash compensation expense
assoctated with these agreements amounted to approximately $6,382,000 and $628,000, in 1995 and 1994,
tespectively
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{6) Stock Options and Stock Purchase Warrants — (Continued)

Dunng 1995 and in connection with the Senes A and Senes B Preferred Stock pnvate placements and
related bridge note conversions, warrants for 4,258 810 shares of common stock were issued at prices ranging
from $.01 10 $3.10. Subsequently, 2,299,967 in such options and warrants were exercised dunng the year for

proceeds lotaling approximately $305,000.

The Company has also issued 500,000 options to a supplier to purchase stock at 90 percent of the fair
value at the date of exercise. Such options give the supplier the nght to sell the stock acquired bach to the
Company at fair value. None of the options have been exercised to date and they expire in June of 1998 The
Company's obligation with respect 1o the options 1s included in redeemable stock. options, and warrants in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Stock option activity for the years ended June 30, 1995 and 1994 15 as follows

H_! FPrice Per Share

Balances, June 30, 1993 - 5 -
Giranted . . =l o R i HSK.HTS BT5- 310
Cancelled ........ . . = e
Balances, June 30, 1994 HSK BTS B75 - 310
Granted .. ., ..., . 4,935,314 875 - 400
Exercised — -
Cancelled .. i {100,000 ) 2258
Balances, June 30, 1995 5,694, 1849 5 875 400

In addition 10 the Company's stock option plan, several options and warrants to purchase the Company’s
stock have been issued pursuant o various consulting agreements, bndge note conversions and in connection
with the Company's Senes A Preferred Stock and Senes B Preferred Stock pnivate placements

At June 30, 1994, 512,194 warrants pursuant to consulting and subordinated note agreements, granted 4!
§ K74 dunng 1994, were outstanding. Pursuant 1o these warrant agreements, an addiuonal 2,109 warrants were
issued dunng 1995, Additonally, dunng 1995, 33,412 of such warrants were canceled and 72,500 of such
warrants were exercised. Proceeds to the Company upon the exercise of such warrants approximated 364,006

At June 30, 1995, the remaining warrants outstanding are as follows

M bt FPrice Per Shae

PPursuant to consulting and subordinated note agreements, expiration )
through September 13, 1996 408,391 1 0.875
Senes A and Series B Preferred Stock placements 1,958,843 01 -310
Tatal i i 1,367,134 $§ 0l-310

Subsequent to June 30, 1995, warrants issued 1 connection with the Senes B pnvate placement for
108,268 shares were exercised at $.01 per share.

{7} Commitments and Contingencies

In October 1993, the Company executed a financial consulting and advisory agreement with a related
party fur a penod of six months. In consideranon, the related pany received warmants to purchase 300,000
shares of ACSI common stock exercisable at $.875 per share if a future equity financing was successfully
completed. The related party had the nght to rescll the shares to ACSI for §2 50 per share two years from the
date of the agreement. At June 30, 1994, the Company provided an accrual of $457,500 for this redemption
privilege at the redemption prnce net of the exercise price. In June 1995, the Company was released from s
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{7} Commitments and Contingencies — (Continued)

obligations to repurchase the shares. Accordingly, as of June 30, 1995, the $487,500 share value has been
iransferred from redeemable stock, options, and warrants to additional paid-in-capital.

As of June 30, 1995, the Company has signed nonexclusive license agreements with vanous utility and
inter exchange carner compames, including an affiliate of one of the country’s three largest long distance
carriers, 10 install and maintain fiber cable systems for the Company's use for peniods up to |5 years or more.
upon excrcising of extensions available 1o the parties. Under these agreements, the Company has use of thess
nghts-of-way for its teleccommunications sysiems, and may be entitled to cenain payments for providing
telecommunications service, subject to its sausfactory performance of certain agreed upon requirements

{B) Leases

The Company is obligated under vanous noncancelable operating leases for office and node space av well
as office furniture, The mimmum future lease obligations under these noncancelable operating leases as of
June 30, 1995 are, approximately, as follows:

Year ending June W, Amouni
1996 § TB7.0OD
1997 ., o 719,000
1998 04, D00
1999 §6 2,000
2000 . 69000
Therealter . ! HEE, 000
$4.129.000
P—————

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 1995 and 1994 was approximately $200,000 and S48 00k},
respectively.

(9) Related-Party Transactions

The Company and all of its subsidianes are parties to a management services agreement whereby the
Company renders financial, legal, and other administrative and network support services 1n connection with
the development and operaticnal ncods of each subsidiary. A fee, based on direct and allocated costs, s balied
monthly. The term of the agreement 1s imitially 15 years and is renewed automatically for successive  year
terms. Dunng 1995 and 1994, intzrcompany billings for the aforementioned arrangement were approximately
§2.3 million and $0, respectively, all of which have been eliminated in consolidation

On June 16. 1994, the Company entered into a financial consulting agreement for capital rasing acuvinies
with an entity controlled by significant stockholders of the Company Under this agreement. the Company
paid $153,750 for consuluing services rendered through the date of the agreement relating to placement of the
Convertible Bridge Notes. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay & $7,500 monthly consulting fee for a two
year period beginring on the closing date of the first private placement. Dunng 1995, the Company paid
$67.500 under this arrangement.

Effective July 1, 1994, the Company engaged SGC Advisory Services, Inc. ("SGC") as a financial anu
business consultant for three years SGC is an affiliate of Steven G. Chrust, a director of the Company
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company will compensate SGC as follows: (1) a monthly fee of $5,000, and

2) options 1o purchase up 1o 50,000 shares of the Company's Comimon Stock which vest on July 1, 1997, and
dre exercisable on or before July 1, 1999 At the end of cach month of the term of the ugreement, 5GC earmns o
credit against the exercise pnce of those options equal to 1/36th of the exercise price. The shares 1ssued upon
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(91 Related-Party Transactions — (Continued }
cacrcise of the options will be priced at $2.25 per share and the shares issued will have piggy back registration
nghis

An enuity controlled by significant stockholders of the Company provided office space and certan
administrative personnel through February 1, 1994 The Company was charged for these items based on 4
percentage of space occupancy and personnel ume usage. Total charges for the year ended June 30, 1994 were
$78,840 The Company incurred no such costs dunng 1995,

(10} Income Taxes

Temporary differences and carryforwards that give nse to deferred tax assets and labilities at June 30 are
an follows:

roos 19%4
Dicferred tan assels

Capitahized start-up and other costs Cooo 84161941 1,898,244
Stock options — noncash compensation . G 2,768 488 251,510
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,149,755 22551
Other acented liabilities 454,39 -
Tuotal gross deferred tax assets B.536,575 2,175,327
Less valuauon allowance ; e 8,291,380 2,375,327
MNet deferred tax assets . iy 245,195 —

Deferred tax liabilities — fixed assets depreciation and amoruzation 145,195
Met deferred tax assets (liabilines) 5 = =
e - —— -

The valuation allowance for deforred tax assets as of July 1, 1994 was §2,375,327 The net change in the
total valuation allowance for the year ended June 30, 1995 was an increase of $6,161.245 The valuanon
allowances at June 30, 1995 and 1994 are a result of the uncertainty of the ulumate utibizaton of the tay
henetits related to the deferred tax assets. The utilizanion of the 1ax benefits associated with net operating
losses of upproximately $2,927,000 and §564,000 at Tune 30, 1995 and 1994, respectively, is dependent upon
the Company's abilty to generate future taxable income. The net operating loss carmyforward peniod expires
commencing in 2008 through the year 2010. Further, as a result of certain financing and capital transactions,
afe annual imitaton on the future utilization of the net operatng loss carrvforward may have vccurred.

No income tax provision has been provided for the years ended Junme 30, 1995 and 1994 as the
aforementioned deferred 1ax assels have provided no tax henefit.
{11y Major Customers

Prunimg 19935, special access services provided by the Company to three long distance carners accounted
for 8% percent of total revenues. No revenues were recorded 1n 1994
(12} Exchange of Stock

Un June |, 1994, the Company entered into an agreement to exchange 548,387 shares of ACS1 Commaon
Stock for all 1,700 1ssued and outstanding shares of ACSI1 Preferred Stock. This transaction was completed in
July 1994
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(13) Acquisition

On September 12, 1994 the Company exccuted a Stock Purchase Agreement with Piedmont Teleport
Inc. under which the Company acquired certain assets, liabilitics, and certain nght-of-way agreements for
§20.000 in cash and the issuance of 62,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The Company accounted
for the acquisition as a purchase and, accordingly, the purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilitics assumed based upon their estimated fair values at September 12, 1994, The seller has the nght 1
put these shares back to the Company on November 1, 1996 for a pnice of $2.50 per share. Accordingly. this
obligation is recorded as redeemable stock in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
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MARKS, AND ABBREVIATIONS OF TECHNICAL
TERMS USED IN THIS TARIFF

The following symbols shall be used in this wriff for the purpose indicated below:

C To signify changed regulation.

D To signify discontinued rate or regulation

| To signify increased rate.

M To signify a move in the location of text,

N To signify new rate or regulation.

R To signify reduced rate.

) To signify reissued maner.

T To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation
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APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the furnishing
of intrastate end-user communications services by American Communication Services of
Jacksonville, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Company, to customers within the State of Flonda
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DEFINITIONS

Cernain terms used generally throughout this tariff are defined below.

Account Codes: Permits Centrex Stations and attendants to dial an account code number of up 1o eight
digits. For use when placing calls over facilities arranged for Automatic Message Accounung
(AMA) recording. The account or project number must be input prior to dialing the called
number.

Advance Payment: Part or all of a payment required before the stan of service.

DID Trunk: A form of local switched access that provides the ability for an outside party to call an
internal extension directly without the intervention of the company operator,

Automatic Number Identification (ANI): Allows the automatic transmission of a caller’s billing

account telephone number to a local exchange company, interexchange carrier or a third party
subscriber. The primary purpose of ANI is to allow for billing of toll calls.

Bit' The smallest unit of information in the binary system of notation.

Call Back/Camp On: Permits a station line encountering an all-trunk-busy condition the option of
being notified when a trunk becomes idle.

Call Forwarding:
ion: Allows calls directed to a station line to be routed to a user defined
line inside or outside the customer's telephone system.

Call Forwarding System: Permits calls attempting to terminate (o a busy station line (o be
re-directed to a predetermined line inside or outside the customer's telephone system.

Call Forwarding Remote: This optional fearure allows a user to activate/deactivate the Call
Forwarding - All Calls feare or change the forwarded to telephone number from a remote
location,

lssued: June 3, 1996 Effective: ______
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DEFINITIONS

Call Forwarding Busy: Allows incoming calls to a busy station to be routed to a preselected station
line or attendant within the same system or outside the system. Intercom calls can be arranged to
be forwarded to a number different from DID calls.

Call Forwarding Don't Answer: Allows incoming calls to be automatically routed to a preselected
station line or attendant in the same system or outside the system, when the called station is not

answered after a preset number of rings. Intercom calls can be arranged to be forwarded to a
number different from DID calls.

Call Forwarding Variable Limited: When this feature is activated by a station line user or the

attendant, incoming calls to the activated station line or attendant position will be automatically
routed to any other selected station line, within the same Centrex system, or (o the atiendant
position. The attendant may also activate this feature for a station line user.

Call Forwarding Variable Unlimited: The same as Call Forwarding Variable Limited except that
incoming calls may be automatically routed to a telephone number outside the Centrex system or

to station lines within the same Centrex system. The aftendant may not activate this feature to a
telephone number outside the Centrex system for a station line use. Calls forwarded outside the
Centrex system are subject to the appropriate charges for local and toll messages.

Call Hold: Allows the user to hold one call for any length of time provided that neither party goes
on-hook.

Call Park: Allows a station line to park a call against its own line number. The parked call can be
retrieved from any station line by dialing a feature code and the line number against which the call
is parked.

Call Pickup: Allows a station line to answer incoming calls to another station line within a defined
call pickup group. Call pickup is provided on individual station lines within a customer group.

Issued: June 3, 1996 . Effective:
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DEFINITIONS

Call Transfer: Allows a station line user to transfer any established call to another station line inside
or outside the customer group without the assistance of the attendant.

Call Waiting: Permits a line in the talking state to be alerted by a tone when another call is attempting

to complete to the line. Audible ringing is reiurned (o the originating line. The Service also
provides a hold feature that is activated by a switchhook flash.

Communication Services: The Company's intrastate toll and local exchange switched telephone
services offered for both intraLATA and interLATA use.

Company or ACSI: American Communication Services of Jacksonville, Inc., the issucr of this tanff

Customer or Subscriber: The person, firm or corporation that orders service and is responsible for
the payment of charges and compliance with the Company's regulations.

Dial Pulse (or "DP"): The pulse rype =mployed by rotary dial station sets.

Direct Inward Dial (or "DID"): A service attribute that routes incoming calls directly to stations,
by-passing a central answering point.

Direct Qurward Dial (or "DOD"): A service attribute that allows individual station users to access and

dial outside numbers directly.

Do Not Disturh: Permits the antendant to cut off a single station line and selected groups of station
lines from receiving incoming and station-to-station calls.

DSX-1 Panel: Distribution equipment used to terminate and administer DS1 (1.544 Mbps) circuits.

Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (or "“DTME"): The pulse type employed by tone dial station sets.

Duplex Service: Service that provides for simultaneous transmission in both directions.
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DEFINITIONS

Eiber Optic Cable: A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a light beam
carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal reflections to
a receiver, which translates the message.

Hunting: Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station line is
busy.

lo-Only: A service attribute that restricts outward dial access and routes incoming calls to a
designated answer point.

loint Usar: A person, firm or corporation that is designated by the Customer as a user of services
furnished to the Customer by ACSI and to whom a portion of the charges for the service will be
billed under a joint user arrangement as specified herein.

Kbps: Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

Last Number Redial: Enables a station line user to redial the last called number by use of an access
code rather than dialing the enure number.

LATA: A Local Access and Transpon Area established pursuant to the Modification of Final
Judgment entered by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action
No. 82-0192; or any other geographic area designated as a LATA in the National Exchange
Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.

Local Exchange Carrier or ("LEC"): Denotes any individual, partnership, association, joint-stock
company, trust or corporation engaged in providing switched communication within an cxchange.

Mbps: Megabits, denotes millions of bits per second.

Multi-Frequency or (*ME"): An inter-machine pulse-type used for signalling between telephone
swilches, or between telephone switches and PBX/key systems.

Recurring Charges: The monthly charges to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment,
that continue for the agreed upon duration of the service.
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DEFINITIONS

Service Commencement Date: The first day following the date on which the Company notifies the
Customer that the requested service or facility is available for use, unless extended by the
Customer's refusal to accept service that does not conform to standards set forth in the Service
Order or this tariff, in which case the Service Commencement Date is the date of the Customer's
acceptance. The Company and Customer may mutually agree on a substtute Service
Commencement Date.

Service Order: The written request for Network Services executed by the Customer and the Company
in the format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order by the Customer and
acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein
and pursuant to this tariff, but the duration of the service is calculated from the Service
Commencement Date.

Shared: A facility or equipment system or subsystem that can be used simultaneously by several
Customers.

Speed Calling: Permits a station line user to dial sclected numbers by using fewer digits than normally

required. This is accomplished through the assignment of abbreviated codes to frequently called
numbers. The speed calling list is customer-changeable.

System: Allows shared use of speed calling list. A control station will add, change or delete
telephone numbers from the list for the group.

Station: Allows a station line user to add, change or delete telephone numbers from a speed calling
list. The list is dedicated to the individual station line user.

Three-Way Calling: Allows a station line user to add a third party to an existing conversation.

Two Way: A service anribute that includes outward dial capabilities for outbound calls and can also
be used to carry inbound calls to a central point for further processing.

User or End User: A Customer, Joint User, or any other person authorized by a Customer (o use
service provided under this tariff.
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Undenaking of the Company
21.1 Scope

The Company undertakes to furnish communications service pursuant to the terms of this
tariff in connection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission between pounts
within the State of Florida.

Customers and users may use services and facilitics provided under this tariff to obtain
access 10 services offered by other service providers. The Company is responsible under
this tariff only for the services and facilities provided hercunder, and it assumes no
responsibility for any service provided by any other entity thal purchases access to the
Company network in order to originate or terminate its own services, or (o communicate
with its own customers.
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REGUILATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.2  Shortage of Equipment or Facilitics

A)

B)

The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities,
or of additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack
of facilities, or due to some other cause beyond the Company's control.

The furnishing of service under this tariff is subject to the availability on a
continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the
Company's facilities as well as facilities the Company may obuin from other
carriers 1o furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of

the Company .
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.3 Tcrms and Conditions

A)

B)

<

D)

Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one month, 24-
hours per day. For the purpose of computing charges in this tariff, a month 1s
considered to have 30 days.

Customers may be required to enter into writien service orders which shall contain
or reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged,
the duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this tariff. Customers
will also be required to execute any other documents as may be reasonably

requested by the Company.

At the expiration of the initial term specified in each Service Order, or in any
extension thereof, -2srvice shall continue on a month-to-month basis at the then
current rates unless terminated by either party upon 30 days’ written notice. Any
termination shall not relieve the Cusiomer of its obligation to pay any charges
incurred under the service order and this tarif prior to termination. The rights
and obligations which by their nature extend beyond the termination of the term
of the service order shall survive such termination.

In any action between the parties to enforce any provision of this taniff, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its legal fees and court costs from the
non-prevailing party in addition o other relief a court may award.

lssued: June 3, 1996

Issued By:

W DOOTOCHM T 4

Effective:

Riley M. Murphy, EVP - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
American Communications Services, Inc,

131 National Business Parkway

Suite 100

Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701




American Communication Services of Jacksonville, Inc. Fla. P.5.C No |

Section 2 - Original Page 4

REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.3  Terms and Conditions (Cont'd)

E)

G)

H)

Service may be terminated upon written notice to the Customer i
1) the Customer is using the service in violation of this tariff; or
2) the Customer is using the service in violation of the law,

This tariff shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of Florida
regardless of its choice of laws provision.

BellSouth Telephone Company must not interfere with the right of any person or
entity to obtain service directly from the Company. No person or entity shall be
required to make any payment, incur any penalty, monetar, or otherwise, or
purchase any services in order to have the right to obtain service directly from the

Company.

To the extent that either the Company or any other telephone company exercises
control over available cable pairs, conduit, duct space, raceways, or other
facilities needed by the other 10 reach a person or entity, the party exercising such
control shall make them available to the other on terms equivalent to those under
which the Company makes similar facilities under its control available to its
customers. Al the recasonable request of either party, the Company and the other
telephone company shall join the attempt to obtain from the owner of the property
access for the other party to serve a person or entity.
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Underaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.4 Liability of the Company

A)

B)

The liability of the Company for damages arising out of the furnishing of its
Services, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays,
or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of these services or arising out
of the failure 1o furnish the service, whether caused by acts or omission, shall be
limited to the extension of allowances for interruption as set forth in 2.6. The
extension of such allowances for interruption shall be the sole remedy of the
Customer and the sole liability of the Company. The Company will not be liable
for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, consequential, exemplary or punitive
damages to Customer as a result of any Company service, equipment or facilities,
or the acts or omissions or negligence of the Company’s employees or agenis.

The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or
equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of
God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation,
direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or of any other
government, including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction
over the Company, or of any department, agency, commission, bureau,
corporation, or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state,
or local governments, or of any civil or military authority; national emergencies;
insurrections; riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way or materials, or strikes,
lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties.
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.4  Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

)

D)

E)

The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any entity furnishing
to the Company or to the Company's Customers facilities or equipment used for
or with the services the Company offers.

The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses duc to the fault or
negligence of the Customer or due to the failure or malfunction of Customer-
provided equipment or facilities.

The Company does not guaranice nor make any warranty with respect (o
installations it provides for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer
indemnities and holds the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims,
demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered,
made, institmed, or assened by any other party or person(s), and for any loss,
damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or
others, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the
installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal presence,
condition, location, or use of any installation so provided. The Company reserves
the right to require each Customer to sign an agreement acknowledging acceptance
of the provisions of this section 2.1 4(E) as a condition precedent to such
installations.
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

F)

G)

H)

L)

The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to Customer premises
resulting from the furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the
installation or removal thereof, unless such defacement or damage is caused by
negligence or willful misconduct of the Company's agents or employees.

The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer
against any claim, loss or damage arising from Customer's use of services,
involving claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of
copyright arising from the Customer's own communications.

The entire uability for any claim, loss, damage or expense from any cause
whatsoever shall in no event exceed sums actually paid the Company by the
Customer for the specific services giving rise to the claim. No action or
proceeding against the Company shall be commenced more than one year after the
service is rendered.

THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW,
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT
THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

Issued: June 3, 1996

Issued By:

N DD TOCHML 20T 40

Effective:

Riley M. Murphy, EVP - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
American Communications Services, Inc.

131 National Business Parkway

Suite 100

Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701



American Communication Services of Jacksonville, Inc Fla PS5C No |
Section 2 - Original Page 8§

REGULATIONS

2.1  Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.5 Notification of Service-Affccting Activitics

The Company will provide the Customer reasonable notification of service-affecuing
activities that may occur in normal operation of its business. Such activities may include,
but are not limited to, equipment or facilities additions, removals or rearrangements and
routine preventative maintenance. Generally, such activities are not specific 0 an
individual Customer but affect many Customers’ services. No specific advance
notification period is applicable to all service activities. The Company will work
cooperatively with the Customer to determine the reasonable notification requirements
With some emergency or unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an outage
resulting from cable damage, notification to the Customer may not be possible
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REGULATIONS

2.4 Customer Equipment and Chanaels (Cont'd)
2.4 4 lnspections

A)

B)

Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company
may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the
Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in Section 2 4 2(B) for the
installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities,
equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and
equipment to Company-owned facilities and equipment.

If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being
complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary tw protect
its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer
promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten days of
receiving this notice, the Customer must take this corrective action and notify the
Company of the action taken. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may
take whatever additional action is deemed necossary, including the suspension of
service, to protect its facilities, equipment and personnel from harm.
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REGULATIONS

24 Customer Equipment and Channcls (Cont'd)
2.43 |Interconnection of Facilitics

A)

B)

C)

D)

Any special interface equipment necessary (o achieve compatibility berween the
facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communication
Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be providad ar
the Customer's expense.

Communication Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other
communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with, the
terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers that are
applicable to such connections.

Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer-provided
terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tanff. All such
terminal equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications
Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Tite 47, Code of Federal Regulations, and all
User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those
regulations.

Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in pan
for interstate communications to services provided under this tariff only 1o the
extent that the user is an is "End User” as defined in Section 69.2(m), Title 47,
Code of Federal Regulations (1992 edition)
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REGUILATIONS

24 Customer Equipment and Channcls

24.1 Geperal

A User may transmut or receive information or signals via the facilities of the Company
The Company's services arc designed primarily for the transmission of voice-grade
telephonic signals, except as otherwise stated in this tanff. A User may transmit any form
of signal that is compatible with the Company's equipment, but the Company does not
guarantee that its services will be suitable for purposes other than voice-grade telephonic
communication except as specifically stated in this wariff.

242 Swuvion Equipment

A)

B)

Terminal equipment on the User's Premises and the electric power consumed by
such equipment shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the User
The User is responsible for the provision of wiring ur cable to connect its terminal
equipment to the Company Point of Connection.

The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment
connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such equipmen
and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed
on Company-provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or
maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage
to the Company-provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's
employees or (o other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to
prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the
Customer's expense.
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REGULATIONS

2.3 Qbligations of the Customer (Cont'd)

232 Claims

With respect to any service or facility provided by the Company, Customers shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from and against all claims, actions.
damages, liabilitics, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees for

A)

B)

any loss, destruction or damage to the property of the Company or any third party.
or death or injury to persons, including, but not limited to, employees or invitees
of cither party, to the extent caused by or resulting from the negligent or
intentional act or omission of the Customer, its employees, agents, represeniatves
or irvitees; or

any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any copynght,
patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or intellectual property right of any third
party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer, including, without
limitation, use of the Company's services and facilities in a manner not
contemplated by the agreement between the Customer and the Company .
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REGULATIONS

2.3 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d)
2.31 General (Com'd)

F)

G)

H)

complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtainin2 all consents,
approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the locaticn
of Company facilities and equipment in any Customer premises or the rights-of-
way for which Customer is responsible under Section 2.3.1(D); and granting or
obtaining permission for Company agents or employees (o enter the premises of
the Customer at any time for the purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining,
repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the facilities
or equipment of the Company,

not creating, or allowing to be placed, any liens or other encumbrances on the
Company's equipment or facilities; and

making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for mainienance
purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No
allowance will be made for the period during which service is interrupted for such

purposes.
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RECULATIONS

2.3 Obligauons of the Customer (Cont'd)
2.3.1 Geperal (Comt'd)

D)

E)

obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for all nghts-of
way and conduits necessary for installation of fiber optic cable and associated
equipment used to provide Communication Services to the Customer from the
cable building entrance or property line to the location of the equipment space
described in 2.3.1(C). Any and all costs associated with obtaining and maintaining
the rights-of-way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to
permit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by,
or may be charged by the Company to, the Customer. The Company may require
the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior (o accepting an
order for service,

providing a safe place to work and complying wich all laws and regulations
regarding the working conditions on the premises al which Company employees
and agents shall be installing or maintaining the Company’s facilities and
equipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company
facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion,
injury or damage to the Company's employees or property might result from
installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be responsible
for identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous material
(e.g. friable asbestos) prior to any construction or installation work;,
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REGULATIONS
2.3 Obligations of the Customer
2.3.1 General
The Customer shall be responsible for:
A) the payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff,
B) damage to or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions
of the Customer; or the noncompliance by the Customer, with these regulations, or by fire

or theft or other casualty on the Customer Premises, unless caused by the negligence or
willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company;

C) providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed
personnel, equipment space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment
installed on the premises of the Customer, and the level of heating and air conditioning
necessary (o maintain the proper operating environment on such premises,

Issued: June 3, 1996 Effective:

Issued By: Riley M. Murphy, EVP - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
American Communications Services, Inc.
131 National Business Parkway
Suite 100

B D00 FTOCHM W 4 | A,N'I-Ipﬂlh Jl.l-mtiﬂﬂ. Mll}‘lll'ﬂ 20701




Amencan Communication Services of Jacksonville, Inc. Fla. PSC No |
Section 2 - Origina! Page 13

A) The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use
as to which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals,
authorizations, licenses, consents and permits.

B) The Company may require applicants for service who intend to use the Company’s
offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that
their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and Florida Public
Service Commission regulations, policies, orders, and decisions.

) The Company may require a Customer to immediately shut down its transmission of
signals if said transmission is ¢ wsing interference to others.

D) A customer, joint user, or authorized user may not assign, or transfer in any manner, the
service or any rights associated with the service without the written consent of the
Company. The Company will permit a Customer to transfur its existing service to another
entity if the existing Customer has paid all charges owed to the Company for regulated
communications services. Such a transfer will be treated as a disconnection of existing
service and installation of new service, and non-recurring installation charges as stated in
this tariff will apply.
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REGULATIONS

Underaking of the Company (Cont'd)

2.1.8  Special Construction

Subject to the agreement of the Company and to all of the regulations contained in this
taniff, special construction of facilities may be undertaken on a reasonable efforts basis at
the request of the Customer. Special construction is that construction underaken:

A)

B)

)

D)
E)
F)
G)

H)

where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other requirement for
the facilities so constructed,

of a type other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the
furnishing of its services;

over a route other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the
furnishing of its services;

in a quantity greater than that which the Company would normally construct,
on an expedited basis;

on a temporary basis until permanent facilities are available;

involving abnormal costs, or

in advance of its normal construction,

2.1.9 Ownership of Fagilitics

Title to all facilities provided in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company, its
agents Or CONLractors.
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REGULATIONS
Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.7 Non-routine Installation

b

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the
Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based
on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged 1o the Company
will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer s
request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limted
to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.6 Provision of Equipmem and Facilitics (Cont’d)

E)

G)

The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges as set forth
herein for visits by the Company's agents or employees to the Premises of the
Customer when the service difficulty or trouble report results from the use of
equipment or facilities provided by any party other than the Company, including
but not limited to the Customer.

The Company shall not be responsible for the insuallation, operation. or
maintenance of any Customer-provided communications equipment. Where such
equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this wriff, the
responsibility of ye Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered
under this tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities. Subject
to this responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for:

1) the transmission of signals by Customer-provided equipment or for the
quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or

2) the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment.
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REGULATIONS

2.1 Undenaking of the Company (Cont'd)
2.1.6 Provision of Equipment and Facilitics

A)

B)

C)

D)

The Company shall use reasonable efforts to make available services 1o a
Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of and
compliance by the Customer with, the regulations contained in this taritt. The
Company does not guarantee availability by any such date and shall not be liable
for any delays in commencing service to any Customer

The Company shall use reasonable efforts to mainwin only the facilities and
equipment that it furnishes to the Customer. The Customer may not, nor may the
Customer permit others to, rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or
otherwise interfere with any of the facilities or equipment installed by the
Company, except upon the written consent of the Company.

The Company may substitute, change or rearrange any equipment or facility at
any time and from time to time, but shall not thereby alter the technical parameters
of the service provided the Customer.

Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer Premises for use in
connection with the services the Company offers shall not be used for any purpose
other than that for which it was provided by the Company.
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5.7 Centrex Service

Centrex Service provides the Customer with multiple individual voice-grade 1elephone
communications channels, each of which can be used to place or receive one call at a time,
Centrex Station Lines are provided for connection of Centrex-compatible Customer-provided
station sets to the public switched telecommunications network. Centrex Service standard and
optional features are described in Section | of this tariff. Centrex Service is provided with a
minimum of five Centrex Station Lines. Each Centrex Station Line is provided in combination
with other Company-provided services. Centrex Services are offered as Centrex Basic and
Centrex Select.

5.7.1 Centrex Basic

The standard features are as follows:

Torch Tone
Call Transfer

Call Hold
Three-Way Conference Calling
* Some fearures may not be available in all locations.

5.7.2 Centrex Select
The standard fearures are as follows:

Touch Tone Call Forward/Variable
Call Transfer Systemn Speed Dial
Call Hold Call Pick-up
Three-Way Conferencing Call Hunting

Call Forward/Busy Call Waiting

Call Forward/Don't Answer

* Some features may not be available in all locations.
Additional non-recurring and monthly recurring Centrex Service charges are listed in Section
5.1.5.
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The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for facilities and services
furnished by the Company to the Customer and to all Users authorized by the Customer,
regardless of whether those services are used by the Customer itself or are resold to or
shared with other persons.

A)

Jaxes

The Customer is responsible for payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, exise,
access or other 'ocal, state and federal taxes, charges or surcharges (however
designated) (excluding taxes on Company's net income) imposed on or based upon
the provision, sale or use of Network Services.

252 Billiog and Collcction of Charges

A)

B)

C)

Non-recurring charges are due and payable from the customer within 30 days after
the invoice date, unless otherwise agreed to in advance.

The Company shall present invoices for Recurring Charges monthly to the
Customer, in advance of the month in which service is provided, and Recurring
Charges shall be due and payable within 30 days after the invoice date. When
billing is based on customer usage, charges will be billed monthly for the
preceding billing periods.

When service does not begin on the first day of the month, or end on the last day
of the month, the charge for the fraction of the month in which service was
furnished will be calculated on a pro rata basis. For this purpose, every month is
considered (o have 30 days.
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G)

H)
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Billing of the Customer by the Company will begin on the Service Commencement
Date, which is the first day following the date on which the Company notifies the
Customer that the service or facility is available for use, except that the Service
Commencement Date may be postponed by mutual agreement of the parties, or
if the service or facility does not conform to standards set forth in this tanff or the
Service Order. Billing accrues through and includes the day that the service,
circuit, arrangement or component is discontinued.

If any portion of the payment is received by the Company after the date due, or
if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in funds that are not
immediately available, then a late payment penalty shall be due to the Company
The late payment penalty shall be the portion of the payment not received by the
date due, multiplied by the lesser of the highest percentage allowable by the
Florida Public Service Commission or a late factor of 1.5% per month.

The Customer will be assessed a charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each
check submitted by the Customer to the Company that a financial institution
refused to honor.

Customers have up to 90 days (commencing 5 days after remittance of the bill) o
initiate a dispute over charges or to receive credits.

If service is disconnected by the Company in accordance with section 2.5.5
following and later restored, restoration of service will be subject to all applicable
installation charges
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2.5 Payment Arrangements (Cont’d)
2.5.3  Advance Payments

To safeguard its interests, the Company may require a Customer to make an advance
payment before services and facilities are furnished. The advance payment will not exceed
an amount equal to the non-recurring charge(s) and one month's charges for the service
or facility. In addition, where special construction is involved, the advance payment may
also include an amount equal to the estimated non-recurring charges for the special
construction and recurring charges (if any) for a period to be set between the Company
and the Customer. The advance payment will be credited to the Customer’s initial bill

An advance payment may be required in addition to a deposit.
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2.5 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd)
2.5.4 Deposits

A)

B)
C)

D)

To safeguard its interests, the Company may require a Customer to make a deposit
to be held as a guarantee for the payment of charges. A deposit does not relieve
the Customer of the responsibility for the prompt payment of bills on presentation
The deposit will not exceed an amount equal to:

1) two month's charges for a service or facility that has a minimum payment
period of or~ month; or

2) the charges that would apply for the minimum payment pericd for a
service or facility that has a minimum payment period of more than one
month; except that the deposit may include an additional amount in the
event that a termination charge is applicable.

A deposit may be required in addition to an advance payment.

When a service or facility is discontinued, the amount of a deposit, if any, will be
applied to the Customer's account and any credit balance remaining will be
refunded, Before the service or facility is discontinued, the Company may, at its
option, return the deposit or credit it to the Customer’s account.

Deposits held will accrue interest at a rate determined by the Company without
deductions for any taxes on such deposits. Interest will not accrue on any deposit
after the date on which reasonable effort has been made to return it to the
Customer,
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25  Payment Arrangements (Cont'd)
2.5.5 Discontinuance of Service

A)

B)

0

Upon nonpayment of any amounts owing to the Company, the Company may, by
giving 24 hours prior written notice to the Customer, discontinue or suspend
service without incurring any liability.

Upon violation of any of the other material terms or conditions for furnishing
service the Company may, by giving 30 days' prior notice in writing to the
Customer, discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liabilisy if such
violation continues during tnat period.

Upon condemnation of any material portion of the facilities used by the Company
to provide service to a Customer or if a casualty renders all or any material
portion of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair, the Company, by
notice to the Customer, may discontinue or suspend service without incurring any
liability.
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2.5 Payvment Arrangements (Cont'd)
2.5.6 Cancellation of Application for Service

A)

B)

C)

D)

Applications for service cannot be canceled without the Company's agreement.
Where the Company permits a Customer to cancel an application for service prior
to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be
imposed except for those specified below.

Where, prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs any expenses
in installing the service or in preparing to install the service that it otherwise would
not have incurred, a charge equal to the costs incurred by the Company, less net
salvage, shall apply, but in no case shall this charge exceed the sum of the charge
for the minimum period of services ordered, including installation charges, and
all charges others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to
the Customer had service commenced (all discounted to present value at six
percent).

Where the Company incurs any expense in connection with special construction,
or where special arrangements of facilities or equipment have begun, before the
Company receives a cancellation notice, a charge equal to the costs incurred by
the Company, less net salvage, applies. In such cases, the charge will be bascd
on such elements as the cost of the equipment, facilities, and material, the cost of
installation, engineering, labor, and supervision, general and administrative
expense, other disbursements, depreciation, maintenance, taxes, provision for
return on investment, and any other costs associated with the special construction
or arrangements.

The special charges described in 2.5.6(A) through 2.5.6(C) will be calculated and
applied on a case-by-case basis.
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REGULATIONS
25  Payment Arrangements (Cont'd)
2.5.7 Changes in Scrvice Requested

If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment
specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially modifies
any provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation fee shall be
adjusted accordingly.

2.6 Allowances for Interrugiions in Service

Interruptions in service that are not due (o the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions
of this tariff by, the Customer or the operation or malfunction of the facilities, power or equipment
provided by the Customer, will be credited to the Customer as set forth in 2.6.1 for the pan of the
service that the interruption affects.

2.6.1 Credit for Interruptions

A) A credit allowance will be made when an interruption occurs because of a failure
of any component furnished by the Company under this tariff. An interruption
period begins when the Customer reporis a service, facility or circuit to be
interrupted and releases it for testing and repair. An interruption period ends
when the service, facility or circuit is operative. If the Customer reporns a
service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and
repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not interrupted.

B) For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have 30 days. A
credit allowance for fixed recurring fees only is applied on a pro rata basis against
the rates specified hereunder and is dependent upon the length of the interruption.
Only those facilities on the interrupted portion of the circuit will receive a credit
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REGULATIONS
26  Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd)
2.6.1 Credil for lnterruptions (Cont'd)
C) A credit allowance will be given for interruptions of 30 minutes or more. Credit
allowances shall be calculated as follows:
Interruptions of 24 Hours or Less
[ bofl ; I ion Period
To Be Credited
Less than 30 minutes None
30 minutes up to but not 1/10 Day
including 3 hours
3 hours up to but not 1/5 Day
including 6 hours
6 hours up to but not 2/5 Day
including 9 hours
9 hours up to but not 3/5 Day
including 12 hours
12 hours up to but not 4/5 Day
including 15 hours
15 hours up to but not One Day
including 24 hours E
Two or more interruptions of 15 minutes or more during any one 24-hour period shall be
considered as one interruption.
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REGULATIONS

2.6 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd)
2.6.1 Credit for Interruptions (Cont’d)
) (Cont'd)
Over 24 Hours and Less Than 72 Hours, Interruptions over 24 hours and less

than 72 hours will be credited 1/5 day for each 3-hour period or fraction thereof
No more than one full day's credit will be allowed for any period of 24 hours

Intermuptions Over 72 Hours, Interruptions over 72 hours will be credited 2 days
for each full 24-hour period. No more than 30 days' credit will be allowed for

any one month period.
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REGULATIONS

1.6  Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd)
2.6.2 Limitations on Allowances

No credit allowance will be made for:

A)

B)

C)

D)

E)

G)

interruptions due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions of
this waniff by, the Customer, authorized user, joint user, or other common carrier
providing service connected to the service of the Company;

interruptions due to the negligence of any person other than the Company,
including but not limited to the Customer or other common carriers connected 1o
the Company's facilities,

interruptions due to the failure or malfunction of non-Company equipment;

interruptions of service during any period in which the Company is not given full
and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purpose of investigating and
correcting interruptions;

interruptions of service during a period in which the Customer continues to use the
service on an impaired basis;

interruptions of service during any period when the Customer has released service
to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Customer
order for a change in service arrangements; and

interruption of service due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of
Company.
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REGULATIONS

2.6 Allowances for Internuptions in Service (Cont™d)
2.6.3 Cancellation For Service Interruption

Cancellation or termination for service interruption is permitted only if any circuit
experiences a single continuous outage of 8 hours or more or cumulative service credits
equalling 16 hours in a continuous 12-month period. The right to cancel service under this
provision applies only to the single circuit that has been subject to the outage or cumulative
service credi's,
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2.7 Use of Customer's Service by Others

Any service provided under this tariff may be resold 1o or shared with other persons at the
option of the Customer, subject to compliance with any applicable laws or Florida Public
Service Commission regulations governing such resale or sharing. The Customer remains
solely responsible for all use of services ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s)
pursuant to this tariii, for determining who is authorized to use its services, and for
notifying the Company of any unauthorized use.

2.7.2  Joint Use Amrangements

Joint use arrangements will be permitted for all services provided under this tariff. From
each joint use arrangement, one member will be designated as the Customer responsible
for the manner in which the joint use of the service will be allocated. The Company will
accept orders 1o star, rearrange, relocate, or discontinue service only from the designated
Customer. Without affecting the Customer's ultimate responsibility for payment of all
charges for the service, each joint user shall be responsible for the payment of the charges
billed to it.
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2.8 Cancellation of Service

If a Customer cancels a Service Order or terminates services before the completion of the tenm for
any reason whatsoever other than a service interruption (as defined in Section 2.6.1 above), the
Customer agrees to pay to the Company termination liability charges, as defined below  These
charges shall become due and owing as of the effective date of the cancellation or termination and
be payable within the period, set forth in Section 2.5.2.

The Customer's termination liability for cancellation of service shall be equal to:

A) all unpaid Non-Recurring charges reasonably expended by the Company to establish
service to the Customer; plus

B) any disconnection, early cancellation or termination charges reasonably incurred and paid
to third parties by the Company on behalf of the Customer; plus

C) all Recurring Charges specified in the applicable Service Order Tariff for the balance of
the then current term discounted at the prime rate announced in the Wall Sureet Journal
on the third business day following the date of cancellation; minus

D) a reasonable allowance for costs avoided by the Company as a direct result of the
Customer's cancellation.

2.9  Transfers and Assignments
Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection
with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other
party, except that the Company may assign its rights and duties:
A) to any subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the Company; or
B) pursuant o any sale or transfer of substantially all the assets of the Company, or

C) pursuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company.
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210 Notices and Communications

A) The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company shall
mail or deliver all notices and other communications, cxcept that the Customer may also
designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed

B) The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Customer thall
mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Company may designate
a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on
that bill.

C) All notices or other communications required to be given pursuant to this tariff will be in
writing. Notices and other communications of either party, and all bills mailed by the
Company, shall be presumed to have been delivered to the other party on the third
business day following placement of the notice, communication or bill with the U.S. Mail
or a private delivery service, prepaid and properly addressed, or when actually received
or refused by the addressee, whichever occurs first,

D) The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes (o the addresses
designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for
giving notice set forth herein.
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REGULATIONS

2.11  Operator Services Rules

A) The Company will enforce the following operator service rules.

A provider of intrastate operator assisted communications services mus::

1) identify itself at the time the end-user accesses its services;

2) upon request, quote all rates and charges for its services to the end-user accessing
its system;

3) arrange to have posied in plain view at each telephone location which
automatically accesses the operator service provider's neiwork and where i1s
services are made available to the public or transient end-users:

(a) the operator service provider's name and address;
(b) bill and service dispute calling information ir.cluding the operator service
provider’s dispute resolution phone number,
() clear and specific instructions informing the end-user how to access a
local exchange telephone company operator as an alternative available 10
the end-user; and
(d) notice concerning any and all amounts to be billed by the operator
services provider on behalf of any host location or third party that will
appear on the operator service provider's bill for services rendered.
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2.11 Operacor Services Rules (Cont'd)
A)  (Coni’d)

4)

5)

in instances when the provider is unable to complete the call and 1 requires
transfer to another telephone corporation that may affect the rates and charges
applicable to the telephone bill, inform the caller of the transfer and its possible
effect on the applicable rates and charges, before any charges are incurred, and

in the case of such transfer, the telephone corporation or provider 1o which the
call is transferred shall identify itself and inform the caller of the transfer's effect
on the applicable rates and charges, before any charges are incurred.

B) The Company will comply with the following provisions:

1)

Providers of intrastate operator assisted communications services shall not take
any, action or enter into any arrangement that restricts end-user selection among
competing interexchange telephone corporations or end-users access to competing
providers of intrastate operator assisted communications services, or pay any
commissions or other compensation o any entity engaged in such acuon or
arrangement.
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3.1 Inuoduction

The regulations set forth in this section govern the application of rates for services contaned n
other sections of this tariff.

3.2 Charges Based on Duration of Use

Where charges for a service are specified based on the duration of use, such as the duration of a
telephone call, the following rules apply:

A) Calls are measured in durational increments identified for each service. All calls that are
fractions of a measurement increment are rounded-up to the next whole unit.

B) Timing on completed calls begins when the call is answered by the called party
Answering is determined by hardware answer supervision in all cases where this signaling
is provided by the terminating local carrier and any intermediate carrier(s). Timing for
operator service person-to-person calls start with completion of the connection to the
person called or an acceptable substitute, or to the PBX station called.

C) Timing terminates on all calls when the calling party hangs up or the Company's network
receives an off-hook signal from the terminating carrier.

D) Calls ariginating in one time period and terminating in another will be billed in proportion
to the rates in effect during different segments of the call.

E) All times refer to local time.
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APPLICATION OF RATES
3.3 Rates Based Upon Distance

Where charges for a service are specified based upon distance, the following rules:

A) Distance between two points is measured as airline distance between the rate centers of the
originating and terminating telephone lines. The rate center is a set of geographic
coordinates, as referenced in the Local Exchange Routing Guide issued by Bellcore.
associated with each NPA-NXX combination (where NPA is the area code and NXX s the
first three digits of a seven-digit telephone number). Where there is no telephone number
associated with an access line on the Company's network (such as a dedicated 800 or
WATS access line), the Company will apply the rate center of the Customer's main billing
telephone number.
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APPLICATION OF RATES
3.3 Rates Based Upon Distance (Cont'd)
B) The airline distance between any two rale centers is determined as follows,

1) Obtain the "V~ (vertical) and "H" (horizontal) coordinates for each rate center
from the Bellcore Local Exchange Routing guide referenced in Section 3 3(A)

2) Compute the difference between the "V* coordinates of the two rate centers, and
the difference between the two "H" coordinates.

3) Square each difference obtained in step (2) above.

4) Add the square of the "V" difference and the square of the "H" difference
obtained in step (3) above.

5) Divide the sum of the squares by 10. Round to the next higher whole number 1f
any fraction is obtained.

6) Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to the
next higher whole number if any frection is obtained. This is the airline mileage

7 FORMULA =

(V1-V2) +(HI-H2)
\ 10
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41 Exchange Access Service Arcas
Exchange Access Service Areas (EASA) are provided (pursuant to Section 5.1) in limited
geographic areas. Exchange Access Services bearing the following NPA-NXX designations are
provided in the following areas:
Geographic Areas In Which
NPA-NXX Eull Service [s Available'

Exchange Access NPA-NXXs And Boundaries Are To Be Determined.

" Full service versions of the Company's Exchange Access Services will be provided to Customers,
at Customer premises located in these areas pursuant to this, the Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph
Company Georgia, General Subscriber Service Tariff to the extent that: (a) the Company has in place and
available network facilities extending to such premises; or (b) the Customer's premises is served by
Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Georgia wire center at which the Company maintains
a collocation arrangement and is able to reasonably employ such arrangement to interconnect to unbundled
exchange link facilities that the Company, in its sole discretion, judges to be of a type, grade, technical
specification, quality and quantity sufficient to, and offered under conditions consistent with, the delivery
of such services,
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4.2 Calling Arcas
Geographically-defined Local Calling Arcas' are associated with each Exchange Access Service

provided pursuant to Section 5.1. Exchange Access Services bearing the following NPA-NXX
designations shall have the following Local and IntraLATA Calling Areas:

Local Calling Areas and IntraLATA Calling Areas Are To Be Determined.

' Rates and rate plans for Local and Intral ATA Calling Area calls placed over Company-provided
Exchange Access Services are set forth in Section 8,
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EXCHANGE ACCESS SERVICE

51 Qeneral

Exchange Access Service provides a Customer with a telephonic connection to, and a unique
telephone number address on the public switched telecommunications network. Each Exchange
Access Service enables users to:

A)
B)
C)

D)

E)

receive calls from other stations on the public switched telecommunications nerwork;,
access other services offered by the Company as set forth in this tariff,
access certain interstate and international calling services provided by the Company;

access (at no additional charge) the Company's operators and business office for service
related assistance;

access (at no additional charge) emergency services by dialing 0- or 9-1-1; and

access services provided by other common carriers that purchase the Company's Switched
Access services as provided under the Company's Federal and State tariffs, or that
maintain other types of traffic exchange arrangements with the Company.

Each Exchange Access Service is available on a "Full”™ service basis, whereby service is delivered
to a demarcation/connection block at the customer’s premises.

The following Exchange Access Services are offered:

Basic Line Service
Key Line Service
Basic Trunk Service
DID Trunk Service
Digital Trunk Service
Centrex Service
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Basic Line Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications
channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Basic Lines are provided for
connection of Customer-provided single station sets or facsimile machines to the public switched
telecommunications network. Each Basic Line may be configured into a hunt group with other
Company-provided Basic Lines. Each Basic Line is provided with the following standard features
which can be deleted at the Customer's option:

Touch Tone

Call Waiting

Call Forwarding

Three-Way Conference Calling

Non-recurring and monthly recurring rates per Basic Line apply as follows:

Basic Local

Exchange Service
-Each Line SX. XX SX. XX

Expanded Local
Exchange Service
-Each Line $X. XX §X.XX
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Key Line Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic commumications
channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a nme. Key Lines are provided for
connection of Customer-provided key systems to the public switched telecommunications network
Each Key Line is provided with the following standard features which can be deleted at the
Customer's option:

Touch Tone

Call Waiting

Call Forwarding

Three-Way Conference Calling

Extension Dialing

Call Hunting

Non-recurring and monthly recurring rates per Key Line apply as follows:
Non-R . Monihly R .
Basic Local
Exchange Service

-Each Line EX.XX $X.XX

Expanded Local
Exchange Service

-Each Line $X. XX $X. XX
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54  Dasic Trunk Scrvice

Basic Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications
channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Basic Trunks are provided for
connection of Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) to the public switched
telecommunications network. Each Basic Trunk is provided with touch toane signalling and may
be configured into a hunt group with other Company-provided Basic Trunks,

Basic Trunks may be equipped with Analog Direct Inward Dial (DID) capability and DID number
blocks for additional charges, as set forth in Sections 5.5 and 5.6.

Basic Local
Exchange Service
-Per Trunk SX. XX SX. XX
Expanded Local
Exchange Service
-Per Trunk $X.XX SX.XX
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5.5  DID Trunk Service

DID Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications
channel that can be used to receive incoming calls one call at a time. DID Trunk Service transmuts
the dialed digits for all incoming calls allowing the Customer’s PBX to route incoming calls
directly to individual stations corresponding to each individual DID number. Charges for DID
number blocks apply in addition to the DID Trunk charges listed below.

Non-recurring and monthly recurming rates per DID Trunk, apply as follows:

Nop-Recurring Monthly Recurning

Basic Local
Exchange Service
-Each Line $X. XX $X.XX

Expanded Local
Exchange Service
-Each Line $X. XX $X XX
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Digital T _

Digital Trunk Service provides a Customer with a digital connection operating at | 544 Mbps that
is time division multiplexed into 24 individual voice-grade telephonic communications channels.
each of which can be used 1o place or receive one call at a time. Digital Trunks are provided for
connection of compatible Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) to the public
switched telecommunications network. Each Digital Trunk is provided with dual tone muln-
frequency (DTMF) or multi-frequency (MF) signalling, as specified by the Customer  Digial
Trunks may be configured into hunt groups with other Company-provided Digital Trunks  The
terminal interfacs for each Digital Trunk Service is a DSX-1 panel.

Non-recurring and monthly recurring rates per Digital Trunk per point, apply as follows
Per Trunk $X.XX X XX
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EXCHANGE ACCESS SERVICE
57 Centrex Service (Com’'d)
5.7.3  Stauen Lioc Charges

The Centrex Station Lines are charged on a monthly recurring and non-recurring basis

Nop-Recurring ~ Monthly Recurring

Centrex Basic

-Per Station Linc $X. XX $X. XX

Centrex Select

-Per Station Line $X.XX SX XX
5.7.4 Usage Charges

A) Local Service Rates
Refer to the Rate Schedule located in Section 8.

B) Inural ATA Raics

Refer to the Rate Schedule located in Section 9,3.
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5.7 Centrex Service (Cont'd)
5.7.5 Rate Elements

The following Rate Elements are in addition to the standard features located in Section
5.7.1 and 5.7.2. These rates are applied on a non-recurring and monthly recurring basis

Rate
Number Retention
-Per Number
Recurring $X.XX
Non-Recurring $X. XX
Order Processing Charge
-Per Order
Non-Recurring $X. XX
Additional Directory Listing
-Per Listing
Recurring SX.XX
Remote Call Forwarding
-Per Path
Recurring SX XX
Account Codes
-Per Line
Recurring SN XX
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EXCHANGE ACCESS SERYICE
57  Centrex Service (Cont'd)
5.7.5 Rate Elements (Cont'd)

Rate
Service Establishment Charge
-Per Order
Non-Recurring SX.XX
Vanity Number
-Per Number
Recurring SX.XX
Vanity Number Retention
-Per Number
Recurring SX.XX
Non-Recurring $X.XX
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61  Directory Listings

For each Customer of Company-provided Exchange Access Service(s), the Compar- shall arrange
for the listing of the Customer's main billing telephone number' in the directory(ies) published by
the dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the area at no additional charge. At a Customer's option,
the Company will arrange for additional listings at the following rates

Non-Recurti Monthly Recurti

Each Additional Listing: N/A SX. XX

' For Customers with multiple premises served by the Company, the Company will arrange for a
listing of the main billing telephone number at cach premise.
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EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES
6.2 Direct Inward Dial (DID) Service

DID service is an optional feature which can be purchased in conjunction with Company-provided
Basic Trunks or Digital Trunks. DID service transmits the dialed digits for all inconung calls
allowing the Customer's PBX to route incoming calls directly o individual stations corresponding
to each individual DID number. Charges for DID capability and DID number blocks apply in
addition to charges specified for Basic Trunks or Digital Trunks in Sections 5.2,

5.4 and 5.6, respectively.

One DID Additive charge applies for each DID-equipped Basic Trunk or DID-equipped channel
on a Digital Trunk. The Customer is required to purchase at least one DID number block for each
DID-equipped trunk or trunk group, or DID-equipped channel or channel group.'

Non-Recurring  ~ Monthly Recurring

DID Additive SX. XX X XX
Block of 20
DID Numbers SX.XX SX.XX

' A "group” is a set of Basic Trunks or Digital Trunk channels which have been configured into a
hunt group.
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EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES
6.3 Main Number Retention
6.3.1 Description

Main Number Retention is an optional feature by which a new Customer, who was
formally a customer of another certificated local exchange carrier at the same premises
location, may retain its main telephone numbers and main fax numbers for use with the
Company-provided Exchange Access Services. Main Number Retention service is only
available in areas where the Company maintains some form of number retention
arrangement with the Customer’s former local exchange carrier

Monthly recurring and non-recurring charges apply per retained number. Rates for
retained numbers may vary from area to area.

6.3.2 Rates
per retained number SX XX SX.XX
per retained
vanity number X XX $X. XX
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EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES
64 Accounting Codes

Accounting Codes provide customers with a means of restricting calls or itemizing calls, according
to specific digits that must be dialed at the end of a long distance telephone number. The length
of Accounting Codes may vary from 2 to 6 digits, however, the length must be consistent for each
customer location.

Offered are packages of codes that are verified against a specific list of valid numbers, for call
restriction, or unverified packages of 2-6 digits in length for cataloging by code the calls made

Charge Per Monthly Non-

Verified Packages SXX. XX SXX. XX

Unverified Packages $ XXX SXX. XX
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EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES
6.5 Authorization Codes
This option restricts calls from being made unless the correct accounting code is entered. Only

customer specified codes will be accepted. The customer then may use these codes (o track calling
for cost analysis and bill-back purposes.

$X. XX SX. XX
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6.6  Yanity Number Service
6.6.1 Description

Vanity Number Service is an optional feature by which a new Customer may request a
specific or unique telephone number and fax number for use with the Company provided
Exchange Access Services. This service provides for the assignment of a customer
requested telephone number other than the next available number from the assignment
control list.

Vanity Number Service is furnished subject to the availability of facilities and the
requirements of Exchange Access Service as defined by the Company. The Company
reserves all rights to the Vanity Numbers assigned to customers and may, therefore,

change them if required.

Monthly recurring charges apply per Vanity number.

6 6.2 Rales
Per Vanity Number SX.XX SX.XX
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RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
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8.1 Description

Local Calling Service provides a Customer with the ability to originate calls from a Company-
provided access line to all other stations on the public switched telephone network' bearing the
designation of any central office exchanges, areas, and zones included in the Customer's local
calling area.

8.1.1

Basic Local Exchange Scrvice - This calling service allows the Customer unlimited access
1o all other stations on the public switched telephone network within the customer's Basic

Local Calling Area.’ All calls to destinations outside the Basic Local Calling Area but
within the same state and LATA will be charged the IntralLATA rates as specified in
Section 9.3 following.

Expanded Local Exchange Service - This calling service allows the Customer limited
access 1o all other stations on the public switched telephone network within the Customer’s

Basic Local Calling Area. Additional calls to the Basic Local Calling Area will be charged
as specified in Section 8.2.1(A) following. All calls to the Expanded Local Calling Area’
will be charged a per call setup and per minute access charge as specified in Section
8.2.1(B) following. All calls to destinations outside the Expanded Loca! Calling Area but
within the same state and LATA will be charged the IntraLATA rates as specified in
Section 9.3 following.

! Except calls to other telephone companies’ caller paid information services (e.g. NPA 900, NXX
976, ctc.). Calls to those numbers and other numbers used for caller-paid information services will be
blocked by the Company's centralized switching facility.

As specified in the BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., Florida, General Subscriber Service Tanff,
Local Calling Area Exchanges, in effect and as amended from time-to-time.
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LOCAL CALLING SERVICE
8.1  Description (Cont'd)
8.1.2 Expanded Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)
A)  Time Periods
Day and Night/Weekend rates apply as follows:

To But
Raies Erom Not Including Days Applicablc
Day 9:00 A.M. 9:00 P.M. Mon. - Fri.
Night/Weekend All other days, times, and holidays.

Holidays include New Year's Day (January 1), Independence Day
(July 4), Labor Day (the first Monday in September), Thanksgiving Day
(the fourth Thursday in November), and Christmas Day (December 25).
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LOCAL CALLING SERVICE

The rates set forth in this section apply to all direct dialed local calls. For operator-assisted local
calls, the operator charges listed in Section 12.1.3 apply in addition to the charges listed below.

8.2.1 Usage Charges - Per minute charges apply for each call. Timing is in whole minute
increments, with a minimum charge of one minute per call.

A)

Monthly Message Allowance

Basic Calling Extended Calling
Type of Service —Area e AT .
Basic Local
Exchange Service TBD TDB'
Expanded Local
Exchange Service TBD TDB

*Additional message charge of $0.12 for each
message over monthly allowance.

B) Expanded Calling Arca - The following usage charges apply to points in
the Customer's Expanded Calling Area.

MILEAGE  SETUP PER CALL  PEAK SFE-PEAK
0-10 $X.XX SX.XX $X.XX
11-22  $X.XX $X.XX $X.XX

23-40  SX.XX $X.XX $X.XX

41 + $X.XX $X.XX $X.XX

' Customers of Basic Local Exchange Service are billed IntralLATA rates for calls to destinations
within the state and LATA but outside the Basic Local Calling Area.
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INTRALATA CALLING SERVICE
9.1  Description

IntralLATA calling service provides a Customer with the ability to originate calls from a Compaay-provided
access line to all other stations on the public switched telephone network' bearing the designation of any
central office exchanges, areas, and zones outside of the Customer's Basic Calling Area but within the
same state and LATA.

9.2 Time Periods

Day, Evening and Night/Weckend rate periods are shown below. On holidays, Evening rates will apply
unless a lower rate will normally apply.

To But Days Discount
Day 8:00 A.M. 12:00 P.M. Mon. - Fri. 0%
1:00 P.M. 5:00 P.M. Mon. - Fri. 0%
Evening 5:00 P.M. 11:00 P.M. Mon. - Fri. 25%
Night/Weekend All other times. 50%

Holidays include New Year's Day (January 1), Independence Day (July 4), Labor
Day (the first Monday in September), Thanksgiving Day (the fourth Thursday in
November), and Christmas Day (December 25).

' Except calls to other telephone companies’ caller paid information services (e.g. NPA 900, NXX
976, etc.). Calls to those numbers and other numbers used for caller-paid information services will be
blocked by the Company's centralized switching facility.

[ssued: June 3, 1996 Effective:

Issued By: Riley M. Murphy, EVP - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
American Communications Services, Inc.
131 MNational Business Parkway
Suite 100

4 DXCOLZOCHOAIN 41 Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701




American Communicat

ion Services of Jacksonville, Inc.

Fla. P.5.C No |
Section 9 - Oniginal Page 2

INTRALATA CALLING SERVICE
9.3 Rates

MILEAGE EIRST MINUTE ADDITIONAL MINUTE
0-10 SX.XX SX.XX
11 - 16 $X.XX $X.XX
17 - 22 $X XX $X.XX
23-30 SX. XX SX. XX
31-40 $X.XX SX.XX
41 - 55 SX. XX $X. XX
56 - 70 $X.XX SX.XX
71 + SX XX SX.XX
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MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES
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Operator Services
10.1.1 Description

Operator Handled Calling Services are provided to Customers and Users of Company-provided
Exchange Access Services, and to Customers and Users of exchange access lines.

10.1.2 Definitions

Person--Person: Calls completed with the assistance of a Company operator to a particular person,
station, department, or PBX extension specified by the calling party. Charges may be billed to the
Customer's commercial credit card and/or LEC calling card, calling station, called station, or a
designated third-party station. Calls may be dialed with or without the assistance of a Company
operator.

Station-to-Station: Refers to calls other than person-to-person calls billed to either the end user's
commercial credit card and/or nonproprietary calling card. Calls may be dialed with or without
the assistance of a Company operator. Collect calls to coin telephones and transfers of charges to
third telephones which are coin telephones will not be accepted.

Operator Dialed Charge: The end user places the call without dialing the destination number,
although the capability to do it himself exists. The end user will dial "0" for local calls and "00"
for long distance calls and then request the operator to dial the called station.

Billed to Non-Proprictary Calling Card: Refers to calls that are dialed by the customer in
accordance with standard dialing instructions and billed to a non-proprietary calling card issued

by another carrier.
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MISCELLANEQUS SERVICES
10.1  Operator Services (Cont'd)
10.1.3 Rales
Local exchange and Intral ATA calls may be placed on an Operator Assisted basis. Usage
charges for Operator Assisted calls are the same as those set forth in Sections 8 and 9,
preceding. For Operator Assisted calls to Busy Line Verification and Interrupt, or

Directory Assistance, the surcharges specified in Section 11.2.3 and Section 11,1.3 will
apply in addition to any applicable Operator charges.

In addition to the usage charges identified abave, the following operator-assisted charges

will apply:
Per Call Charges Intral ATA InterLATA
Person-to-Person (Customer Dialed) SX.XX SX.XX
Station-to-Station (Customer Dialed) $X. XX $ X X X
Operator Dialed Charge $X. XX 5 X X X
(applies in addition to other
operator charges)
Billed to Non-Proprietary Calling Card $X.XX SX.XX
(additional surcharge)
Directory Assistance $X.XX $X XX
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MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

10.2  Busy Linc Venfy and Linc lnterrupt Service

10.2.1 Descriptiop
Upon request of a calling party the Company will verify a busy condition on a called line.

A) The operator will determine if the line is clear or in use and report 1o the calling
party.
B) The operator will interrupt the call on the called line only if the calling party
indicates an emergency and requests interruption.
10.2.2 Regulations
A) A charge will apply when:

1§ The operator verifies that the line is busy with a call in progress.
2) The operator verifics that the line is available for incoming calls.

3 The operator verifies that the called number is busy with a call in progress
and the customer requests interruption. The operator will then interrupt
the call, advising the called party the name of the calling party. One
charge will apply for both verification and interruption.
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MISCELLANEQUS SERVICES
10.2  Busy Line Verify and Line Interrupt Service (Cont'd)
10.2.2 Regulations (Cont'd)
B) No charge will apply:

1) When the calling party advises that the call is to or from an official public
emergency agency.

2) Under conditions other than those specified in 11.2.2(A) preceding.
C) Busy Verification and Interrupt Service is furnished where and to the extent that
facilities permit.

D) The Customer shall identify and hold the Company harmless against all claims that
may arise from either party to the interrupted call or any person.

10.2.3 Rates
Busy Line Verify Service $X.XX
{cach request)
Busy Line Verify and Busy Line SX.XX

Interrupt Service (each request)
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105 Service Implementation
10.5.1 Description

Absent a promotional offering, service implementation charges will apply to new service
orders or to orders to change existing service,

10.5.2 Rales

per service order SXX.XX

10.6 Restoration of Service

10.6.1 Description

A restoration charge applies to the re-establishment of service and facilities suspended
because of nonpayment of bills and is payable at the time that the re-establishment of the
service and facilities suspended is arranged for. The restoration charge does not apply
when, after disconnection of service, service is later re-established.

10.6.2 Rates
Non-Reguming
per occasion $X.XX
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11.1  Special Construction
11.1.1 Basis for Charges

Where the Company furnishes a facility or service for which a rate or charge is not
specified in the Company’s tariffs, charges will be based on the costs incurred by the

Company and may include:

A) non-recurring type charges;
B) recurring type charges;

C) termination liabilities; or
D) combinations thereof.

11.1.2 Teomination Liability

To the extent that there is no other requirement for use by the Company, a termination
liability may apply for facilities specially constructed at the request of the customer.

A)

B)

The termination liability period is the estimated service life of the facilities
provided.

The amount of the maximum termination liability is equal to the estimated amounts
for:
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SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS

11.1  Special Construction (Cont'd)
11.1.2 Termination Liability (Cont'd)
B) (Cont'd)

1)

2)
3)
4)

)

Cost installed of the facilities provided including estimated costs for
rearrangements of existing facilities and/or construction of new facilities
as appropriate, less net salvage. Cost installed includes the cost of:

(a) equipment and materials provided or used,

{b) engineering, labor and supervision,

() transportation, and

(d) rights-of-way;

license preparation, processing, and related fees,

tariff preparation, processing, and related fees;

cost of removal and restoration, where appropriate; and

any other identifiable costs related to the specially constructed or
rearranged facilities.

C) The applicable termination liability method for calculating the unpaid balance of
a term obligation. The amount of such charge is obtained by multiplying the sum
of the amounts determined as set forth in Section 1 3.1.3(B) preceding by a factor
related to the unexpired period of liability and the discount rate for return and
contingencies. The amount determined in section 13.1.3(B) preceding shall be
adjusted to reflect the redetermined estimate net salvage, including any reuse of
the facilities provided. This product is adjusted to reflect applicable taxes.
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SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS
11.2  Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements

Arrangements will be developed on a case-by-case basis in response to a bona fide request from
a Customer or prospective Customer to develop a competitive bid for a service offered under this
tariff. Rates quoted in response 1o such competitive requests may be different than those specified
for such services in this tariff. ICB rates will be offered to the Customer in writing and on a non-
discriminatory basis.
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SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS
11.3  Temporary Promotional Programs
The Company may establish temporary promotional programs wherein it may waive or reduce

non-recurring or recurring charges, to introduce present or potential Customers to a service not
previvusly received by the Customers.

Issued: June 3, 1996 Effective:

Issued By: Riley M. Murphy, EVP - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
American Communications Services, Inc.
131 National Business Parkway
Suite 100

DO ZOCHM 20978 41 Annapolis Junction, Maryland 20701




	7-12 No. - 4347
	7-12 No. - 4348
	7-12 No. - 4349
	7-12 No. - 4350
	7-12 No. - 4351
	7-12 No. - 4352
	7-12 No. - 4353
	7-12 No. - 4354
	7-12 No. - 4355
	7-12 No. - 4356
	7-12 No. - 4357
	7-12 No. - 4358
	7-12 No. - 4359
	7-12 No. - 4360
	7-12 No. - 4361
	7-12 No. - 4362
	7-12 No. - 4363
	7-12 No. - 4364
	7-12 No. - 4365
	7-12 No. - 4366
	7-12 No. - 4367
	7-12 No. - 4368
	7-12 No. - 4369
	7-12 No. - 4370
	7-12 No. - 4371
	7-12 No. - 4372
	7-12 No. - 4373
	7-12 No. - 4374
	7-12 No. - 4375
	7-12 No. - 4376
	7-12 No. - 4377
	7-12 No. - 4378
	7-12 No. - 4379
	7-12 No. - 4380
	7-12 No. - 4381
	7-12 No. - 4382
	7-12 No. - 4383
	7-12 No. - 4384
	7-12 No. - 4385
	7-12 No. - 4386
	7-12 No. - 4387
	7-12 No. - 4388
	7-12 No. - 4389
	7-12 No. - 4390
	7-12 No. - 4391
	7-12 No. - 4392
	7-12 No. - 4393
	7-12 No. - 4394
	7-12 No. - 4395
	7-12 No. - 4396
	7-12 No. - 4397
	7-12 No. - 4398
	7-12 No. - 4399
	7-12 No. - 4400
	7-12 No. - 4401
	7-12 No. - 4402
	7-12 No. - 4403
	7-12 No. - 4404
	7-12 No. - 4405
	7-12 No. - 4406
	7-12 No. - 4407
	7-12 No. - 4408
	7-12 No. - 4409
	7-12 No. - 4410
	7-12 No. - 4411
	7-12 No. - 4412
	7-12 No. - 4413
	7-12 No. - 4414
	7-12 No. - 4415
	7-12 No. - 4416
	7-12 No. - 4417
	7-12 No. - 4418
	7-12 No. - 4419
	7-12 No. - 4420
	7-12 No. - 4421
	7-12 No. - 4422
	7-12 No. - 4423
	7-12 No. - 4424
	7-12 No. - 4425
	7-12 No. - 4426
	7-12 No. - 4427
	7-12 No. - 4428
	7-12 No. - 4429
	7-12 No. - 4430
	7-12 No. - 4431
	7-12 No. - 4432
	7-12 No. - 4433
	7-12 No. - 4434
	7-12 No. - 4435
	7-12 No. - 4436
	7-12 No. - 4437
	7-12 No. - 4438
	7-12 No. - 4439
	7-12 No. - 4440
	7-12 No. - 4441
	7-12 No. - 4442
	7-12 No. - 4443
	7-12 No. - 4444
	7-12 No. - 4445
	7-12 No. - 4446
	7-12 No. - 4447
	7-12 No. - 4448
	7-12 No. - 4449
	7-12 No. - 4450
	7-12 No. - 4451
	7-12 No. - 4452
	7-12 No. - 4453
	7-12 No. - 4454
	7-12 No. - 4455
	7-12 No. - 4456
	7-12 No. - 4457
	7-12 No. - 4458
	7-12 No. - 4459
	7-12 No. - 4460
	7-12 No. - 4461
	7-12 No. - 4462
	7-12 No. - 4463
	7-12 No. - 4464
	7-12 No. - 4465
	7-12 No. - 4466
	7-12 No. - 4467
	7-12 No. - 4468
	7-12 No. - 4469
	7-12 No. - 4470
	7-12 No. - 4471
	7-12 No. - 4472
	7-12 No. - 4473
	7-12 No. - 4474
	7-12 No. - 4475
	7-12 No. - 4476
	7-12 No. - 4477
	7-12 No. - 4478
	7-12 No. - 4479
	7-12 No. - 4480
	7-12 No. - 4481
	7-12 No. - 4482
	7-12 No. - 4483
	7-12 No. - 4484
	7-12 No. - 4485
	7-12 No. - 4486
	7-12 No. - 4487
	7-12 No. - 4488
	7-12 No. - 4489
	7-12 No. - 4490
	7-12 No. - 4491
	7-12 No. - 4492
	7-12 No. - 4493
	7-12 No. - 4494
	7-12 No. - 4495
	7-12 No. - 4496
	7-12 No. - 4497
	7-12 No. - 4498
	7-12 No. - 4499
	7-12 No. - 4500
	7-12 No. - 4501
	7-12 No. - 4502
	7-12 No. - 4503
	7-12 No. - 4504
	7-12 No. - 4505
	7-12 No. - 4506
	7-12 No. - 4507
	7-12 No. - 4508
	7-12 No. - 4509
	7-12 No. - 4510
	7-12 No. - 4511
	7-12 No. - 4512
	7-12 No. - 4513
	7-12 No. - 4514
	7-12 No. - 4515
	7-12 No. - 4516
	7-12 No. - 4517
	7-12 No. - 4518
	7-12 No. - 4519
	7-12 No. - 4520
	7-12 No. - 4521
	7-12 No. - 4522
	7-12 No. - 4523
	7-12 No. - 4524
	7-12 No. - 4525
	7-12 No. - 4526
	7-12 No. - 4527
	7-12 No. - 4528
	7-12 No. - 4529
	7-12 No. - 4530
	7-12 No. - 4531
	7-12 No. - 4532
	7-12 No. - 4533
	7-12 No. - 4534
	7-12 No. - 4535
	7-12 No. - 4536
	7-12 No. - 4537
	7-12 No. - 4538
	7-12 No. - 4539
	7-12 No. - 4540
	7-12 No. - 4541
	7-12 No. - 4542
	7-12 No. - 4543
	7-12 No. - 4544
	7-12 No. - 4545



